BANNON LAKES

Community Development District

November 6, 2019



Bannon Lakes

Community Development District

475 West Town Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, Florida 32092
Phone: 904-940-5850 - Fax: 904-940-5899 -

October 30, 2019

Board of Supervisors
Bannon Lakes
Community Development District

Dear Board Members:

The Bannon Lakes Community Development District Board of Supervisors Meeting is scheduled for
Wednesday, November 6, 2019 at 1:00 p.m. at the Northeast Florida Regional Airport, 4730 Casa
Cola Way, St. Augustine, FL 32095. Following is the advance agenda for the meeting:

Regular Meeting

1. Call Order
1. Public Comment
IH. Approval of Minutes of the August 21, 2019 Meeting
IV. Acceptance of Audit Committee Minutes of the August 21, 2019 Meeting
V. Ratification of FY 19 Audit Engagement Letter with Grau & Associates
V1. Acceptance of Resignation of Margaret Shultis from the Board of Supervisors
VIH. Consideration of Resolution 2020-01, Setting a Public Hearing for the Purpose of
Adopting Amended and Restated Rules of Procedure
VII. Consideration of Proposals for AED Machine
IX. Consideration of Proposals for Pressure Washing
X. Consideration of Proposals for Windscreen
XI. Consideration of Proposal from Lifetime Fitness for Stair-master Machine
XII. Ratification of Amendment to Landcare Group Agreement
XIII. Ratification of Amenity Management Services Agreement with Riverside
Management Services, Inc.
XIV. Ratification of Agreement with Heather Schnellbacher Regarding the Use of
District Facilities for Yoga Classes
XV. Other Business
XVI. Staff Reports
A. District Counsel
B. District Engineer
C. District Manager - Ratification of Meeting Schedule for FY20
D. Field Services — Operations Memorandum
E.  Amenity Report — Manager’s Report
XVIL. Supervisor’s Requests
XVIH. Audience Comments



XIX. Financial Reports
A. Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2019 and Statement of Revenues &
Expenditures
B. Assessment Receipt Schedule
C. Approval of Check Register
XX. Next Scheduled Meeting — February 5, 2020 at 1:00 p.m. at the Northeast Regional Airport
Conference Center 4730 Casa Cola Way, St. Augustine, FL 32095
XXI. Adjournment

The third order of business is the approval of minutes from the August 21, 2019 meeting. Minutes are
enclosed for your review.

The fourth order of business is the acceptance of audit committee minutes from the August 21, 2019
meeting, Minutes are enclosed for your review.

The fifth order of business is the ratification of FY 19 audit engagement letter with Grau & Associates.
A copy of the letter is enclosed for your review.

The sixth order of business is acceptance of the resignation of Margarest Shultis from the Board of
Supervisors.

The seventh order of business is the consideration of resolution 2020-02, setting a public hearing for
the purpose of adopting amended and restated rules of procedure. A copy of the resolution is enclosed
for your review.

The eighth order of business is the consideration of proposals for AED machine. Copies of the
proposals are enclosed for your review.

The ninth order of business is the consideration of proposals for pressure washing. A copy of the
proposals is enclosed for your review.

The tenth order of business is the consideration of proposals for windscreen. Copies of the proposals
are enclosed for your review.

The eleventh order of business is the consideration of proposal from Lifetime Fitness for a stair-master
machine. A copy of the proposal is enclosed for your review.

The twelfth order of business is the consideration of agreement with Landcare Group Inc., for
landscape & irrigation maintenance services. A copy of the agreement is enclosed for your review,

The thirteenth order of business is the ratification of Amenity Management Services Agreement with
Riverside Management Services. A copy of the agreement is enclosed for your review.

The fourteenth order of business is the ratification of agreement with Heather Schnellbacher regarding
the use of District facilities. A copy of the agreement is enclosed for your review.

Listed under Manager Reports is the ratification of annual meeting schedule for FY 20. A copy of the
scheduled is enclosed for your review.



Listed under Field Services is the operations memorandum. A copy of the memo has been enclosed for
your review,

Listed under Amenity Report is the Manager’s report. A copy of the report is enclosed for your review.

Copies of the balance sheet and statement of revenue & expenditures, assessment receipt schedule and
check register are enclosed for your review.

We look forward to seeing you at the meeting. In the meantime, if you have any questions, please do
not hesitate to call us at (904) 940-5850.

Sincerely,

James Oliver
District Manager




AGENDA



Bannon Lakes
Community Development District
Agenda

Wednesday Northeast Florida Regional
November 6, 2019 Airport Conference Center
1:00 p.m. 4730 Casa Cola Way

St. Augustine, Florida 32095
bannonlakescdd.com
Call In # 1-888-757-2790 Code 509700

Regular Meeting
I. Call Order
II. Public Comment
III. Approval of Minutes of the August 21, 2019 Meeting
IV. Acceptance of Audit Committee Minutes of the August 21, 2019 Meeting
V. Ratification of FY 19 Audit Engagement Letter with Grau & Associates
V1. Acceptance of Resignation of Margaret Shultis from the Board of Supervisors

VII. Consideration of Resolution 2020-01, Setting a Public Hearing for the Purpose of
Adopting Amended and Restated Rules of Procedure

VIII. Consideration of Proposals for AED Machine
IX. Consideration of Proposals for Pressure Washing
X. Consideration of Proposals for Windscreen
XI. Consideration of Proposal from Lifetime Fitness for Stair-master Machine

XII. Consideration of Agreement with Landcare Group, Inc. for Landscape & Irrigation
Maintenance Services

XIII. Ratification of Amenity Management Services Agreement with Riverside
Management Services, Inc.

XIV. Ratification of Agreement with Heather Schnellbacher Regarding the Use of



XVIL

XVIIL.

XiX.

District Facilities for Yoga Classes

QOther Business

. Staff Reports
A. District Counsel
B. District Engineer
C. District Manager — Ratification of Meeting Schedule for FY20
D. Field Services - Operations Memorandum
E. Amenity Report — Amenity Report

Supervisor’s Requests

Audience Comments

Financial Reports

A.

B.

C.

Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2019 and Statement of Revenues &
Expenditures

Assessment Receipt Schedule

Approval of Check Register

Next Scheduled Meeting - February 5, 2020 at 1:00 p.m. at the Northeast
Regional Airport Conference Center 4730 Casa Cola Way, St. Augustine, FL
32095

. Adjournment




MINUTES



MINUTES OF MEETING
BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Bannon Lakes Community
Development District was held on Wednesday, August 21, 2019 at 1:10 p.m. at the Offices of
GMS, 475 West Town Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, F1. 32092.

Present and constituting a quorum were:

John Dodson Vice Chairman
Linda Scandura Supervisor
Chris Hill Supervisor

Also present were:

Jim Oliver District Manager

Katie Buchanan District Counsel

Brian Stephens Operations Manager

Robin Nixon Amenity Manager
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call

Mr. Oliver called the meeting to order at 1:10 p.m.

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comment
There being none, the next item followed.

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Affidavit of Publication
Mr. Oliver stated included in your agenda package is an affidavit of publication of

required notices for today’s meeting and public hearing.

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Acceptance of Audit Committee
Recommendations
Mr. Oliver stated the audit committee met carlier today and ranked the proposals that we

received from Grau & Associates and Berger, Toombs. The audit committee ranked Grau &

Associates as the top ranked firm.




August 21, 2019 Bannion Lakes CDD

On MOTION by Mr. Dodson seconded by Mr. Hill with all in favor
the Ranking of Grau & Associates as the #1 Ranked Firm & Direct
Staff to Get Letter of Engagement for the Fiscal Year 2019 Audit
was accepted.

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Minutes of the June 5, 2019 =
Meeting
Mr. Oliver stated included in your agenda package is a copy of the minutes of the June 5,

2019 meeting. Are there any additions, corrections or deletions?

On MOTION by Mr. Dodson seconded by Mr. Hill with all in favor
the Minutes of the June 5, 2019 Meeting were approved.

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Acceptance of Audit Committee Minutes of
the June 5, 2019 Meeting
Mr. Oliver stated included in your agenda package is a copy of the audit committee

minuets of the June 5, 2019 meeting. Are there any additions, corrections or deletions?

On MOTION by Mr. Dodson seconded by Mr. Hill with all in favor
the Minutes of the Audit Committee Minutes of the June 5, 2019
Meeting were accepted.

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Hearing to Adopt the Budget for
Fiscal Year 2020
A. Conpsideration of Resolution 2019-05, Relating to Annual Appropriations and
Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2020
Mr. Oliver stated there is not much change in this year’s budget. You will see that the

assessment levels for current homeowners and platted lots remained the same as the previous
year. Per lots assessments are still $830 annually on a net basis. There is a slight increase in
assessments for the undeveloped land. The administrative budget reduces expenditures from
$112,000 tot $101,000. The amenity center expenditures are projected to increase ifrom
$161,000 tot $210,000. We discussed this at our June meeting and the biggest change is the
facility management contract. The District budgeted for $30,900 for Fiscal Year 2019 for part-
time coverage. With the steady growth of the community, we have proposed that you staff a
fulltime person at the amenity center to better serve our residents and potential homebuyers. We
expect landscape maintenance costs to increase during the next fiscal year as Landcare takes on

additional commons areas.



August 21, 2019 Bannon Lakes CDD

Mr. Dodson asked there is a drop in reclaim water line item?

Mr. Oliver responded yes. Based on actual usage this year, we propose we cut that
amount by about 25%.

Mr. Oliver responded the $141,000 includes a first addendum to the Landcare contract.
We realize that will probably go up with a second addendum, but you have $20,000 in landscape
contingency.

Ms. Buchanan stated there is deficit funding here and the assessments don’t cover the
total amount of the budget, so you can’t raise the assessment cap. The difference will be funded

by the Developer.

On MOTION by Mr. Dodson seconded by Ms. Scandura with all in
favor the Public Hearing to Adopt the Budget for Fiscal Year 2020
was opened.

A resident stated our lake in the back of Orchard Cove has never been maintained. We
would like to know why our lake is not being taken care of in the back? Also, when they cut the
back of the lake, they cut the back end where there are no homes. They didn’t cut the side where
our homes are. KBB has two bubblers in their pond and we don’t have anything back there to
keep the water moving. If we are all paying the same CDD fees, then why are we not all being
treated the same?

Mr. Oliver asked are these ponds owned by the District?

Mr. Stephens responded the lake he is referring to is the one that Art requested the
pricing to mow the back side because we weren’t sure at that point if it was HOA or CDD.

Mr. Oliver asked is this lake to be conveyed to the District, or owned and maintained by
the HOA?

Mr. Stephens responded not that | am aware of.

A resident stated there is also a wash out going on at that lake.

A resident stated we have a few streetlights that are leaning. Who do we bring that
intention to?

Mr. Dodson asked are they on your street?

A resident stated yes.



August 21,2019 Bammon Lakes CDD

Mr. Dodson stated that would be Lennar. Once you come in Orchard Cove then those are
all Lennar.

A resident asked so you budget for all of the lakes, right? Is the lake that is not being
maintained right now going to increase the budget then?

Mr. Oliver responded the District is responsible for maintained all lakes it owns. If this
lake is to be conveyed to the District, we will make sure it is maintained and we will adjust the
budget accordingly. It won’t change your assessment.

A resident asked when you first develop the community before homes come in and you
put the ponds in, do you put in aerator systems for each pond?

Mr. Oliver responded most of the District ponds in CDDs I manage don’t have aerators or
fountains. Often times, fountains are put in by homebuilders for community appearance. We
will take a look at that pond. Is Bridge Bay Pond owned by the District?

Mr. Stephens responded yes.

Mr. Oliver stated the smaller the pond, the greater likelihood it can become stagnant.

A resident asked when you come into our entrance are you responsible for the trees that
are dying? The entrance is really not appealing to the community.

Mr. Dodson asked right behind the signs?

A resident responded yes.

Mr. Dodson stated there is a dead tree there and that is something we need to go over
with Landcare to remove it.

A resident stated there are a couple other dead trees down the roadway when you come
in.

A resident stated the gym is overcrowded already. The pool is also small. We have a
basketball court that has been unusable for over a month.

A resident stated it seems that the birds are sitting on the hoops.

Mr. Stephens stated we did spikes over top of the basketball pole and down the frame.

A resident stated thank you for lowering the swings. How do we give our opinions on
other things we want done? I know they added the benches in the dog park.

A resident asked have you thought about putting in an AED near the fitness center or the
pool?

Mr. Oliver responded we have had discussions about it, and we will do that.




August 21, 2019 Barmon Lakes CDD

A resident asked could it be possible to add a room for the children to be in there safely,
S0 we can go work out?

Mr. Oliver responded the District would need additional funding for new construction or
renovation of existing facilities. Robin did share that idea of additional indoor space with me.

A resident asked can we benches for the children? Can we get some benches for the
children at the bus stops?

Mr. Hill responded sometimes the schools change the bus stops and you can’t control
that.

A resident asked are you guys responsible for potholes?

Mr. Oliver responded road repairs are the responstbility of \St. Johns County, as they own
the roads.. Staff will report potholes to the county, but residents are encourage to contact the

county, also.

On MOTION by Mr. Hill seconded by Mr. Dodson with all in favor
the Public Hearing to Adopt the Budget for Fiscal Year 2020 was
closed.

Ms. Buchanan stated Resolution 2019-05 is the appropriation resolution. [t adopts the
proposed budget, which would be attached to the resolution and then Jim will insert the total
fund balance. It does authorize certain small scale amendments and it is effective upon your

approval.

On MOTION by Mr. Dodson seconded by Mr. Hill with all in favor
Resolution 2019-05 Relating to Annual Appropriations and
Certifying an Assessment Roll was approved.

B. Consideration of Resolution 2019-06, Imposing Special Assessments and
Certifying an Assessment Roll
Ms. Buchanan stated Resolution 2019-06 certifies the debt service assessments for

collection and it also levies the annual operation and maintenance assessment. You are going {o
collect those two different ways; the first would be through the tax roll for platted property and
then direct bill for un-platted property.



August 21,2019 Bannon Lakes CDD

On MOTION by Mr. Dodson seconded by Mr. Hill with all in favor
Resolution 2019-06 Imposing Special Assessments and Certifying
an Assessment Roll was approved.

C. Consideration of Developer Funding Agreement for Fiscal Year 2019-2020
Ms. Buchanan stated included in your agenda package is a Developer Funding

Agreement. This is the form between the Developer and the District to cover the difference

between what assessments cover in the budget and the actual total budget amount.

On MOTION by Mr. Dodson seconded by Mr. Hill with all in favor
the Developer Funding Agreement for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 was
approved.

Mr. Oliver stated as we went through the budget, we talked about moving the amenity
manager from a part-time position to a full-time position. I wanted the board to consider
obtaining a proposal from the amenity management company and authorize the Chair or Vice
Chair to approve that proposal.

Mr. Dodson stated she has been doing a great job.

On MOTION by Mr. Dodson seconded by Mr. Hill with all in favor
the Proposal for Full-Time Amenity Manager for Fiscal Year 2020
was approved, subject to review and approval of the proposal by
Chairman.

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Acceptance of Fiscal Year 2018 Finanecial
Audit
Mr, Oliver stated included in your agenda package is the Fiscal Year 2018 Financial

Audit. In the auditor’s opinion letter, they write, “In our opinion, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities in each major fund of the Bannon Lakes CDD as of September 30,
2018.” These are in conformity of the accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. Over the next several pages you will see manapgement discussion and
analysis and those are followed by the year end financial statements. The next report you will
see is the report on internal controls. In the bottom paragraph, the auditor writes, “During our

audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material



August 21, 2019 Bannon Lakes CDD

weaknesses.” The management letter talks about financial emergency conditions as outline in
Section 218,503(1) of Florida Statutes. You will see that Bannon Lakes CDD did not meet any
of the conditions described in that chapter. This is a clean audit and it has already been filed
with the Auditor General.

On MOTION by Mr. Hill seconded by Ms. Scandura with all in
favor the Fiscal Year 2018 Financial Audit was accepted.

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Second Amendment for
Renewal of Lake Maintenance / Water
Management Services with Lake Doctors,
Inc.
Mr. Oliver stated Lake Doctors is the lake maintainer at the District. This will be the

second amendment to their basic agreement. There is no increase for this year.

On MOTION by Mr. Dodson seconded by Mr. Hill with all in favor
the Second Amendment for Renewal of Lake Maintenance / Water
Management Services with Lake Doctors, Inc. was approved.

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Update to Amenity Policies
& Procedures
This item was tabled.
ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Proposals for Fence

Installation for Playground Area
Mr. Oliver stated at the last meeting we talked about fence installation for the playground

area. Brian Stephens has brought the board some proposals for installation of that fence.

Mr. Stephens stated I reached out to four different vendors. Three of the four vendors
said they could not get silver plate. I reached out to the fourth vendor, which was the same
vendor that did the pool fence. They gave us an exact match to the pool fence. They gave us
two different height options, which were 48 inches and 60 inches. Both include two gates on
either side of the playground. They will also be core drilling the sidewalk, so that the shade
structure and the bench will be inside of the fence structure. One proposal was for $9,839.76 for
the 48 inch fence and for the 60 inch it 1s $10,034.99.




August 21, 2019 Bannon Lakes CDD

Mzr. Dodson stated so 60 inch fence would match the pool but a 48 inch fence is standard

for a playground.

On MOTION by Mr. Dodson seconded by Mr. Hill with all in favor
the Proposal for the 60 Inch Fence for the Playground Area was
approved.

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Proposals for Pest Control
Services
Mr. Oliver stated included in your agenda package is a proposal for pest control services

at the amenity center. This is in the amount of $150 a month. I executed this proposal to get the

service started without delay.

On MOTION by Mr, Dodson seconded by Mr. Hill with all in favor
the Proposal for Pest Control Services was ratified.

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Other Business
Mr. Oliver stated earlier today, we discussed the coordination of a Landcare proposal for
additional areas. The other areas are for IGP, the other side of Duran Drive and the back rear

bank of the new pond in the back. We still have some questions about their pricing.

On MOTION by Mr. Dodson seconded by Mr. Hill with all in favor
the Landcare Proposal to Include Additional Areas was approved in
substantial form, subject to agreement on pricing and coverage area

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports

A. District Counsel
There being none, the next item followed.

B. District Engineer
There being none, the next item followed.

C. District Manager — Presentation of Annual Meeting Schedule for FY2020
Mr. Oliver stated T would like to defer the annual meeting schedule for Fiscal Year 2020

to the next meeting. T do want to take a look at other options for meeting space. One of the

places I want to look at is the St. Augustine Airport.




August 21, 2019 Bannon Lakes CDD

Ms. Buchanan stated the airport’s meeting space is free.

D. Field Services — Operations Memorandum
Mir. Stephens stated we have purchased and installed a new television under the veranda.

We have also installed three of the benches inside of the dog park. The exteriors of the fitness
center and the clubhouse have been pressure washed., An infant swing was added to the swing
set and the other swing was lowered. Freedom Pest Control has completed the annual termite
inspection, as well as started the regular pest control service. Landcare has removed multiple
dead trees at the clubhouse. The one behind the sign at the entry is on their list. It was supposed
to have been done yesterday but I have not been by there to verify it yet.

Mr. Dodson stated it sounds like there are two other ones on the boulevard that have died.

M. Stephens stated they are weak looking, but they are not totally dead yet. I talked to

the landscapers here about doing a deep root fertilization on all of them.

E. Amenity Report— Manager’s Report
Ms. Nixon stated everything has been going smooth, so far. We have been having Food

Truck Thursday’s. We have done a movie night. We also did a princess meet and greet with the
Flsa and Anna sisters. We had an ice cream truck come out for National Ice Cream Day. We
had a trunk sale. Next time, we will probably do that one in the evening because of the heat. We
had a lot of kids participate in that, as well. I have gotten with the Jacksonville Jaguars to do the
Chiefs game tickets for a new offer. If you purchase tickets, they are also including free tickets
to the preseason Falcons game. The residents are requesting a sunshade over a portion of the
pool area, another trash can and a Stairmaster. We are also gefting Yoga classes going.
Residents are also asking for a squat rack. We got prices from Stephen Wilkinson for a Smith
Machine.

Mr. Dodson asked are there some machines that are not being used?

Ms. Nixon responded there are. 1 can send you a report on the usage of them.

Mr. Dodson stated we should get a proposal {from Life Fitness.

FIFTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor’s  Request and  Audience
Comments
Mr. Hill stated with the new sod that was just installed it looks like some drainage was

blocked.
Mr. Stephens stated I will take a look at it.




August 21, 2019 Bannon Lakes CDD

A resident asked how much did the benches cost?

Mr. Stephens responded they were about $400 a piece with shipping and installation.

A resident asked how do we get the construction people to stop feeding the alligators?

Mr. Dodson responded we need to put a notice out to the builders.

A resident stated my kids were the ones that had the Spanish music playing at the pool.

Mr. Oliver stated we have to do what is best for the community and we will take a look at
the policies.

A resident stated there is a daycare center right across the street, so maybe that will help

out with the fitness center.

SIXTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Financial Reports
A. Balance Sheet as of July 31, 2019 and Statement of Revenues & Expenditures
Mr. Oliver stated included in your agenda package is the balance sheet and income

statement as of July 31, 2019.

B. Assessment Receipt Schedule
Mr, Oliver stated included in your agenda package is a copy of the assessment receipt

schedule.

C. Approval of Check Register

Mr. Oliver stated included in your agenda package is the check register.

On MOTION by Mr. Dodson seconded by Ms. Scandura with all in
favor the Check Register was approved.

D. Consideration of Construction Funding Request No. 20
Mr. Oliver stated included in your agenda package is Construction Funding Request No.

20.

On MOTION by Mr. Hill seconded by Mr. Dodson with all i favor
Construction Funding Request No. 20 was approved.

SEVENTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Next Scheduled Meeting — September 18,
2019 at 1:00 p.m. at the Offices of GMS

10



August 21, 2019 Bannon Lakes CDI

Mr. Oliver stated the next meeting is September 18 but we will only hold it if we feel it
is necessary.

EIGHTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment

On MOTION by Mr. Hill seconded by Mr. Scandura with all in
favor the Meeting was adjourned.

Secretary / Assistant Secretary Chairperson / Vice Chairperson

11



FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS



MINUTES OF MEETING
BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

An audit commitiee meeting of the Bannon Lakes Community Development District was
held on Wednesday, August 21, 2019 at 1:00 p.m. at the Offices of GMS, 475 West Town Place,
Suite 114, St. Augustine, FL. 32092.

Present and constituting a quorum were:

John Dodson Committee Member
Linda Scandura Committee Member
Chris Hill Committee Member

Also present were:

Jim Oliver District Manager
Katie Buchanan District Counsel
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call

Mr. Oliver called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Review and Ranking of Audit Proposals
Mr. Oliver stated the District published a request for proposals (REFP) and received the

two proposals included in your agenda package. Both firms are highly qualified. The firms are
Grau & Associates and Berger, Toombs. At the last audit committee, you selected audit criteria
to use to select the auditor. Grau & Associates came in at $11,700 for three years and Berger,
Toombs came in at $11,895. Grau & Associates would get 20 points for being the lowest priced
firm, Berger, Toombs would get 19.67 points, The other four criteria are the ability of
personnel, proposers experience, understanding the scope of work and ability to furnish the
required services. The incumbent auditor is Berger, Toombs. We did receive the audit late and I
think that is a nick against the incumbent. My rankings have Grau & Associates with 99 points
and Berger, Toombs at 97.67. Grau & Associates would be ranked first and Berger, Toombs

ranked second.




August 21, 2019 Bannon Lakes CDD

On MOTION by Mr. Dodson seconded by Mr. Hill with all in favor
the Ranking of Grau & Associates as the #1 Firm and Berger,
Toombs as the #2 Ranked Firm was approved.

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Other Business
There being none, the next item followed.

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment

On MOTION by Mr. Dodson seconded by Mr. Hill with all in favor
the Meeting was adjourned.




FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS



951 Yamato Road = Suite 280
. Boca Raton, Florida 33431
G]_'au & ASSOC[ateS (561) 994-9209 - (800) 299-4728
Fax (561) 994.5823
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Www.graucpa.com

August 29, 2019

Board of Supervisors

Bannon Lakes Community Development District
cfo GMS, LLC

475 West Town Place, Suite 114

St Augustine, FL 32092

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide Bannon Lakes Community Development
District, St. John's County, Florida ("the District”) for the fiscat year ended September 30, 2019, with the option of two (2)
additional one-year renewals. We will audit the financial statements of the governmental acliviies and each major fund,
including the related notes to the financial statements, which coliectively comprise the basic financial statements of Bannon
Lakes Community Development District as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019, with the option of two (2)
additional one-year renewals. In addition, we will examine the District’s compliance with the requirements of Section 218.415
Florida Statutes.

Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America provide for certain required supplementary
information (RSH), such as management's discussion and analysis (MD&A), fo supplement the District's basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financiat
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain
limited procedures to the District's RSI in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, These limited procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audif of the basic financial statements. We will not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the iimited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

The foliowing RSI is required by generally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to certain limited procedures,
but will not be audited:

1) Management’s Discussion and Analysis.
2) Budgetary comparison schedule
Audit Objectives

The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in alil
material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and to repert on the fairness of the
supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when considered in relation to the financial statements as a
whole. Our audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States, and will include tests of the accounting records of the District and other procedures we consider necessary fo
enable us to express such opinions. We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the District's financial
statements. We cannot provide assurance that an unmodified opinion will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it
is necessary for us to modify our opinion or add emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraphs. if our opinion on the financial
statements is other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. I, for any reason, we are unable to
complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed an opinicn, we may decline to express an opinion or issue a
report, or may withdraw from this engagement.

We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion} on internal control related to the financial statements and
compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
material effect on the financial statements as required by Government Audifing Standards. The report on internal control and
on compliance and other matters will include a paragraph that states (1) that the purpose of the report is solely to describe the
scope of testing of internal control and compliance, and the resuits of that testing, and not to provide an opinicn on the
effectiveness of the District's internal conirot on compliance, and (2) that the report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control and compliance. The paragraph
will also state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose. If during our audit we become aware that the District is
subject to an audit requirement that is not encompassed in the terms of this engagement, we will communicate fo
management and those charged with governance that an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards



Bannon Lakes Community Development District Page 2

and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards may not satisfy the relevant legal,
reguiatory, or contractual requirements.

Examination Objective

The objective of our examination is the expression of an opirion as to whether the District is in compliance with Florida Statute
218.415 in accordance with Rule 10.556(10) of the Auditor General of the State of Florida. Our examination will be conducted
in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institue of Certified Public Accountants and will include
tests of your records and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such an opinion. We will issue a
written report upon completion of our examination of the District's compliance. The report will include a statement that the
report is intended solely for the information and use of management, those charged with governance, and the Florida Auditor
General, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. We cannot provide
assurance that an unmodified opinion will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our
opinion or add emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraphs. If cur opinion on the District's compliance is other than
unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the examinafion or
are unable fo form or have not formed an opinion, we may decline to express an opinion or issue a report, or may withdraw
from this engagement.

Management Responsihilities

Management is responsible for the financial statements and all accompanying information as well as all representations
contained therein. Further, management is responsible for compliance with Florida Statute 218.415 and will provide us with the
information required for the examination. The accuracy and completeness of such information is alsc management's
responsibility. As part of the audit, we will assist with preparation of your financial statements and related notes in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles based on information provided by you. These nonaudit services do not
constitute an audit under Government Auditing Standards and such services will not be conducted in accordance with
Gavernment Audifing Standards. You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements and
related nofes and any other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the management
representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements and related notes and that you have reviewed
and approved the financial statements and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility for them. In
addition, you will be required to make certain representations regarding compliance with Florida Statute 218.415 in the
management representation letter. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual,
preferably from seniocr management, who possesses suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and
results of those services, and accept responsibility for them.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal controls, incliding evaluating and monitoring
ongoing activities, to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; following laws and regulations; and ensuring
that management is reliable and financial information is reliable and properly reported. Management is also responsible for
implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with appiicable laws, regulations, confracts, and grant agreements.
You are also responsible for the selection and application of accounting principles, for the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements and all accompanying information in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles,
and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements.

Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available {o us and for the accuracy
and completeness of that information. You are aiso responsible for providing us with (1) access to all information of which you
are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, {2) additional information that we
may request for the purpose of the audit, and {3) unrestricted access to persons within the government from whom we
determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for confirming to us in the
written representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during the current
engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the
financial stalements taken as a whole. As part of our engagement, we may propose standard adjusting, or correcting journal
entries fo your financial statements. You are responsible for reviewing the entries and understanding the nature of the
proposed entries and the impact they have on the financial statements.

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls fo prevent and detect fraud, and for informing
us about ali known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) management, {2) employees who have
significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial staiements,
Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any altegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the
government received in communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others. in addition, you
are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government complies with applicable laws, regulations, coniracts,
agreements, and grants and for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and nohcompliance with provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts or grant agreements, or abuse that we report.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and
recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report copies of previcus financial audits,
attestation engagements, performance audits or ofher studies related to the objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives
section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address significant findings and




Bannon Lakes Community Development District Page 3

recommendations resuling from those audits, atfestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies. You are also
responsible for providing management's views on our current findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as your
planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for providing that information.

With regard fo the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements published
electronically on your website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to distribute information and, therefore, we are
not required to read the information confained in these sites or to consider the consistency of other information in the
electronic site with the original document.

Audit Procedures—General

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements;
therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be examined and the areas to be tested. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We will
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable rather than absolute assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reperting, (3} misappropriation of assets, or (4)
violations of iaws or governmental regulations that are atfributable to the government or to acts by management or employees
acting on behalf of the government. Because the determination of abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not
expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting abuse.

Because of the inherent fimitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and because we wilt
not perform a detailed examination of all fransactions, there is a risk that material misstatements may exist and not be
detected by us, even though the audit is properily pltanned and performed in accordance with .S, generally accepted auditing
standards and Government Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or
violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our
responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to later periods for which we are not
engaged as auditors.

Qur procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts, and may
include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain other assets and
liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial institutions. We will request
written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill you for responding to this inquiry. At
the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations from you about your responsibifities for the financial
statements; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and other responsibifities required by
generally accepted auditing standards.

Audit Procedures—Internal Control

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the government and its environment, inctuding internal control, sufficient to
assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature, timing, and extent of further
audit procedures. Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls that we consider refevant {o
preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial statements and fo preventing and detecting
misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal
control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal confrol issued pursuant to Government Audifing
Standards.

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or material weaknesses.
However, during the audit, we will communicate o management and those charged with governance internal control related
matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards and Government Auditing Standards.

Audit Procedures—Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, we will
perform tests of the District’'s compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants.
However, the objective of our audit wilt not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we wil! not express such an
opinicn in our report on compliance issued pursuant to Government Audifing Standards.

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash or other confirmations we request and will iocate any documents
selected by us for testing.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Grau & Associates and constitutes confidential information.
However, subject to applicable laws and regulatfons, audit documentation and appropriate individuals will be made available
upon request and in a timely manner to a cognizant or oversight agency or its designee, a federal agency providing direct or
indirect funding, or the U.5. Government Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review of the audit, {o resoive audit
findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. If requested, access to such audit
documentation will be provided under the supervision of Grau & Associates personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may




Bannon Lakes Community Development District Page 4

provide copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties. These parfies may intend, or decide, to
distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the parties acknowledge that various documents reviewed or produced during the conduct of the audit may be
public records under Florida law. The District agrees fo notify Grau & Associates of any public record request it receives that
involves audit documentation.

This agreement provides for a contract period of one (1) year with the option of two (2) additional, one-year renewals upon the
written consent of both parties. Qur fee for these services will not exceed $3,800 for the September 30, 2019 audit. The fees
for the fiscal years 2020 and 2021 will not exceed $3,900 and $4,000, respectively, unless there is a change in activity by the
District which results in additional audit work or if Bonds are issued.

We will complete the audit within prescribed statutory deadlines, which requires the District to submit its annual audit to the
Auditor General no tater than nine (9) months after the end of the audited fiscal year, with the understanding that your
employees will provide information needed to perform the audit on a timely basis.

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report release date. If we
are aware that a federal awarding agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party{ies) contesting the
audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation.

Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. nvoices will be
submitted in sufficient detail to demonstrate compliance with the terms of this agreement. In accordance with our firm policies,
work may be suspended if your account becomes 60 days or more overdue and may not be resumed untit your account is paid
in full. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon
written notification of termination, even if we have not completed our report. You will be obligated to compensate us for all time
expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket costs through the date of termination. The above fee is based on
anticipated cooperation from your perscnnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered
during the audit. If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate.

The District may terminate this agreement, with or without consent, upon thirty (30) days written notice of termination to Grau
& Associates. Upon any termination of this agreement, Grau & Associates shall be entitled to payment of all work and/or
services rendered up until the date of the notice of termination subject to any offsets the District may have against Grau &
Asscciates.

We will provide you with a copy of our most recent external peer review report and any letter of comment, and any subsequent
peer review reports and lefters of comment received during the pericd of the contract. Cur 2016 peer review report
accompanies this letter.

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Bannon Lakes Community Development District and believe this letter
accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. if you agree
with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and refurmn it to us.

Very truly yours,

Grau & Assocciates

A
.

Antonic J. Grau

RESPONSE:

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Bannon Lakes Community Development District.

Title: (/ XQ&L_&A/}
e (9 (2019

t




Page 5

Bannon Lakes Community Development District

ngw
%}x»& k?xz..m ey ....h&.ﬁ
I k_n.b...,._ mcﬂw y.._z:_\ |

-

s ‘%H%EWF ?mﬁﬁﬁ&a i wsgéacu S_ apumInSSY; aﬁmaﬁnﬂ 53. .Ea .:w av?eﬁ i u.ﬁﬁ aqﬁ
i .&? atfy Funp yiis, Porduion sy pus VAORY 4L ig PRSIGEISA aasesd Sunipne pue Sujunoooy ue .S.h.. .

mﬁ.ﬁﬁ:ﬁa LTl Anjenk. g .,qo mEaEﬁE_uﬁ iyl Pl O} pauSisap Umnq SBIE UM mmc ‘0f. aung vuﬁau
Esﬂ uﬁ dap Eu,cw ut uusuﬁm m.c;_m% pue c::ancuua su Z.m B._ 103 &__maw B W3S A5 @ Fupamgaog .

selel00ssY  Neio

=
aosﬁmmumm wa 33@3%0

_M_ 8t H_ﬁﬁ;ﬁ&cuﬁzca st




SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS



From:
Subject:
Date:
To:

Margaret Shultls margaret@shultis.net &
Re: Bannon Lakes CDD

August 23, 2019 at 11:36 AM

Shelby Stephens sstephens@gmsnf.com

Shelby,

Effective immediately | am resigning from my position on the Bannon Lakes CDD.
Please advise if you need anything further.

See attached

On Fri, Aug 23, 2019 at 11:17 AM Shelby Stephens <sstephens@gmsnf.com> wrote:
Margaret,

Please comptlete the attached forms { Form 1 & Form 1F ) below and return to me. | will forward to the appropriate
authorities.

Than you,

Shelby Stephens
Office Administrator

& Recording Secretary
GMS,LLC

475 West Town Place, Suite 114
St. Augustine, Florida 32092
Phone: (904) 940-5850 Ext 400
Fax: (904) 940-5899

WWW, SOVIMELSYC. Com

Margaret Shultis

www. margaretstovelylashes.com

Finanical
disclos...DD.pdf




SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS



RESOLUTION 2020-01

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE
BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT TO
DESIGNATE DATE, TIME AND PLACE OF PUBLIC HEARING AND
AUTHORIZATION TO PUBLISH NOTICE OF SUCH HEARING FOR
THE PURPOSE OF ADOPTING AMENDED AND RESTATED RULES
OF PROCEDURE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, Bannon Lakes Community Development District (the “District”) is a local unit

of special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being
sitwated entirely within St. Johns County, Florida; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the District (the “Board”) 1s authorized by Section
190.011(5), Florida Statutes, to adopt rules and orders pursuant to Chapter 120, Florida Statutes.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS OF THE BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT:

SECTION 1. A Public Hearing will be held to adopt the District’s Amended and Restated
Rules of Procedure on 20, at ., at

3

SECTION 2. The District Secretary is directed to publish notice of the hearing in
accordance with Section 120.54, Florida Statutes.

SECTION 3. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 6" day of November, 2019,

ATTEST: BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairman, Board of Supervisors




Hopping Green & Sams

Atorneys and Counselors

MEMORANDUM
TO: Bannon Lakes Community Development District
Board of Supervisors
FROM: Katie Buchanan
RE: Updated Provisions of the District’s Rules of Procedure
DATE: October 30, 2019

Please find attached to this memorandum an updated version of the Bannon Lakes
Community Development District’s (the “District’s”) Rules of Procedure (the “Rules™). Several
substantive revisions were made to maintain consistency between the Rules and the current Florida
Statutes, including changes implemented in the most recent legislative session, as well as to
facilitate greater efficiency in the operation of the District. An explanation of each material change
to the Rules is provided below. Minor formatting changes and edits are not discussed. Should you
have any questions regarding the revisions to the Rules, please do not hesitate to contact me via e-
mail at katieb@hgslaw.com or via phone at 850-222-7500.

Costs Associated With Public Records Requests (Pages 8-9)

Language was added to Rule 1.2(4) to reflect statutory language regarding calculation of
special charges for responding to certain public records requests, and to state that the District is
under no duty to produce requested records if the requestor has not paid the required costs or has
outstanding charges. The language will help minimize expenses incurred by the District in
responding to public records requests.

Financial Disclosure Coordination (Page 9)

Rule 1.2(7) was added to maintain consistency with legislation that was passed during the
2019 legislative session. The rule designates the Secretary as the District’s Financial Disclosure
Coordinator (the “Coordinator”) (unless the District designates otherwise by resolution) and
requires the Coordinator to create, maintain, and update certain records and provide them to the
Florida Commission on Ethics by certain deadlines. Each Supervisor or other Reporting Individual
must notify the Coordinator in writing if there are changes to his or her name, e-mail address, or
physical address, and must notify the Commission on Ethics of changes to his or her e-mail address.

Agenda and Meeting Materials (Page 11)

Rule 1.3(3) was amended to reflect statutory requirements that the agenda and meeting
materials available in an electronic format, excluding confidential and exempt information, shall be

Post Office Box 6526 Tallahassee, Florida 32314 119 South Monroe Street, Suite 300 (32301) 850.222.7500  850.224.8551fax  www hgslaw.com



made available to the public at least seven days before a meeting, hearing, or workshop. The
amended rule also clarifies circumstances in which the agenda may be amended or additional
materials added after initial posting. It additionally specifies which documents constitute “meeting
materials.” Documents that do not meet the definition of “meeting materials” may still be provided
to the Board, but will be considered supplementary materials and are not required to be made
available to the public before the meeting. Supplementary materials may include, but are not
necessarily limited to, the following: financial statements, informational reports, and copies of
receipts and invoices.

Flexibility for Board Authorization (Page 13)

Language was added to Rule 1.3(11) to allow the Board to waive formal approval or
disapproval procedures. This will allow the Board flexibility to use different procedures when
necessary and will protect the validity of the Board’s actions where there is a technical irregularity
but the Board has otherwise made its decision clear.

Security and Firesafety Board Discussions (Page 14)

Rule 1.3(14) was added to reflect the fact that portions of a meeting which would reveal a
security or firesafety system plan or portion thereof made confidential and exempt by Florida law
are exempt from Florida’s statutory public meeting requirements. Including this rule will clarify the
procedures the Board should use to ensure that confidential and exempt information is not made
public.

Internal Controls to Prevent Fraud. Waste and Abuse (Page 15)

Rule 1.4 was added to reflect legislative changes enacted in the 2019 legislative session
requiring special districts to establish and maintain internal controls to prevent fraud, waste, and
abuse. Our office plans to work with the District Manager and auditor to develop the internal
controls, which the Board will adopt in the same manner as it does policies.

Notice of Competitive Solicitation (Pages 27 and 36)

Rules 3.1(3) and 3.3(2)(c) have been amended to state that when a consultant has asked to
be provided with notice of the District’s competitive solicitations, the District Manager’s failure to
provide them with a copy of the notice will not give them bid protest rights or otherwise disqualify
the District’s otherwise valid procurement. This will reduce the District’s exposure to potential bid
protests and decrease the likelihood of a procurement being considered invalid due to a technical
irregularity.

Procedure Regarding Auditor Selection (Page 31)

Language has been added to the introductory paragraph to Rule 3.2 to clarify that the
District need not use the procedures set out by the Rule for audits required under Chapter 190 of the
Florida Statutes but which do not meet the thresholds of Chapter 218 of the Florida Statutes.

Additionally, the requirements for composition of the Auditor Selection Committee in Rule
3.2(2) have been amended to reflect legislation passed during the 2019 legislative session. Now, at




least one individual on the Committee must be a member of the Board; the Chairperson of the
Committee must be a member of the Board; and an employee, chief executive officer, or chief
financial officer of the District may not be a member of the Committee but may serve in an advisory
capacity.

Contract Periods {Pages 34, 56, and 59

Rules 3.2(8)(d), 3.8(5), and 3.9(4) have been amended to set the maximum contract period
for auditing services, the maximum renewal period for contracts for the purchase of goods, supplies,
materials, and the maximum renewal period for contracts for maintenance services at five (5) years.
This will provide greater specificity to guide contract terms.

Suspension, Revocation, or Denial of Qualification (Pages 40-42)

Rule 3.4(3) has been added to specify the procedures to be used if the District wishes to
suspend, revoke, or deny a pre-qualified vendor’s pre-qualified status. It specifies what constitutes
good cause for such suspension, revocation, or denial; the effect of the suspension, revocation, or
denial; hearing procedures the District must follow; and factors influencing the time period of the
suspension, revocation, or denial.

Protest Bonds (Pages 61-62)

Rule 3.11(1)(c) has been amended to require that both the requirement for and the amount of
the protest bond be disclosed in the competitive solicitation documents, and to allow the amount of
the bond to be any amount within the limits imposed by Florida law.



Minor Changes

The following minor changes have also been made to the Rules:

Rule 1.1(1): This Rule has been amended to clarify requirements for Board members appointed or
elected to elector seats. (Page 2).

Rule 1.1(2)(c) and (d): These Rules have been amended to include the words “at least” before the
required amounts of the Secretary’s or Treasurer’s fidelity bonds or employee theft insurance
policies to accommodate the possibility of greater amounts. (Page 4).

Rule 1.1(6): This Rule has been amended to include the Florida Constitution as a governing
authority on voting conflicts of interest. This change reflects the recently passed Amendment 12 to
the Florida Constitution. (Pages 5-6).

Rules 1.3(1){e). (1)(d), (1}D); and 3.2(9): These Rules were amended to allow inclusion of language
substantially similar to that recited in the Rules. (Pages 10-11 and 34).

Rule 1.3(6): This Rule was amended to require the chair or vice chair to consult with the District

Manager and District Counsel, if they are available, before calling an emergency meeting.
(Page 12).

Rule 2.0{12)(d): This Rule has been amended to allow 90 days instead of 60 days for the Board to
announce a decision on a petition for variance or waiver of its Rules. (Page 21).

Rule 3.0(3)(b): The dollar thresholds in this Rule have been increased to $2,000,000 for a study
activity when the fee for such Professional Services to the District does not exceed the increased
amount of $200,000, to reflect the current statutory thresholds. (Page 22).

Rules 3.1(4)(b). 3.6(2)(c)(ii}6., and 3.8(2)(k): The word “responsive” has been added to allow the
Board to proceed with evaluating and selecting a proposal from the submissions if it receives fewer
than three responsive proposals. (Pages 28, 49 and 55).

Rule 3.2(3)(b): “Understanding of scope of work™ has been removed from the list of required
factors used to evaluate auditing proposals. The District may still include this as an evaluation
criterion if it wishes, but it is not required to do so. (Page 32).

Rule 3.2(7)b): Language has been added to specify that if the Board does not select the highest-
ranked qualified auditing firm, it must document in its records its reason for not doing so. (Page 33).

Rules 3.5(2)(e) and 3.6(2)(c)(i)3.: “Reemployment assistance” has been added to the non-exclusive
list of subjects of federal labor or employment laws of which violation may render a contractor
ineligible to submit a bid, response, or proposal for a District project. (Pages 44 and 48).

Rule 3.11(6): Language was added specifying that the District may reject all qualifications,
proposals, replies, or responses and start the competitive solicitation process anew if all of the bids,
proposals, replies, and responses are too high. (Page 63).



AMENDED AND RESTATED
RULES OF PROCEDURE

BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

EFFECTIVE AS OF , 20
TABLE OF CONTENTS
Rule 1.0 GeRETAL . ooiiiis ettt sttt et e s s rer e s ra e e e e s e an e e e s skt eean e e eaares 2
Rule 1.1 Board of Supervisors; Officers and Voting. ......coocvveeioeiiic i, 3
Rule 1.2 District Offices; Public Information and Inspection of Records; Policies;
Service Coniract Requirements; Financial Disclosure Coordination.......... 7
Rule 1.3 Public Meetings, Hearings, and Workshops. ......c.ccoovvvvviiniiiiincicin 10
Rule 1.4 Internal Controls to Prevent Fraud, Waste and Abuse ..........cccooeeeveennnes 15
Rule 2.0 Rulemaking Proceedings. ......cccverierieriiiiniiiir s san e s 16
Rule 3.0 Competitive PUrchase. .........ccociovviniiiiiiiii it 22
Rule 3.1 Procedure Under the Consultants' Competitive Negotiations Act. ........... 27
Rule 3.2 Procedure Regarding Auditor Selection. ........ccccoveeviniimeeincrccniniennn 31
Rule 3.3 Purchase of INSUTANCE. ....c.veeiriveeercececiice e e 36
Rule 3.4 Pre-qualification. ... ...t s 38
Rule 3.5 Construction Contracts, Not Design-Build. ..........coooiiinn, 43
Rule 3.6 Construction Contracts, Design-Build..........ccooviiviiniii, 47
Rule 3.7 Payment and Performance Bonds. .......c.ccoocovevvriiii 52
Rule 3.8 Goods, Supplies, and Materials.............c..ccii 53
Rule 3.9 Maintenance SEIVICES. .uvivurvveivrererieiereieree s s s e 57
Rule 3.10 Comtractiial SEIVICES. .vvivie ettt 60
Rule 3.11 Protests with Respect to Proceedings under Rules 3.1,3.2,3.3,3.4, 3.5,
3.6,3.8,800 3.9, oo 61
Rule 4.0  Effective Date. oottt e e s 64



Rule 1.0

(1)

&)

3)

“4)

General.

The Bannon Lakes Community Development District (the “District”) was created
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 190 of the Florida Statutes, and was
established to provide for the ownership, operation, maintenance, and provision of
various capital facilities and services within its jurisdiction. The purpose of these
rules (the “Rules™) is to describe the general operations of the District.

Definitions located within any section of these Rules shall be applicable within all
other sections, unless specifically stated to the contrary.

Unless specifically permitted by a written agreement with the District, the District
does not accept documents filed by electronic mail or facsimile transmission.
Filings are only accepted during normal business hours.

A Rule of the District shall be effective upon adoption by affirmative vote of the
District Board. After a Rule becomes effective, it may be repealed or amended
only through the rulemaking procedures specified in these Rules.
Notwithstanding, the District may immediately suspend the application of a Rule
if the District determines that the Rule conflicts with Florida law. In the event
that a Rule conflicts with Florida law and its application has not been suspended
by the District, such Rule should be interpreted in the manner that best effectuates
the intent of the Rule while also complying with Florida law. If the intent of the
Rule absolutely cannot be effectuated while complying with Florida law, the Rule
shall be automatically suspended.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fia. Stat.




Rule 1.1

(D

@

Board of Supervisors; Officers and Voting.

Board of Supervisors. The Board of Supervisors of the District (the “Board™) shall
consist of five (5) members. Members of the Board (“Supervisors™) appointed by
ordinance or rule or elected by landowners must be citizens of the United States
of America and residents of the State of Florida. Supervisors elected or appointed
by the Board to elector seats must be citizens of the United States of America,
residents of the State of Florida and of the District and registered to vote with the
Supervisor of Elections of the county in which the District is located and for those
elected, shall also be qualified to run by the Supervisor of Elections. The Board
shall exercise the powers granted to the District under Florida law.

() Supervisors shall hold office for the term specified by Section 190.006 of
the Florida Statutes. If, during the term of office, any Board member(s)
vacates their office, the remaining member(s) of the Board shall fill the
vacancies by appointment for the remainder of the term(s). If three or
more vacancies exist at the same time, a quorum, as defined herein, shall
not be required to appoint replacement Board members.

() Three (3) members of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the purposes
of conducting business, exercising powers and all other purposes. A
Board member shall be counted toward the quorum if physically present at
the meeting, regardless of whether such Board member is prohibited from,
or abstains from, participating in discussion or voting on a particular item.

(c) Action taken by the Board shall be upon a majority vote of the members
present, unless otherwise provided in the Rules or required by law.
Subject to Rule 1.3(10), a Board member participating in the Board
meeting by teleconference or videoconference shall be entitled to vote and
take all other action as though physically present.

(d)  Unless otherwise provided for by an act of the Board, any one Board
member may attend a mediation session on behalf of the Board. Any
agreement resulting from such mediation session must be approved
pursuant to subsection (1){c) of this Rule.

Officers. At the first Board meeting held after each election where the newly
elected members take office, the Board shall select a Chairperson, Vice-
Chairperson, Secretary, Assistant Secretary, and Treasurer.

(a) The Chairperson must be a member of the Board. If the Chairperson
resigns from that office or ceases to be a member of the Board, the Board
shall select a Chairperson. The Chairperson serves at the pleasure of the
Board. The Chairperson shall be authorized to execute resolutions and
contracts on the District’s behalf. The Chairperson shall convene and
conduct all meetings of the Board. In the event the Chairperson is unable




(b)

(©)

(d)

(©)

to attend a meeting, the Vice-Chairperson shall convene and conduct the
meeting. The Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson may delegate the
responsibility of conducting the meeting to the District’s manager
(“District Manager™) or District Counsel, in whole or in part.

The Vice-Chairperson shall be a member of the Board and shall have such
duties and responsibilities as specifically designated by the Board from
time to time. The Vice-Chairperson has the authority to execute
resolutions and contracts on the District’s behall in the absence of the
Chairperson. If the Vice-Chairperson resigns from office or ceases to be a
member of the Board, the Board shall select a Vice-Chairperson. The
Vice-Chairperson serves at the pleasure of the Board.

The Secretary of the Board serves at the pleasure of the Board and need
not be a member of the Board. The Secretary shall be responsible for
maintaining the minutes of Board meetings and may have other duties
assigned by the Board from time to time. An employee of the District
Manager may serve as Secretary. The Secretary shall be bonded by a
reputable and qualified bonding company in at least the amount of one
million dollars ($1,000,000), or have in place a fidelity bond, employee
theft insurance policy, or a comparable product in at least the amount of
one million dollars ($1,000,000) that names the District as an additional
insured.

The Treasurer need not be a member of the Board but must be a resident
of the State of Florida. The Treasurer shall perform duties described in
Section 190.007(2) and (3) of the Florida Statutes, as well as those
assigned by the Board from time to time. The Treasurer shall serve at the
pleasure of the Board. The Treasurer shall either be bonded by a reputable
and gualified bonding company in at least the amount of one million
dollars ($1,000,000), or have in place a fidelity bond, employee theft
insurance policy, or a comparable product in at least the amount of one
million dollars ($1,000,000) that names the District as an additional
nsured.

In the event that both the Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson are absent
from a Board meeting and a quorum is present, the Board may designate
one of its members or a member of District staff to convene and conduct
the meeting. In such circumstances, any of the Board members present are
authorized to execute agreements, resolutions, and other documents
approved by the Board at such meeting. In the event that the Chairperson
and Vice-Chairperson are both unavailable to execute a document
previously approved by the Board, the Secretary or any Assistant
Secretary may execute such document.



)

4)

()

(6)

(5 The Board may assign additional duties to District officers from time to
time, which include, but are not limited to, executing documents on behalf
of the District.

(g) The Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, and any other person authorized by
District Resolution may sign checks and warrants for the District,
countersigned by the Treasurer or other persons authorized by the Board.

Committees. The Board may establish committees of the Board, either on a
permanent or temporary basis, to perform specifically designated functions.
Committees may include individuals who are not members of the Board. Such
functions may include, but are not limited to, review of bids, proposals, and
qualifications, contract negotiations, personnel matters, and budget preparation.

Record Book. The Board shall keep a permanent record book entitled “Record of
Proceedings,” in which shall be recorded minutes of all meetings, resolutions,
proceedings, certificates, and corporate acts. The Records of Proceedings shall be
located at a District office and shall be available for inspection by the public.

Meetings. For each fiscal year, the Board shall establish a schedule of regular
meetings, which shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the
county in which the District is located and filed with the local general-purpose
governments within whose boundaries the District is located. All meetings of the
Board and Committees serving an advisory function shall be open to the public in
accord with the provisions of Chapter 286 of the Florida Statutes.

Voting Conflict of Interest. The Board shall comply with Section 112.3143 of the
Florida Statutes, so as to ensure the proper disclosure of conflicts of interest on
matters coming before the Board for a vote. For the purposes of this section,
"voting conflict of interest” shall be governed by the Florida Constitution and
Chapters 112 and 190 of the Florida Statutes, as amended from time to time.
Generally, a voting conflict exists when a Board member is called upon to vote on
an item which would inure to the Board member’s special private gain or loss or
the Board member knows would inure to the special private gain or loss of a
principal by whom the Board member is retained, the parent organization or
subsidiary of a corporate principal, a business associate, or a relative including
only a father, mother, son, daughter, husband, wife, brother, sister, father-in-law,
mother-in-law, son-in-law, and daughter-in-law.

(a) When a Board member knows the member has a conflict of interest on a
matter coming before the Board, the member should notify the Board’s
Secretary prior to participating in any discussion with the Board on the
matter. The member shall publicly announce the conflict of interest at the
meeting. This announcement shall appear in the minutes.



If the Board member was elected at a landowner’s election or appointed to
fill a vacancy of a seat last filled at a landowner’s election, the Board
member may vote or abstain from voting on the matter at issue. If the
Board member was elected by electors residing within the District, the
Board member is prohibited from voting on the matter at issue. In the
event that the Board member intends to abstain or is prohibited from =
voting, such Board member shall not participate in the discussion on the
item subject to the vote.

The Board’s Secretary shall prepare a Memorandum of Voting Conflict
(Form 8B) which shall then be signed by the Board member, filed with the
Board’s Secretary, and provided for attachment to the minutes of the
meeting within fifteen (15) days of the meeting.

(b)  If a Board member inadvertently votes on a matter and later learns he or
she has a conflict on the matter, the member shall immediately notify the
Board’s Secretary. Within fifteen (15) days of the notification, the member
shall file the appropriate Memorandum of Voting Conflict, which will be
attached to the minutes of the Board meeting during which the vote on the
matter occurred. The Memorandum of Voting Conflict shall immediately
be provided to other Board members and shall be read publicly at the next
meeting held subsequent to the filing of the Memorandum of Voting
Conflict. The Board member’s vote is unaffected by this filing.

{¢)  Itisnot a conflict of interest for a Board member, the District Manager, or
an employee of the District to be a stockholder, officer or employee of a
landowner or of an entity affiliated with a landowner.

(d) In the event that a Board member elected at a landowner’s election or
appointed to fill a vacancy of a seat last filled at a landowner’s election,
has a continuing conflict of interest, such Board member is permitted to
file a Memorandum of Voting Conflict at any time in which 1t shall state
the nature of the continuing conflict. Only one such continuing
Memorandum of Voting Conflict shall be required to be filed for each
term the Board member is in office.

Specific Autherity: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 112.3143, 196.006, 190.007, Fla. Stat.



Rule 1.2

(D

@

District Offices; Public Information and Inspection of Records; Policies;
Service Contract Requirements; Financial Disclosure Coordination.

District Offices. Unless otherwise designated by the Board, the official District
office shall be the District Manager’s office identified by the District Manager. If
the District Manager’s office is not located within the county in which the District
is located, the Board shall designate a local records office within such county
which shall at a minimum contain, but not be limited to, the following documents:

(a) Agenda packages for prior 24 months and next meeting;
(b) Official minutes of meetings, including adopted resolutions of the Board;

(¢)  Names and addresses of current Board members and District Manager,
unless such addresses are protected from disclosure by law;

(d)  Adopted engineer’s reports;
(e) Adopted assessment methodologies/reports;
43 Adopted disclosure of public financing;

(g) Limited Offering Memorandum for each financing undertaken by the
District;

(h)  Proceedings, certificates, bonds given by all employees, and any and all
corporate acts;

(1) District policies and rules;
6) Fiscal year end audits; and
(k)  Adopted budget for the current fiscal year.

The District Manager shall ensure that each District records office contains the
documents required by Florida law.

Public Records. District public records include all documents, papers, letters,
maps, books, tapes, photographs, films, sound recordings, data processing
software, or other material, regardless of the physical form, characteristics, or
means of transmission, made or received in connection with the transaction of
official business of the District. All District public records not otherwise restricted
by law may be copied or inspected at the District Manager’s office during regular
business hours. Certain District records can also be inspected and copied at the
District’s local records office during regular business hours. All written public
records requests shall be directed to the Secretary who by these rules is appointed

7



&)

4)

as the District’s records custodian. Regardless of the form of the request, any
Board member or staff member who receives a public records request shall
immediately forward or communicate such request to the Secretary for
coordination of a prompt response. The Secretary, after consulting with District
Counsel as to the applicability of any exceptions under the public records laws,
shall be responsible for responding to the public records request. At no time can
the District be required to create records or summaries of records, or prepare
opinions regarding District policies, in response to a public records request.

Service Contracts. Any contract for services, regardless of cost, shall include
provisions required by law that require the contractor to comply with public
records laws. The District Manager shall be responsible for initially enforcing all
contract provisions related to a contractor’s duty to comply with public records
laws.

Fees: Copies. Copies of public records shall be made available to the requesting
person at a charge of $0.15 per page for one-sided copies and $0.20 per page for
two-sided copies if not more than 8 ¥ by 14 inches. For copies of public records
in excess of the sizes listed in this section and for outside duplication services, the
charge shall be equal to the actual cost of reproduction. Certified copies of public
records shall be made available at a charge of one dollar ($1.00) per page. If the
nature or volume of records requested requires extensive use of information
technology resources or extensive clerical or supervisory assistance, the District
may charge, in addition to the duplication charge, a special service charge that is
based on the cost the District incurs to produce the records requested. This charge
may include, but is not limited to, the cost of information technology resource,
employee labor, and fees charged to the District by consultants employed in
fulfilling the request. In cases where the special service charge is based in whole
or in part on the costs incurred by the District due to employee labor, consultant
fees, or other forms of labor, those portions of the charge shall be calculated based
on the lowest labor cost of the individual(s) who is/are qualified to perform the
labor, taking into account the nature or volume of the public records to be
inspected or copied. The charge may include the labor costs of supervisory and/or
clerical staff whose assistance is required to complete the records request, in
accordance with Florida law. For purposes of this Rule, the word “extensive”
shall mean that it will take more than 15 minutes to locate, review for confidential
information, copy and re-file the requested material. In cases where extensive
personnel time is determined by the District to be necessary to safeguard original
records being inspected, the special service charge provided for in this section
shall apply. If the total fees, including but not limited fo special service charges,
are anticipated to exceed twenty-five dollars ($25.00), then, prior to commencing
work on the request, the District will inform the person making the public records
request of the estimated cost, with the understanding that the final cost may vary
from that estimate. If the person making the public records request decides to
proceed with the request, payment of the estimated cost is required in advance.
Should the person fail to pay the estimate, the District is under no duty to produce



the requested records. After the request has been fulfilled, additional payments or
credits may be due. The District 1s under no duty to produce records in response
to future records requests if the person making the request owes the District for
past unpaid duplication charges, special service charges, or other required
payments or credits.

(5)  Records Retention. The Secretary of the District shall be responsible for retaining
the District’s records in accordance with applicable Florida law.

(6)  Policies. The Board may adopt policies related to the conduct of its business and
the provision of services either by resolution or motion.

(7)  Financial Disclosure Coordination. Unless specifically designated by Board
resolution otherwise, the Secretary shall serve as the Financial Disclosure
Coordinator (“Coordinator”) for the District as required by the Florida
Commission on Ethics (“Commission”). The Coordinator shall create, maintain
and update a list of the names, e-mail addresses, physical addresses, and names of
the agency of, and the office or position held by, all Supervisors and other persons
required by Florida law to file a statement of financial interest due to his or her
affiliation with the District (“Reporting Individual”). The Coordinator shail
provide this list to the Commission by February 1 of each year, which list shall be
current as of December 31 of the prior year. Each Supervisor and Reporting
Individual shall promptly notify the Coordinator in writing if there are any
changes to such person’s name, e-mail address, or physical address. Each
Supervisor and Reporting Individual shall promptly notify the Commission in the
manner prescribed by the Commission if there are any changes to such person’s e-
mail address.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 112.31446(3), 112.3145(8)(a)1., 119.07, 119.0701, 190.006, Fla. Stat.



Rule 1.3

(1)

Public Meetings, Hearings, and Workshops.

Notice. Except in emergencies, or as otherwise required by statute or these Rules,
at least seven (7) days, but no more than thirty (30) days public notice shall be
given of any public meeting, hearing or workshop of the Board. Public notice
shall be given by publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the District
and in the county in which the District is located. “General circulation” means a
publication that is printed and published at least once a week for the preceding
year, offering at least 25% of its words in the English language, qualifies as a
periodicals material for postal purposes in the county in which the District is
located, is for sale to the public generally, is available to the public generally for
the publication of official or other notices, and is customarily containing
information of a public character or of interest or of value to the residents or
owners of property in the county where published, or of interest or of value to the
general public. The annual meeting notice required to be published by Section
189.015 of the Florida Statutes, shall be published in a newspaper not of limited
subject matter, which is published at least five days a week, unless the only
newspaper in the county is published less than five days a week. Each Notice
shall state, as applicable:

(a) The date, time and place of the meeting, hearing or workshop;

(b) A brief description of the nature, subjects, and purposes of the meeting,
hearing, or workshop;

(c) The District office address for the submission of requests for copies of the
agenda, as well as a contact name and telephone number for verbal
requests for copies of the agenda; and

()] The following or substantially similar language: “Pursuant to provisions of
the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special
accommodations to participate in this meeting/hearing/workshop is asked
to advise the District Office at least forty-eight (48) hours before the
meeting/hearing/workshop by contacting the District Manager at (904)
940-5850. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the
Florida Relay Service at 1 (800) 955-8770 or 1 (800) 955-8771, who can
aid you in contacting the District Office.”

(e) The following or substantially similar language: “A person who decides to
appeal any decision made at the meeting/hearing/workshop with respect to
any matter considered at the meeting/hearing/workshop is advised that
person will need a record of the proceedings and that accordingly, the
person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is

made including the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal 1s to be
based.”

10




2

3

(H The following or substantially similar language: “The meeting [or hearing
or workshop] may be continued in progress without additional notice to a
time, date, and location stated on the record.”

Mistake. In the event that a meeting is held under the incorrect assumption that
notice required by law and these Rules has been given, the Board af its next
properly noticed meeting shall cure such defect by considering the agenda items
from the prior meeting individually and anew.

Agenda. The District Manager, under the guidance of District Counsel and the
Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson, shall prepare an agenda of the
meeting/hearing/workshop. The agenda and any meeting materials available in an
clectronic format, excluding any confidential and any confidential and exempt
information, shall be available to the public at least seven days before the
meeting/hearing/workshop, except in an emergency. Meeting materials shall be
defined as, and limited to, the agenda, meeting minutes, resolutions, and
agreements of the District that District staff deems necessary for Board approval.
Inclusion of additional materials for Board consideration other than those defined
herein as “meeting materials” shall not convert such materials into “meeting
materials.” For good cause, the agenda may be changed after it is first made
available for distribution, and additional materials may be added or provided
under separate cover at the meeting. The requirement of good cause shall be
liberally construed to allow the District to efficiently conduct business and to
avoid the expenses associated with special meetings.

The District may, but is not required to, use the following format in preparing its
agenda for its regular meetings:

Call to order
Roll call
Public comment
Organizational matters
Review of minutes
Specific items of old business
Specific items of new business
Staff reports
(a) District Counsel
{b) District Engineer
(c) District Manager
1. Financial Report
2. Approval of Expenditures
Supervisor’s requests and comments
Public comment
Adjournment

11



“)

)

(6)

(7)

®)

®

Minutes. The Secretary shall be responsible for preparing and keeping the minutes
of each meeting of the Board. Minutes shall be corrected and approved by the
Board at a subsequent meeting. The Secretary may work with other staff
members in preparing draft minutes for the Board’s consideration.

Special Requests. Persons wishing to receive, by mail, notices or agendas of
meetings, may so advise the District Manager or Secretary at the District Office.
Such persons shall furnish a mailing address in writing and shall be required to
pre-pay the cost of the copying and postage.

Emergency Meetings. The Chairperson, or Vice-Chairperson if the Chairperson is
unavailable, upon consultation with the District Manager and District Counsel, if
available, may convene an emergency meeting of the Board without first having
complied with sections (1) and (3) of this Rule, to act on emergency matters that
may affect the public health, safety, or welfare. Whenever possible, the District
Manager shall make reasonable efforts to provide public notice and notify all
Board members of an emergency meeting twenty-four (24) hours in advance.
Reasonable efforts may include telephone notification. Notice of the emergency
meeting must be provided both before and after the meeting on the District’s
website, if it has one. Whenever an emergency meeting is called, the District
Manager shall be responsible for notifying at least one newspaper of general
circulation in the District. After an emergency meeting, the Board shall publish in
a newspaper of general circulation in the District, the time, date and place of the
emergency meeting, the reasons why an emergency meeting was necessary, and a
description of the action taken. Actions taken at an emergency mecting may be
ratified by the Board at a regularly noticed meeting subsequently held.

Public Comment. The Board shall set aside a reasonable amount of time at each
meeting for public comment and members of the public shall be permitted to
provide comment on any proposition before the Board. The portion of the
meeting generally reserved for public comment shall be identified in the agenda.
Policies governing public comment may be adopted by the Board in accordance
with Florida law.

Budget Hearing. Notice of hearing on the annual budget(s) shall be in accord with
Section 190.008 of the Florida Statutes. Once adopted in accord with Section
190.008 of the Florida Statutes, the annual budget(s) may be amended from time
to time by action of the Board. Approval of invoices by the Board in excess of
the funds allocated to a particular budgeted line item shall serve to amend the
budgeted line item.

Public Hearings. Notice of required public hearings shall contain the information
required by applicable Florida law and by these Rules applicable to meeting
notices and shall be mailed and published as required by Florida law. The District
Manager shall ensure that all such notices, whether mailed or published, contain
the information required by Florida law and these Rules and are mailed and

12




(10)

(1D

(12)

(13)

published as required by Florida law. Public hearings may be held during Board
meetings when the agenda includes such public hearing.

Participation by Teleconference/Videoconference. District staff may participate
in Board meetings by teleconference or videoconference. Board members may
also participate in Board meetings by teleconference or videoconference if in the
good judgment of the Board extraordinary circumstances exist; provided however,
at least three Board members must be physically present at the meeting location to
establish a quorum. Such extraordinary circumstances shall be presumed when a
Board member participates by teleconference or videoconference, unless a
majority of the Board members physically present determines that extraordinary
circumstances do not exist.

Board Authorization. The District has not adopted Robert’s Rules of Order. For
each agenda item, there shall be discussion permitted among the Board members
during the meeting. Unless such procedure is waived by the Board, approval or
disapproval of resolutions and other proposed Board actions shall be in the form
of a motion by one Board member, a second by another Board member, and an
affirmative vote by the majority of the Board members present. Any Board
member, including the Chairperson, can make or second a motion.

Continuances. Any meeting or public hearing of the Board may be continued
without re-notice or re-advertising provided that:

(a) The Board identifies on the record at the original meeting a reasonable
need for a continuance;

(b)  The continuance is to a specified date, time, and location publicly
announced at the original meeting; and

(c) The public notice for the original meeting states that the meeting may be
continued to a date and time and states that the date, time, and location of
any continuance shall be publicly announced at the original meeting and
posted at the District Office immediately following the original meeting.

Attorney-Client Sessions. An Attorney-Client Session is permitted when the
District’s attorneys deem it necessary to meet in private with the Board to discuss
pending litigation to which the District is a party before a court or administrative
agency or as may be authorized by law. The District’s attorney must request such
session at a public meeting. Prior to holding the Attorney-Client Session, the
District must give reasonable public notice of the time and date of the session and
the names of the persons anticipated to attend the session. The session must
commence at an open meeting in which the Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson
announces the commencement of the session, the estimated length of the session,
and the names of the persons who will be attending the session. The discussion
during the session is confined to settlement negotiations or strategy related to

13




litigation expenses or as may be authorized by law. Only the Board, the District’s

attorneys (including outside counsel), the District Manager, and the court reporter

may attend an Attorney-Client Session. During the session, no votes may be

taken and no final decisions concerning settlement can be made. Upon the

conclusion of the session, the public meeting is reopened, and the Chairperson or
Vice-Chairperson must announce that the session has concluded. The session "
must be transcribed by a court-reporter and the transcript of the session filed with
the District Secretary within a reasonable time after the session. The transcript
shall not be available for public inspection until after the conclusion of the -
litigation.

(14)  Security and Firesafety Board Discussions. Portions of a meeting which relate to
or would reveal a security or firesafety system plan or portion thereof made
confidential and exempt by section 119.071(3)(a), Florida Statutes, are exempt
from the public meeting requirements and other requirements of section 286.011,
Florida Statutes, and section 24(b), Article 1 of the State Constitution. Should the
Board wish to discuss such matters, members of the public shall be required to
leave the meeting room during such discussion. Any records of the Board’s
discussion of such matters, including recordings or minutes, shall be maintained
as confidential and exempt records in accordance with Florida law.

Specific Authority: §§ 196.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 189.069(2)(2)16, 190.006, 190.007, 190.608, 286.0105, 286.011, 286.0113, 286.0114, Fla. Stat.

14



Rule 1.4 Internal Controls to Prevent Fraud, Waste and Abuse

(1}  Internal Controls. The District shall establish and maintain internal

controls designed to:

(a)
(b)
(©)

(d)
(©)

Prevent and detect “frand,” “waste” and “abuse” as those terms are
defined in section 11.45(1), Florida Statutes; and

Promote and encourage compliance with applicable laws, rules
contracts, grant agreements, and best practices; and

Support economical and efficient operations; and

Ensure reliability of financial records and reports; and

Safeguard assets.

(2)  Adoption. The internal controls to prevent fraud, waste and abuse shall be
adopted and amended by the District in the same manner as District
policies.

Specific Authority: §§ 196.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla, Stat.
Law Implemented: § 218.33(3), Fla. Stat.

15



Rule 2.0

(1

)

(3)

Rulemaking Proceedings.

Commencement of Proceedings. Proceedings held for adoption, amendment, or
repeal of a District rule shall be conducted according to these Rules. Rulemaking
proceedings shall be deemed to have been initiated upon publication of notice by
the District. A “rule” is a District statement of general applicability that
implements, interprets, or prescribes law or policy, or describes the procedure or
practice requirements of the District (“Rule”). Nothing herein shall be construed
as requiring the District to consider or adopt rules unless required by Chapter 190
of the Florida Statutes. Policies adopted by the District which do not consist of
rates, fees, rentals or other monetary charges may be, but are not required to be,
implemented through rulemaking proceedings.

Notice of Rule Development.

(a) Except when the intended action is the repeal of a Rule, the District shall
provide notice of the development of a proposed rule by publication of a
Notice of Rule Development in a newspaper of general circulation in the
District before providing notice of a proposed rule as required by section
(3) of this Rule. Consequently, the Notice of Rule Development shall be
published at least twenty-nine (29) days prior to the public hearing on the
proposed Rule. The Notice of Rule Development shall indicate the subject
area to be addressed by rule development, provide a short, plain
explanation of the purpose and effect of the proposed rule, cite the specific
legal authority for the proposed rule, and include a statement of how a
person may promptly obtain, without cost, a copy of any preliminary draft,
if available.

(b) All rules as drafted shall be consistent with Sections 120.54(1)(g) and
120.54(2)(b) of the Florida Statutes.

Notice of Proceedings and Proposed Rules.

{a)  Prior to the adoption, amendment, or repeal of any rule other than an
emergency rule, the District shall give notice of its intended action, setting
forth a short, plain explanation of the purpose and effect of the proposed
action, a reference to the specific rulemaking authority pursuant to which
the rule is adopted, and a reference to the section or subsection of the
Florida Statutes being implemented, mterpreted, or made specific. The
notice shall include a summary of the District’s statement of the estimated
regulatory costs, if one has been prepared, based on the factors set forth
Section 120.541(2) of the Florida Statutes, and a statement that any person
who wishes to provide the District with a lower cost regulatory alternative
as provided by Section 120.541(1), must do so in writing within twenty-
one (21) days after publication of the notice. The notice shall additionally
include a statement that any affected person may request a public hearing

16




(4)

()

(6)

by submitting a written request within twenty-one (21) days after the date
of publication of the notice. Except when intended action is the repeal of
a rule, the notice shall include a reference to both the date on which and
the place where the Notice of Rule Development required by section (2) of
this Rule appeared.

(b)  The notice shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the
District and each county in which the District is located not less than
twenty-eight (28) days prior to the intended action. The proposed rule
shall be available for inspection and copying by the public at the time of
the publication of notice.

(c) The notice shall be mailed to all persons named in the proposed rule and to
all persons who, at least fourteen (14) days prior to such mailing, have
made requests of the District for advance notice of its rulemaking
proceedings. Any person may file a written request with the District
Manager to receive notice by mail of District proceedings to adopt,
amend, or repeal a rule. Such persons must furnish a mailing address and
may be required to pay the cost of copying and mailing.

Rule Development Workshops. Whenever requested in writing by any affected
person, the District must either conduct a rule development workshop prior to
proposing rules for adoption or the Chairperson must explain in writing why a
workshop is unnecessary. The District may initiate a rule development workshop
but is not required to do so.

Petitions to Initiate Rulemaking. All Petitions to Initiate Rulemaking proceedings
must contain the name, address, and telephone number of the petitioner, the
specific action requested, the specific reason for adoption, amendment, or repeal,
the date submitted, the text of the proposed rule, and the facts showing that the
petitioner is regulated by the District or has a substantial interest in the
rulemaking. Not later than sixty (60) calendar days following the date of filing a
petition, the Board shall initiate rulemaking proceedings or deny the petition with
a written statement of its reasons for the denial. If the petition is directed to an
existing policy that the District has not formally adopted as a rule, the District
may, in its discretion, notice and hold a public hearing on the petition to consider
the comments of the public directed to the policy, its scope and application, and to
consider whether the public interest is served adequately by the application of the
policy on a case-by-case basis, as contrasted with its formal adoption as a rule.
However, this section shall not be construed as requiring the District to adopt a
rule to replace a policy.

Rulemaking Materials. After the publication of the notice referenced in section
(3) of this Rule, the Board shall make available for public inspection and shal
provide, upon request and payment of the cost of copies, the following materials:

17



(7

&

®

(10)

(a) The text of the proposed rule, or any amendment or repeal of any existing
rules;

(b) A detailed written statement of the facts and circumstances justifying the
proposed rule;

(¢} A copy of the statement of estimated regulatory costs if required by
Section 120.541 of the Florida Statutes; and

(d) The published notice.

Hearing. 'The District may, or, upon the written request of any affected person
received within twenty-one (21) days after the date of publication of the notice
described in section (3) of this Rule, shall, provide a public hearing for the
presentation of evidence, argument, and oral statements, within the reasonable
conditions and limitations imposed by the District to avoid duplication, irrelevant
comments, unnecessary delay, or disruption of the proceedings. The District shall
publish notice of the public hearing in a newspaper of general circulation within
the District either in the text of the notice described in section (3) of this Rule or in
a separate publication at least seven (7) days before the scheduled public hearing.
The notice shall specify the date, time, and location of the public hearing, and the
name, address, and telephone number of the District contact person who can
provide information about the public hearing. Written statements may be submitted
by any person prior to or at the public hearing. All timely submitted written
statements shall be considered by the District and made part of the rulemaking
record.

Emergency Rule Adoption. The Board may adopt an emergency rule if it finds
that immediate danger to the public health, safety, or welfare exists which
requires immediate action. Prior to the adoption of an emergency rule, the District
Manager shall make reasonable efforts to notify a newspaper of general
circulation in the District. Notice of emergency rules shall be published as soon as
possible in a newspaper of general circulation in the District. The District may
use any procedure which is fair under the circumstances in the adoption of an
emergency rule as long as it protects the public interest as determined by the
District and otherwise complies with these provisions.

Negotiated Rulemaking. The District may use negotiated rulemaking in
developing and adopting rules pursuant to Section 120.54(2)(d) of the Florida
Statutes, except that any notices required under Section 120.54(2)(d) of the
Florida Statutes, may be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the
county in which the District is located.

Rulemaking Record. In all rulemaking proceedings, the District shall compile
and maintain a rulemaking record. The record shall include, if applicable:

18




(11

(2)
(b)
(©)
(d)
(e)

M

The texts of the proposed rule and the adopted rule;

All notices given for a proposed rule;

Any statement of estimated regulatory costs for the rule;

A written summary of hearings, if any, on the proposed rule;

All written comments received by the District and responses to those
written comments; and

All notices and findings pertaining to an emergency rule.

Petitions to Challenge Existing Rules.

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

Any person substantially affected by a rule may seek an administrative
determination of the invalidity of the rule on the ground that the rule is an
invalid exercise of the District’s authority.

The petition seeking an administrative determination must state with
particularity the provisions alleged to be invalid with sufficient
explanation of the facts or grounds for the alleged invalidity and facts
sufficient to show that the person challenging a rule is substantially
affected by it

The petition shall be filed with the District. Within 10 days after receiving
the petition, the Chairperson shall, if the petition complies with the
requirements of subsection (b) of this section, designate any member of
the Board (including the Chairperson), District Manager, District Counsel,
or other person as a hearing officer who shall conduct a hearing within 30
days thereafter, unless the petition is withdrawn or a continuance is
granted by agreement of the parties. The failure of the District to follow
the applicable rulemaking procedures or requirements in this Rule shall be
presumed to be material; however, the District may rebut this presumption
by showing that the substantial interests of the petitioner and the fairness
of the proceedings have not been impaired.

Within 30 days after the hearing, the hearing officer shall render a
decision and state the reasons therefor in writing.

Hearings held under this section shall be de novo in nature. The petitioner
has a burden of proving by a preponderance of the evidence that the
existing rule is an invalid exercise of District authority as to the objections
raised. The hearing officer may:

(i) Administer oaths and affirmations;

19




(12)

®H

(il)  Rule upon offers of proof and receive relevant evidence;

(iii)  Regulate the course of the hearing, including any pre-hearing
matters;

(iv)  Enter orders; and
(v)  Make or receive offers of settlement, stipulation, and adjustment.
The petitioner and the District shall be adverse parties. Other substantially

affected persons may join the proceedings as infervenors on appropriate
terms which shall not unduly delay the proceedings.

Variances and Waivers. A “variance™ means a decision by the District to grant a

modification to all or part of the literal requirements of a rule to a person who is
subject to the rule. A “waiver” means a decision by the District not to apply all or
part of a rule to a person who is subject to the rule. Variances and waivers from
District rules may be granted subject to the following:

(a)

(b)

(©)

Variances and waivers shall be granted when the person subject to the rule
demonstrates that the purpose of the underlying statute will be or has been
achieved by other means by the person, and when application of the rule
would create a substantial hardship or would violate principles of fairmess.
For purposes of this section, "substantial hardship” means a demonstrated
economic, technological, legal, or other type of hardship to the person
requesting the variance or waiver. For purposes of this section, "principles
of fairness" are violated when the literal application of a rule affects a
particular person in a manner significantly different from the way it affects
other similarly situated persons who are subject to the rule.

A person who is subject to regulation by a District Rule may file a petition

with the District, requesting a variance or waiver from the District’s Rule.

Each petition shall specify:

(i) The rule from which a variance or waiver is requested;

(1)  The type of action requested;

(iii)  The specific facts that would justify a waiver or variance for the
petitioner; and

(iv) The reason why the variance or the waiver requested would serve

the purposes of the underlying statute.

The District shall review the petition and may request only that
information needed to clarify the petition or to answer new questions

20



raised by or directly related to the petition. if the petitioner asserts that any
request for additional information is not authorized by law or by Rule of
the District, the District shall proceed, at the petitioner’s written request, to
process the petition.

(d) The Board shall grant or deny a petition for variance or waiver and shall
announce such disposition at a publicly held meeting of the Board, within
ninety (90) days after receipt of the original petition, the last item of
timely requested additional material, or the petitioner's written request to
finish processing the petition. The District’s statement granting or denying
the petition shall contain a statement of the relevant facts and reasons
supporting the District's action.

(13)  Rates, Fees, Rentals and Other Charges. All rates, fees, rentals, or other charges
shall be subject to rulemaking proceedings. Policies adopted by the District
which do not consist of rates, fees, rentals or other charges may be, but are not
required to be, implemented through rulemaking proceedings.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), 150.035, Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 190.011(5), 190.035(2), Fla. Stat.

21




Rule 3.0

(D

@

&)

Competitive Purchase.

Purpose and Scope. In order to comply with Sections 190.033(1) through (3),

287.055 and 287.017 of the Florida Statutes, the following provisions shall apply
to the purchase of Professional Services, insurance, construction coniracts,
design-build services, goods, supplies, and materials, Contractual Services, and
maintenance services.

Board Authorization. Except in cases of an Emergency Purchase, a competitive

purchase governed by these Rules shall only be undertaken after authorization by
the Board.

Definitions.

(2)

(b)

(©)

“Competitive Solicitation” means a formal, advertised procurement
process, other than an Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, or
Invitation to Negotiate, approved by the Board to purchase commodities
and/or services which affords vendors fair treatment in the competition for
award of a District purchase contract. '

“Continuing Contract” means a contract for Professional Services entered
into in accordance with Section 287.055 of the Florida Statutes, between
the District and a firm, whereby the firm provides Professional Services to
the District for projects in which the costs do not exceed two million
dollars ($2,000,000), for a study activity when the fee for such
Professional Services to the District does not exceed two hundred
thousand dollars ($200,000), or for work of a specified nature as outlined
in the contract with the District, with no time limitation except that the
contract must provide a termination clause (for example, a contract for
general District engineering services). Firms providing Professional
Services under Continuing Contracts shall not be required to bid against
one another.

“Contractual Service” means the rendering by a contractor of its time and
effort rather than the furnishing of specific commodities. The term applies
only to those services rendered by individuals and firms who are
independent contractors. Contractual Services do not include auditing
services, Maintenance Services, or Professional Services as defined in
Section 287.055(2)a) of the Florida Statutes, and these Rules.
Contractual Services also do not include any contract for the furnishing of
labor or materials for the construction, renovation, repair, modification, or
demolition of any facility, building, portion of building, utility, park,
parking lot, or structure or other improvement to real property entered into
pursuant to Chapter 255 of the Florida Statutes, and Rules 3.5 or 3.6.

22



(d)

()

®

(2)

()

“Design-Build Contract” means a single contract with a Design-Build
Firm for the design and construction of a public construction project.

“Design-Build Firm” means a partnership, corporation or other legal entity
that;

(i) Is certified under Section 489.119 of the Florida Statutes, to
engage in contracting through a certified or registered general
contractor or a certified or registered building contractor as the
qualifying agent; or

(i)  Is certified under Section 471.023 of the Florida Statutes, to
practice or to offer to practice engineering; certified under Section
481.219 of the Florida Statutes, to practice or to offer to practice
architecture; or certified under Section 481.319 of the Florida
Statutes, to practice or to offer to practice landscape architecture.

“Design Criteria Package” means concise, performance-oriented drawings
or specifications for a public construction project. The purpose of the
Design Criteria Package is to furnish sufficient information to permit
Design-Build Firms to prepare a bid or a response to the District’s Request
for Proposals, or to permit the District to enter into a negotiated Design-
Build Contract. The Design Criteria Package must specify performance-
based criteria for the public construction project, including the legal
description of the site, survey information concerning the site, interior
space requirements, material quality standards, schematic layouts and
conceptual design criteria of the project, cost or budget estimates, design
and construction schedules, site development requirements, provisions for
utilities, stormwater retention and disposal, and parking requirements
applicable to the project. Design Criteria Packages shall require firms to
submit information regarding the qualifications, availability, and past
work of the firms, including the partners and members thereof.

“Design Criteria Professional” means a firm who holds a current
certificate of registration under Chapter 481 of the Florida Statutes, to
practice architecture or landscape architecture, or a firm who holds a
curzent certificate as a registered engineer under Chapter 471 of the
Florida Statutes, to practice engineering, and who is employed by or under
contract to the District to provide professional architect services,
landscape architect services, or engineering services in connection with
the preparation of the Design Criteria Package.

“Emergency Purchase” means a purchase necessitated by a sudden
unexpected turn of events (for example, acts of God, riot, fires, floods,
hurricanes, accidents, or any circumstances or cause beyond the control of
the Board in the normal conduct of its business), where the Board finds

23



(@

@

(k)

®

(m)

()

that the delay incident to competitive purchase would be detrimental to the
interests of the District. This includes, but is not limited to, instances
where the time to competitively award the project will jeopardize the
funding for the project, will materially increase the cost of the project, or
will create an undue hardship on the public health, safety, or welfare.

“Invitation to Bid” is a written solicitation for sealed bids with the title,
date, and hour of the public bid opening designated specifically and
defining the commodity or service mvolved. It includes printed
instructions prescribing conditions for bidding, qualification, evaluation
criteria, and provides for a manual signature of an authorized
representative. It may include one or more bid alternates.

“Invitation to Negotiate” means a written solicitation for competitive
sealed replies to select one or more vendors with which to commence
negotiations for the procurement of commodities or services.

“Negotiate” means to conduct legitimate, arm’s length discussions and
conferences to reach an agreement on a term or price.

“Professional Services” means those services within the scope of the
practice of architecture, professional engineering, landscape architecture,
or registered surveying and mapping, as defined by the laws of Florida, or
those services performed by any architect, professional engineer,
landscape architect, or registered surveyor and mapper, in connection with
the firm's or individual's professional employment or practice.

“Proposal (or Reply or Response) Most Advantageous to the District”
means, as determined in the sole discretion of the Board, the proposal,
reply, or response that is:

(1) Submitted by a person or firm capable and qualified in all respects
to perform fully the contract requirements, who has the mtegrity
and reliability to assure good faith performance;

(ii)  The most responsive to the Request for Proposals, Invitation to
Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation as determined by the Board;
and

(iii)  For a cost to the District deemed by the Board to be reasonable.

“Purchase” means acquisition by sale, rent, lease, lease/purchase, or
installment sale. It does not include transfer, sale, or exchange of goods,
supplies, or materials between the District and any federal, state, regional

or local governmental entity or political subdivision of the State of
Florida.

24



(©

(3)]

“Request for Proposals” or “RFP” is a written solicitation for sealed
proposals with the title, date, and hour of the public opening designated
and requiring the manual signature of an authorized representative. It may
provide gencral information, applicable laws and rules, statement of work,
functional or general specifications, qualifications, proposal instructions,
work detail analysis, and evaluation criteria as necessary.

“Responsive and Responsible Bidder” means an entity or individual that
has submitted a bid that conforms in all material respects to the Invitation
to Bid and has the capability in all respects to fully perform the contract
requirements and the integrity and reliability that will assure good faith
performance. “Responsive and Responsible Vendor” means an entity or
individual that has submitted a proposal, reply, or response that conforms
in all material respects to the Request for Proposals, Invitation fo
Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation and has the capability in all respects
to fully perform the contract requirements and the integrity and reliability
that will assure good faith performance. In determining whether an entity
or individual is a Responsive and Responsible Bidder (or Vendor), the
District may consider, in addition to factors described in the Invitation to
Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive
Solicitation, the following:

(1 The ability and adequacy of the professional personnel employed
by the entity/individual;

(i)  The past performance of the entity/individual for the District and in
other professional employment;

(iii)  The willingness of the entity/individual to meet time and budget
requirements;

(iv)  The geographic location of the entity’s/individual’s headquarters
or office in relation to the project;

(V) The recent, current, and projected workloads of the
entity/individual;

(vi)  The volume of work previously awarded to the entity/individual;

(vil) Whether the cost components of the bid or proposal are
appropriately balanced; and

(viil) Whether the entity/individual is a certified minority business
enterprise.

25




(@9  “Responsive Bid,” “Responsive Proposal,” “Responsive Reply,” and
“Responsive Response™ all mean a bid, proposal, reply, or response which
conforms in all material respects to the specifications and conditions in the
Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, or
Competitive Solicitation document and these Rules, and the cost _
components of which, if any, are appropriately balanced. A bid, proposal, .
reply or response is not responsive if the person or firm submitting it fails
to meet any material requirement relating to the qualifications, financial
stability, or licensing of the bidder.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law ¥mplemented: §§ 190.033, 255.20, 287.055, Fla. Stat.

26



Rule 3.1

(1)

@

3)

Procedure Under the Consultants’ Competitive Negotiations Act.

Scope. The following procedures are adopted for the selection of firms or
individuals to provide Professional Services exceeding the thresholds herein
described, for the negotiation of such contracts, and to provide for protest of
actions of the Board under this Rule. As used in this Rule, “Project” means that
fixed capital outlay study or planning activity when basic construction cost is
estimated by the District to exceed the threshold amount provided in Section
287.017 of the Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY FIVE, or for a planning study
activity when the fee for Professional Services is estimated by the District to
exceed the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017 for CATEGORY TWO,
as such categories may be amended or adjusted from time to time.

Qualifying Procedures. In order to be eligible to provide Professional Services to
the District, a consultant must, at the time of receipt of the firm’s qualification
submittal:

(a) Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good standing;
(b)  Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if any;

(¢)  Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be authorized to do
business in the State of Florida in accordance with Chapter 607 of the
Florida Statutes, if the consultant 1s a corporation; and

d Meet any qualification requirements set forth in the District’s Request for
q q
Qualifications.

Evidence of compliance with this Rule may be submitted with the qualifications,
if requested by the District. In addition, evidence of compliance must be
submitted any time requested by the District.

Public Announcement. Except in cases of valid public emergencies as certified
by the Board, the District shall announce each occasion when Professional
Services are required for a Project or a Continuing Contract by publishing a notice
providing a general description of the Project, or the nature of the Continuing
Contract, and the method for interested consultants to apply for consideration.
The notice shall appear in at least one (1) newspaper of general circulation in the
District and in such other places as the District deems appropriate. The notice
must allow at least fourteen (14) days for submittal of qualifications from the date
of publication. The District may maintain lists of consultants interested in
receiving such notices. These consultants are encouraged to submit annually
statements of qualifications and performance data. The District shall make
reasonable efforts to provide copies of any notices to such consultants, but the
failure to do so shall not give such consultants any bid protest or other rights or
otherwise disqualify any otherwise valid procurement process. The Board has the

27




(4)

right to reject any and all qualifications, and such reservation shall be included in
the published notice. Consultants not receiving a contract award shall not be
entitled to recover from the District any costs of qualification package preparation
or submittal.

Competitive Selection.

(a)

(b

(©)

The Board shall review and evaluate the data submitted in response to the
notice described in section (3) of this Rule regarding qualifications and
performance ability, as well as any statements of qualifications on file.
The Board shall conduct discussions with, and may require public
presentation by consultants regarding their qualifications, approach to the
Project, and ability to furnish the required services. The Board shall then
select and list the consultants, in order of preference, deemed to be the
most highly capable and qualified to perform the required Professional
Services, after considering these and other appropriate criteria:

(1) The ability and adequacy of the professional personnel employed
by each consultant;

(il  Whether a consultant is a certified minority business enterprise;
(iii)  Each consultant’s past performance;

(iv) The willingness of each consultant to meet time and budget
requirements;

(v) The geographic location of each consultant's headquarters, office
and personnel in relation to the project;

(vi)  The recent, current, and projected workloads of each consultant;
and

(vii) The volume of work previously awarded to each consultant by the
District.

Nothing in these Rules shall prevent the District from evaluating and
eventually selecting a consultant if less than three (3) Responsive
qualification packages, including packages indicating a desire not to
provide Professional Services on a given Project, are received.

If the selection process is administered by any person or committee other
than the full Board, the selection made will be presented to the full Board
with a recommendation that competitive negotiations be instituted with the
selected firms in order of preference listed.

28



(d)

Notice of the rankings adopted by the Board, including the rejection of
some or all qualification packages, shall be provided in writing to all
consultants by United States Mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight
delivery service. The notice shall include the following statement:
"Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the
Rules of the District shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under those
Rules," or wording to that effect. Protests of the District’s ranking
decisions under this Rule shall be in accordance with the procedures set
forth in Rule 3.11.

(5) Competitive Negotiation.

(@

(b)

(d)

After the Board has authorized the beginning of competitive negotiations,
the District may begin such negotiations with the firm listed as most
qualified to perform the required Professional Services at a rate or amount
of compensation which the Board determines is fair, competitive, and
reasonable.

In negotiating a lump-sum or cost-plus-a-fixed-fee professional contract
for more than the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017 of the
Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY FOUR, the firm receiving the award
shall be required to execute a truth-in-negotiation certificate stating that
"wage rates and other factual unit costs supporting the compensation are
accurate, complete and current at the time of contracting." In addition,
any professional service contract under which such a certificate is
required, shall contain a provision that "the original contract price and any
additions thereto, shall be adjusted to exclude any significant sums by
which the Board determines the contract price was increased due to
inaccurate, incomplete, or noncurrent wage rates and other factual unit
costs."

Should the District be unable to negotiate a satisfactory agreement with
the firm determined to be the most qualified at a price deemed by the
District to be fair, competitive, and reasonable, then negotiations with that
firm shall be terminated and the District shall immediately begin
negotiations with the second most qualified firm. If a satisfactory
agreement with the second firm cannot be reached, those negotiations
shall be terminated and negotiations with the third most qualified firm
shall be undertaken.

Should the District be unable to negotiate a satisfactory agreement with
one of the top three (3) ranked consultants, additional firms shall be
selected by the District, in order of their competence and qualifications.
Negotiations shall continue, beginning with the first-named firm on the
list, until an agreement is reached or the list of firms is exhausted.

29



(6) Contracts; Public Records. In accordance with Florida law, each contract entered
into pursuant to this Rule shall include provisions required by law that require the
contractor to comply with public records laws.

(7) Continuing Contract. Nothing in this Rule shall prohibit a Continuing Contract
between a consultant and the District.

(8)  Emergency Purchase. The District may make an Emergency Purchase without
complying with these Rules. The fact that an Emergency Purchase has occurred
or 18 necessary shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board meeting.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.611(153), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 119.0701, 190.011(3), 190.033, 287.055, Fla. Stat.

30



Rule 3.2

Procedure Regarding Auditor Selection.

In order to comply with the requirements of Section 218.391 of the Florida Statutes, the
following procedures are outlined for selection of firms or individuvals to provide
Auditing Services and for the negotiation of such contracts. For audits required under
Chapter 190 of the Florida Statutes but not meeting the thresholds of Chapter 218 of the
Florida Statutes, the District need not follow these procedures but may proceed with the
selection of a firm or individual to provide Auditing Services and for the negotiation of
such contracts in the manner the Board determines is in the best interests of the District.

(1)

2

&)

Definitions.

(a) "Auditing Services" means those services within the scope of the practice
of a certified public accounting firm licensed under Chapter 473 of the
Florida Statutes, and qualified to conduct audits in accordance with
government auditing standards as adopted by the Florida Board of
Accountancy.

(b)  "Committee" means the auditor selection committee appointed by the
Board as described in section (2) of this Rule.

Establishment of Auditor Selection Committee. Prior to a public announcement
under section (4) of this Rule that Auditing Services are required, the Board shali
establish an auditor selection committee (“Committee™), the primary purpose of
which is to assist the Board in selecting an auditor to conduct the annual financial
audit required by Section 218.39 of the Florida Statutes. The Committee shall
include at least three individuals, at least one of which must also be a member of
the Board. The establishment and selection of the Committee must be conducted
at a publicly noticed and held meeting of the Board. The Chairperson of the
Committee must be a member of the Board. An employee, a chief executive
officer, or a chief financial officer of the District may not serve as a member of
the Committee; provided however such individual may serve the Committee in an
advisory capacity.

Establishment of Minimum_Qualifications and Evaluation Criteria. Prior to a
public announcement under section (4) of this Rule that Auditing Services are
required, the Committee shall meet at a publicly noticed meeting to establish
minimum qualifications and factors to use for the evaluation of Auditing Services
to be provided by a certified public accounting firm licensed under Chapter 473 of
the Florida Statutes, and qualified to conduct audits in accordance with
government auditing standards as adopted by the Florida Board of Accountancy.

(a) Minimum Qualifications. In order to be eligible to submit a proposal, a
firm must, at all relevant times including the time of receipt of the
proposal by the District:

31




(4)

()

(1) Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good
standing;

(i1)  Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if
any;

(iii) Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be
authorized to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with
Chapter 607 of the Florida Statutes, if the proposer is a
corporation; and

(iv) Meet any pre-qualification requirements established by the
Committee and set forth in the RFP or other specifications.

If requested in the RFP or other specifications, evidence of comphiance
with the minimum qualifications as established by the Commititee must be
submitted with the proposal.

(b) Evaluation Criteria. The factors established for the evaluation of Auditing
Services by the Committee shall include, but are not limited to:

) Ability of personnel;
(il)  Experience;
(iii)  Ability to furnish the required services; and

(iv)  Such other factors as may be determined by the Committee to be
applicable to its particular requirements.

The Committee may also choose to consider compensation as a factor. If the
Committee establishes compensation as one of the factors, compensation shall not
be the sole or predominant factor used to evaluate proposals.

Public Announcement. After identifying the factors to be used in evaluating the
proposals for Auditing Services as set forth in section (3) of this Rule, the
Committee shall publicly announce the opportunity to provide Auditing Services.
Such public announcement shall include a brief description of the audit and how

~ interested firms can apply for consideration and obtain the RFP. The notice shall

appear in at least one (1) newspaper of general circulation in the District and the
county in which the District is located. The public announcement shall allow for
at least seven (7) days for the submission of proposals.

Request for Proposals. The Committee shall provide interested firms with a
Request for Proposals (“RFP”). The RFP shall provide information on how
proposals are to be evaluated and such other information the Committee

32




(6)

@)

determines is necessary for the firm to prepare a proposal. The RFP shall state the
time and place for submitting proposals.

Committee’s Fvaluation of Proposals and Recommendation. The Committee
shall meet at a publicly held meeting that is publicly noticed for a reasonable time
in advance of the meeting to evaluate all qualified proposals and may, as part of
the evaluation, require that each interested firm provide a public presentation
where the Committee may conduct discussions with the firm, and where the firm
may present information, regarding the firm’s qualifications. At the public
meeting, the Committee shall rank and recommend in order of preference no
fewer than three firms deemed to be the most highly qualified to perform the
required services after considering the factors established pursuant to subsection
(3)(b) of this Rule. If fewer than three firms respond to the RFP or if no firms
respond to the RFP, the Committee shall recommend such firm as it deems to be
the most highly qualified. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee may
recommend that any and all proposals be rejected.

Board Selection of Auditor.

(a) Where compensation was not selected as a factor used in evaluating the
proposals, the Board shall negotiate with the firm ranked first and inquire
of that firm as to the basis of compensation. If the Board is unable to
negotiate a satisfactory agreement with the first ranked firm at a price
deemed by the Board to be fair, competitive, and reasonable, then
negotiations with that firm shall be terminated and the Board shall
immediately begin negotiations with the second ranked firm. If a
satisfactory agreement with the second ranked firm cannot be reached,
those negotiations shall be terminated and negotiations with the third
ranked firm shall be undertaken. The Board may reopen formal
negotiations with any one of the three top-ranked firms, but it may not
negotiate with more than one firm at a time. If the Board is unable to
negotiate a satisfactory agreement with any of the selected firms, the
Committee shall recommend additional firms in order of the firms’
respective competence and qualifications. Negotiations shall continue,
beginning with the first-named firm on the list, until an agreement is
reached or the list of firms is exhausted.

(b) Where compensation was selected as a factor used in evaluating the
proposals, the Board shall select the highest-ranked qualified firm or
document in its public records the reason for not selecting the highest-
ranked qualified firm.

(c) In negotiations with firms under this Rule, the Board may allow the

District Manager, District Counsel, or other designee to conduct
negotiations on its behalf.

33



(d)  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board may reject any or all proposals.
The Board shall not consider any proposal, or enter into any contract for
Auditing Services, unless the proposed agreed-upon compensation is
reasonable to satisfy the requirements of Section 218.39 of the Flonda
Statutes, and the needs of the District.

(8) Contract. Any agreement reached under this Rule shall be evidenced by a written
contract, which may take the form of an engagement letter signed and executed by
both parties. The written confract shall include all provisions and conditions of
the procurement of such services and shall include, at a minimum, the following:

(a) A provision specifying the services to be provided and fees or other
compensation for such services;

(b) A provision requiring that invoices for fees or other compensation be
submitted in sufficient detail to demonstrate compliance with the terms of
the contract;

(c) A provision setting forth deadlines for the auditor to submit a preliminary
draft audit report to the District for review and to submit a final audit
report no later than June 30 of the fiscal year that follows the fiscal year
for which the audit is being conducted;

(dy A provision specifying the contract period, including renewals, and
conditions under which the contract may be terminated or renewed. The
maximum contract period including renewals shall be five (5) years. A
renewal may be done without the use of the auditor selection procedures
provided in this Rule but must be in writing.

(e) Provisions required by law that require the auditor to comply with public
records laws.

(9)  Notice of Award. Once a negotiated agreement with a firm or individual is
reached, or the Board authorizes the execution of an agreement with a firm where
compensation was a factor in the evaluation of proposals, notice of the intent to
award, including the rejection of some or all proposals, shall be provided in
writing to all proposers by United States Mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or
overnight delivery service. The notice shall include the following statement:
"Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of
the District shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under those Rules,” or
wording to that effect. Protests regarding the award of contracts under this Rule
shall be as provided for in Rule 3.11. No proposer shall be entitled to recover any
costs of proposal preparation or submittal from the District.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 119.0701, 218.33, 218.391, Fla. Stat.

34



35



Rule 3.3

(1)

2)

Purchase of Insurance.

Scope. The purchases of life, health, accident, hospitalization, legal expense, or
annuity insurance, or all of any kinds of such insurance for the officers and
employees of the District, and for health, accident, hospitalization, and legal
expenses upon a group insurance plan by the District, shall be governed by this
Rule. This Rule does not apply to the purchase of any other type of insurance by
the District, including but not limited to liability insurance, property insurance,
and directors and officers insurance. Nothing in this Rule shall require the District
o purchase insurance.

Procedure. For a purchase of insurance within the scope of these Rules, the
following procedure shall be followed:

() The Board shall cause to be prepared a Notice of Invitation to Bid.

(b)  Notice of the Invitation to Bid shall be advertised at least once in a
newspaper of general circulation within the District. The notice shall allow
at least fourteen (14) days for submittal of bids.

(c) The District may maintain a list of persons interested in receiving nofices
of Invitations to Bid. The District shall make reasonable efforts to provide
copies of any notices to such persons, but the failure to do so shall not give
such consultants any bid protest or other rights or otherwise disqualify any
otherwise valid procurement process.

(d)  Bids shall be opened at the time and place noted in the Invitation to Bid.

(e) If only one (1) response to an Invitation is received, the District may
proceed with the purchase. If no response to an Invitation to Bid is
received, the District may take whatever steps are reasonably necessary in
order to proceed with the purchase.

() The Board has the right to reject any and all bids and such reservations
shall be included in all solicitations and advertisements.

(g} Simultaneously with the review of the submitted bids, the District may
undertake negotiations with those companies that have submitted
reasonable and timely bids and, in the opinion of the District, are fully
qualified and capable of meeting all services and requirements. Bid
responses shall be evaluated in accordance with the specifications and
criteria contained in the Invitation to Bid; in addition, the total cost to the
District, the cost, if any, to the District officers, employees, or their
dependents, the geographic location of the company’s headquarters and
offices in relation to the District, and the ability of the company to
guarantee prenmum stability may be considered. A contract to purchase

36



insurance shall be awarded to that company whose response to the
Invitation to Bid best meets the overall needs of the District, its officers,
employees, and/or dependents.

(h)  Notice of the intent to award, including rejection of some or all bids, shall
be provided in writing to all bidders by United States Mail, by hand
delivery, or by overnight delivery service. The notice shall include the --
following statement: "Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed
in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of the District shall constitute a waiver of
proceedings under those Rules," or wording to that effect. Protests of the
District’s procurement of insurance under this Rule shall be in accordance
with the procedures set forth in Rule 3.11.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: § 112.08, Fla. Stat.

37



Raule 3.4

0

@

Pre-gualification

Scope. In its discretion, the District may undertake a pre-qualification process in.
accordance with this Rule for vendors to provide construction services, goods,
supplies, and materials, Contractual Services, and maintenance services.

Procedure. When the District seeks to pre-qualify vendors, the following
procedures shall apply:

(a)
(®)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The Board shall cause to be prepared a Request for Qualifications.

For construction services exceeding the thresholds described in Section
255.20 of the Florida Statutes, the Board must advertise the proposed pre-
qualification criteria and procedures and allow at least seven (7) days
notice of the public hearing for comments on such pre-qualification
criteria and procedures. At such public hearing, potential vendors may
object to such pre-qualification criteria and procedures. Following such
public hearing, the Board shall formally adopt pre-qualification criteria
and procedures prior to the advertisement of the Request for Qualifications
for construction services.

The Request for Qualifications shall be advertised at least once in a
newspaper of general circulation within the District and within the county
in which the District is located. The notice shall allow at least seven (7)
days for submittal of qualifications for goods, supplies and materials,
Contractual Services, maintenance services, and construction services
under two hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000). The notice shall
allow at least twenty-one (21) days for submittal of qualifications for
construction services estimated to cost over two hundred fifty thousand
dollars ($250,000) and thirty (30) days for construction services estimated
to cost over five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000).

The District may maintain lists of persons interested in receiving notices
of Requests for Qualifications. The District shall make a good faith effort
to provide written notice, by electronic mail, United States Mail, hand
delivery, or facsimile, to persons who provide their name and address to
the District Manager for inclusion on the list. However, failure of a
person fo receive the notice shall not invalidate any pre-qualification
determination or contract awarded in accordance with these Rules and
shall not be a basis for a protest of any pre-qualification determination or
contract award.

If the District has pre-qualified vendors for a particular category of

purchase, at the option of the District, only those persons who have been
pre-qualified will be eligible to submit bids, proposals, replies or

38




)

(&)

(h)

)

responses in response to the applicable Invitation to Bid, Request for
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation.

In order to be eligible to submit qualifications, a firm or individual must,
at the time of receipt of the qualifications:

(1) Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good
standing;

(i)  Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if
any,

(i) Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be
authorized to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with
Chapter 607 of the Florida Statutes, if the vendor is a corporation;
and

(iv)  Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set forth in the
Request for Qualifications.

Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be submitted with the
qualifications if required by the District. Failure to submit evidence of
compliance when required may be grounds for rejection of the
qualifications.

Qualifications shall be presented to the Board, or a committee appointed
by the Board, for evaluation in accordance with the Request for
Qualifications and this Rule. Minor variations in the qualifications may be
waived by the Board. A variation is minor if waiver of the variation does
not create a competitive advantage or disadvantage of a material nature.

All vendors determined by the District to meet the pre-qualification
requirements shall be pre-qualified. To assure full understanding of the
responsiveness to the requirements contained in a Request for
Qualifications, discussions may be conducted with qualified vendors.
Vendors shall be accorded fair treatment prior to the submittal date with
respect to any opportunity for discussion and revision of qualifications.
For construction services, any contractor pre-qualified and considered
eligible by the Department of Transportation to bid to perform the type of
work the project entails shall be presumed to be qualified to perform the
project.

The Board shall have the right to reject all qualifications if there are not
enough to be competitive or if rejection is determined to be in the best
interest of the District. No vendor shall be entitled to recover any costs of
qualification preparation or submittal from the District.

39



()

() Notice of intent to pre-qualify, including rejection of some or all
qualifications, shall be provided in writing to all vendors by United States Mail,
electronic mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight delivery service. The
notice shall include the following statement: "Failure to file a protest within the
time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of the District shall constitute a waiver
of proceedings under those Rules," or wording to that effect. Protests of the
District’s pre-qualification decisions under this Rule shall be in accordance with
the procedures set forth in Rule 3.11; provided however, protests related to the
pre-qualification criteria and procedures for construction services shall be
resolved in accordance with section (2)(b) of this Rule and Section 255.20(1)(b)
of the Florida Statutes.

Suspension, Revocation, or Denial of Qualification

(a) The District, for good cause, may deny, suspend, or revoke a prequalified
vendor’s pre-qualified status. A suspension, revocation, or denial for good
cause shall prohibit the vendor from bidding on any District construction
contract for which qualification is required, shall constitute a determination of
non-responsibility to bid on any other District construction or maintenance
contract, and shall prohibit the vendor from acting as a material supplier or
subcontractor on any District contract or project during the period of
suspension, revocation, or denial. Good cause shall include the following:

i. One of the circumstances specified under Section 337.16(2), Fla. Stat.,
has occurred.

ii. Affiliated contractors submitted more than one proposal for the same
work. In this event the pre-qualified status of all of the affiliated
bidders will be revoked, suspended, or denied. All bids of affiliated
bidders will be rejected.

iti. The vendor made or submitted false, deceptive, or fraudulent
statements, certifications, or materials in any claim for payment or any
information required by any District contract.

iv. The vendor or its affiliate defaulfed on any contract or a contract
surety assumed control of financial responsibility for any contract of
the vendor.

v. The vendor’s qualification to bid is suspended, revoked, or denied by
any other public or semi-public entity, or the vendor has been the
subject of a civil enforcement proceeding or settlement involving a
public or semi-public entity.

vi. The vendor failed to comply with contract or warranty requirements or
failed to follow District direction in the performance of a contract.

40



vii. The vendor failed to timely furnish all contract documents required by
the contract specifications, special provisions, or by any state or
federal statutes or regulations. If the vendor fails to furnish any of the
subject contract documents by the expiration of the period of
suspension, revocation, or denial set forth above, the vendor’s pre- _
qualified status shall remain suspended, revoked, or denied until the i
documents are furnished.

viii. The vendor failed to notify the District within 10 days of the vendor,
or any of its affiliates, being declared in default or otherwise not
completing work on a contract or being suspended from qualification
to bid or denied qualification to bid by any other public or semi-public
agency.

ix. The vendor did not pay its subcontractors or suppliers in a timely
manner or in compliance with contract documents.

x. The vendor has demonstrated instances of poor or unsatisfactory
performance, deficient management resulting in project delay, poor
quality workmanship, a history of payment of liquidated damages,
untimely completion of projects, uncooperative attitude, contract
litigation, inflated claims or defaults.

xi. An affiliate of the vendor has previously been determined by the
District to be non-responsible, and the specified period of suspension,
revocation, denial, or non-responsibility remains in effect.

xii. The vendor or affiliate(s) has been convicted of a contract crime.

1. The term “contract crime” means any violation of state or
federal antitrust laws with respect to a public contract or any
violation of any state or federal law involving fraud, bribery,
collusion, conspiracy, or material misrepresentation with
respect to a public contract.

2. The term “convicted” or “conviction” means a finding of guilt
or a conviction of a contract crime, with or without an
adjudication of guilt, in any federal or state trial court of record
as a result of a jury verdict, nonjury trial, or enfry of a plea of
guilty or nolo contendere.

(b) A denial, suspension, or revocation shall prohibit the vendor from bemng a
subcontractor on District work during the period of denial, suspension, or
revocation, except when a prime contractor’s bid has used prices of a
subcontractor who becomes disqualified after the bid, but before the request
for authorization to sublet is presented.

41



(¢) The District shall inform the vendor in writing of its intent to deny, suspend,
or revoke its pre-qualified status and inform the vendor of its right to a
hearing, the procedure which must be followed, and the applicable time limits.
If a hearing is requested within 10 days after the receipt of the notice of intent,
the hearing shall be held within 30 days after receipt by the District of the
request for the hearing. The decision shall be issued within 15 days after the
hearing.

(d) Such suspension or revocation shall not affect the vendor’s obligations under
any preexisting contract.

(e) In the case of contract crimes, the vendor’s pre-qualified status under this
Rule shall be revoked indefinitely. For all violations of Rule 3.4(3)(a) other
than for the vendor’s conviction for contract crimes, the revocation, denial, or
suspension of a vendor’s pre-qualified status under this Rule shall be for a
specific period of time based on the seriousness of the deficiency.

Examples of factors affecting the seriousness of a deficiency are:
i. Impacts on project schedule, cost, or quality of work;
ii. Unsafe conditions allowed to exist;
iii. Complaints from the public;
iv. Delay or interference with the bidding process;
v. The potential for repetition;
vi. Integrity of the public contracting process;

vii. Effect on the health, safety, and welfare of the public.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.611(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 190,033, 255.0525, 255.20, Fla. Stat.

42



Rule 3.5

(1)

@

Construction Contracts, Not Design-Build.

Scope. All contracts for the construction or improvement of any building,
structure, or other public construction works authorized by Chapter 190 of the
Florida Statutes, the costs of which are estimated by the District in accordance
with generally accepted cost accounting principles to be in excess of the threshold
amount for applicability of Section 255.20 of the Florida Statutes, as that amount

.may be indexed or amended from time to time, shall be let under the terms of

these Rules and the procedures of Section 255.20 of the Flonda Statutes, as the
same may be amended from time to time. A project shall not be divided solely to
avoid the threshold bidding requirements.

Procedure. When a purchase of construction services is within the scope of this
Rule, the following procedures shall apply:

(a) The Board shall cause to be prepared an Invitation to Bid, Request for
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation.

(b)  Notice of the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to
Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation shall be advertised at least once in a
newspaper of general circulation in the District and in the county in which
the District is located. The notice shall also include the amount of the bid
bond, if one is required. The notice shall allow at least twenty-one (21)
days for submittal of sealed bids, proposals, replies, or responses, unless
the Board, for good cause, determines a shorter period of time is
appropriate. Any project projected to cost more than five hundred
thousand dollars ($500,000) must be noticed at least thirty (30) days prior
to the date for submittal of bids, proposals, replies, or responses. If the
Board has previously pre-qualified contractors pursuant to Rule 3.4 and
determined that only the contractors that have been pre-qualified will be
permitted to submit bids, proposals, replies, and responses, the Notice of
Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or
Competitive Solicitation need not be published. Instead, the Notice of
Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or
Competitive Solicitation shall be sent to the pre-qualified contractors by
United States Mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight delivery service,

(c) The District may maintain lists of persons interested in receiving notices
of Invitations to Bid, Requests for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, and
Competitive Solicitations. The District shall make a good faith effort to
provide written notice, by electronic mail, United States Mail, hand
delivery, or facsimile, to persons who provide their name and address to
the District Manager for inclusion on the list. However, failure of a
person to receive the notice shall not invalidate any contract awarded in
accordance with this Rule and shall not be a basis for a protest of any
contract award.

43



@

(¢)

®

If the District has pre-qualified providers of construction services, then, at
the option of the District, only those persons who have been pre-qualified
will be eligible to submit bids, proposals, replies, or responses to
Invitations to Bid, Requests for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, and
Competitive Solicitations.

In order to be eligible to submit a bid, proposal, reply, or response, a firm
or individual must, at the time of receipt of the bids, proposals, replies, or
responses:

(i) Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good
standing;

(i)  Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if -
any;

(iii) Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be
authorized to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with
Chapter 607 of the Florida Statutes, if the bidder is a corporation;
and

(iv) Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set forth in the
Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or
Competitive Solicitation.

Any contractor that has been found guilty by a court of any violation of
federal labor or employment tax laws regarding subjects including but not
limited to, reemployment assistance, safety, tax withholding, worker’s
compensation, unemployment tax, social security and Medicare tax, wage
or hour, or prevailing rate laws within the past 5 years may be considered
ineligible by the District to submit a bid, response, or proposal for a
District project.

Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be submitted with the bid,
proposal, reply, or response, if required by the District. Failure to submit
evidence of compliance when required may be grounds for rejection of the
bid, proposal, reply, or response.

Bids, proposals, replies, and responses, or the portions of which that
include the price, shall be publicly opened at a meeting noticed in
accordance with Rule 1.3, and at which at least one district representative
is present. The name of each bidder and the price submitted in the bid
shall be announced at such meeting and shall be made available upon
request. Minutes should be taken at the meeting and maintained by the
District. Bids, proposals, replies, and responses shall be evaluated in

44



(&)

(h)

(1)

®

accordance with the respective Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals,
Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation and these Rules.
Minor variations in the bids, proposals, replies, or responses may be
waived by the Board. A variation is minor if waiver of the variation does
not create a competitive advantage or disadvantage of a material nature.
Mistakes in arithmetic extension of pricing may be corrected by the Board.
Bids and proposals may not be modified or supplemented after opening;
provided however, additional information may be requested and/or
provided to evidence compliance, make non-material modifications,
clarifications, or supplementations, and as otherwise permitted by Florida
law.

The lowest Responsive Bid submitted by a Responsive and Responsible
Bidder in response to an Invitation to Bid shall be accepted. In relation to
a Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive
Solicitation, the Board shall select the Responsive Proposal, Reply, or
Response submitted by a Responsive and Responsible Vendor which is
most advantageous to the District. To assure full understanding of the
responsiveness to the solicitation requirements contained in a Request for
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation, discussions
may be conducted with qualified vendors. Vendors shall be accorded fair
treatment prior to the submittal date with respect to any opportunity for
discussion, preparation, and revision of bids, proposals, replies, and
responses.

The Board shall have the right to reject all bids, proposals, replies, or
responses because they exceed the amount of funds budgeted for the
purchase, if there are not enough to be competitive, or if rejection is
determined to be in the best interest of the District. No contractor shall be
entitled to recover any costs of bid, proposal, response, or reply
preparation or submittal from the District.

The Board may require potential contractors to furnish bid bonds,
performance bonds, and/or other bonds with a responsible surety to be
approved by the Board.

Notice of intent to award, including rejection of some or all bids,
proposals, replies, or responses, shall be provided in writing to all
coniractors by United States Mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight
delivery service. The notice shall include the following statement:
"Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the
Rules of the District shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under those
Rules," or wording to that effect. Protests of the District’s purchase of
construction services under this Rule shall be in accordance with the
procedures set forth in Rule 3.11.

45



(k) If less than three (3) Responsive Bids, Proposals, Replies, or Responses
are received, the District may purchase construction services or may reject
the bids, proposals, replies, or responses for a lack of competitiveness. If
no Responsive Bid, Proposal, Reply, or Response is received, the District
may proceed with the procurement of construction services, in the manner
the Board determines is in the best interests of the District, which may
include but is not limited to a direct purchase of the construction services
without further competitive selection processes.

(3) Sole Source: Government. Construction services that are only available from a
single source are exempt from this Rule. Construction services provided by
governmental agencies are exempt from this Rule. This Rule shall not apply to
the purchase of construction services, which may include goods, supplies, or
materials, that are purchased under a federal, state, or local government confract
that has been competitively procured by such federal, state, or local government
in a manner consistent with the material procurement requirements of these Rules.
A contract for construction services is exempt from this Rule if state or federal
law prescribes with whom the District must contract or if the rate of payment is
established during the appropriation process.

(4) Contracts; Public Records. In accordance with Florida law, each contract entered
into pursuant to this Rule shall include provisions required by law that require the
contractor to comply with public records laws.

(5)  Emergency Purchases. The District may make an Emergency Purchase without
complying with these rules. The fact that an Emergency Purchase has occurred or
is necessary shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board Meeting.

(6)  Exceptions. This Rule is inapplicable when:

(a) The project is undertaken as repair or maintenance of an existing public
facility,

(b) The funding source of the project will be diminished or lost because the
time required to competitively award the project after the funds become
available exceeds the time within which the funding source must be spent;

(c) The District has competitively awarded a project and the contractor has
abandoned the project or the District has terminated the contract; or

(d) The District, after public notice, conducts a public meeting under Section
286.011 of the Florida Statutes, and finds by a majority vote of the Board
that it is in the public’s best interest to perform the project using its own
services, employees, and equipment.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 119.0701, 189.053, 190.033, 255.0518, 255.0525, 255.20, 287.055, Fla. Stat.

46



Rule 3.6

(1)

2

Construction Contracts, Design-Build.

Scope.

The District may utilize Design-Build Contracts for any public

construction project for which the Board determines that use of such contract is in
the best interest of the District. When letting a Design-Build Contract, the District
shall use the following procedure:

Procedure,

(a)

(b)

(©)

The District shall utilize a Design Criteria Professional meeting the

‘requirements of Section 287.055(2)(k) of the Florida Statutes, when

developing a Design Criteria Package, evaluating the proposals and
qualifications submitted by Design-Build Firms, and determining
compliance of the project construction with the Design Criteria Package.
The Design Criteria Professional may be an employee of the District, may
be the District Engineer selected by the District pursuant to Section
287.055 of the Florida Statutes, or may be retained pursuant to Ruie 3.1.
The Design Criteria Professional is not eligible to render services under a
Design-Build Contract executed pursuant to the Design Criteria Package.

A Design Criteria Package for the construction project shall be prepared
and sealed by the Design Criteria Professional. If the project utilizes
existing plans, the Design Criteria Professional shall create a Design
Criteria Package by supplementing the plans with project specific
requirements, if any.

The Board may either choose to award the Design-Build Contract pursuant
to the competitive proposal selection process set forth in Section
287.055(9) of the Florida Statutes, or pursuant fo the qualifications-based
selection process pursuant to Rule 3.1.

() Qualifications-Based Selection. If the process set forth in Rule 3.1
is utilized, subsequent to competitive negotiations, a guaranteed
maximum price and guaranteed completion date shall be
established.

(ii)  Competitive Proposal-Based Selection. If the competitive proposal
selection process is utilized, the Board, in consultation with the
Design Criteria Professional, shall establish the criteria, standards
and procedures for the evaluation of Design-Build Proposals based
on price, technical, and design aspects of the project, weighted for
the project. After a Design Criteria Package and the standards and
procedures for evaluation of proposals have been developed,
competitive proposals from qualified firms shall be solicited
pursuant to the design criteria by the following procedure:

47




A Request for Proposals shall be advertised at least once in
a newspaper of general circulation in the county in which
the District is located. The notice shall allow at least
twenty-one {21) days for submittal of sealed proposals,
unless the Board, for good cause, determines a shorter
period of time is appropriate. Any project projected to cost
more than five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) must
be noticed at least thirty (30) days prior to the date for
submittal of proposals.

The District may maintain lists of persons interested in
receiving notices of Requests for Proposals. The District
shall make a good faith effort to provide written notice, by
electronic mail, United States Mail, hand delivery, or
facsimile, to persons who provide their name and address to
the District Manager for inclusion on the list. However,
failure of a person to receive the notice shall not invalidate
any contract awarded in accordance with this Rule and
shall not be a basis for a protest of any contract award.

In order to be eligible to submit a proposal, a firm must, at
the time of receipt of the proposals:

a. Hold the required applicable state professional

licenses in good standing, as defined by Section
287.055(2)(h) of the Florida Statutes;

b. Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good
standing, if any;

c. Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter
or be authorized to do business in the State of
Florida in accordance with Chapter 607 of the
Florida Statutes, if the proposer is a corporation;

d. Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set
forth in the Request for Proposals and Design
Criteria Package.

Any contractor that has been found guilty by a court of any
violation of federal labor or employment tax laws regarding
subjects including but not limited to reemployment
assistance, safety, tax withholding, worker’s compensation,
unemployment tax, social security and Medicare tax, wage
or hour, or prevailing rate laws within the past 5 years may

48




be considered ineligible by the District to submit a bid,
response, or proposal for a District project.

Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be
submitted with the proposal if required by the District.
Failure to submit evidence of compliance when required
may be grounds for rejection of the proposal.

The proposals, or the portions of which that include the
price, shall be publicly opened at a meeting noticed in
accordance with Rule 1.3, and at which at least one district
representative is present. The name of each bidder and the
price submitted in the bid shall be announced at such
meeting and shall be made available upon request. Minutes
should be taken at the meeting and maintained by the
District. In consultation with the Design Criteria
Professional, the Board shall evaluate the proposals
received based on evaluation criteria and procedures
established prior to the solicitation of proposals, including
but not limited to qualifications, availability, and past work
of the firms and the partners and members thereof. The
Board shall then select no fewer than three (3) Design-
Build Firms as the most qualified.

The Board shall have the right to reject all proposals if the
proposals are too high, or rejection is determined to be in
the best interest of the District. No vendor shall be entitled
to recover any costs of proposal preparation or submittal
from the District.

If less than three (3) Responsive Proposals are received, the
District may purchase design-build services or may reject
the proposals for lack of competitiveness. If no Responsive
Proposals are received, the District may proceed with the
procurement of design-build services in the manner the
Board determines is in the best interests of the District,
which may include but is not limited to a direct purchase of
the design-build services without further competitive
selection processes.

Notice of the rankings adopted by the Board, including the
rejection of some or all proposals, shall be provided in
writing to all consultants by United States Mail, hand
delivery, facsimile, or overnight delivery service. The
notice shall include the following statement: "Failure to
file a protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the

49



3)

(4)

10.

Rules of the District shall constitute a waiver of
proceedings under those Rules," or wording to that effect.
Protests of the District’s rankings under this Rule shall be
in accordance with the procedures set forth in Rule 3.11.

The Board shall negotiate a contract with the firm ranking
the highest based on the evaluation standards and shall
establish a price which the Board determines is fair,
competitive and reasonable. Should the Board be unable to
negotiate a satisfactory contract with the firm considered to
be the most qualified at a price considered by the Board to
be fair, competitive, and reasonable, negotiations with that
firm must be terminated. The Board shall then undertake
negotiations with the second most qualified firm, based on
the ranking by the evaluation standards. Should the Board
be unable to negotiate a satisfactory contract with the firm
considered to be the second most qualified at a price
considered by the Board to be fair, competitive, and
reasonable, negotiations with that firm must be terminated.
The Board shall then undertake negotiations with the third
most qualified firm. Should the Board be unable to
negotiate a satisfactory contract with the firm considered to
be the third most qualified at a price considered by the
Board to be fair, competitive, and reasonable, negotiations
with that firm must be terminated. Should the Board be
unable to negotiate a satisfactory contract with any of the
selected firms, the Board shall select additional firms in
order of their rankings based on the evaluation standards
and continue negotiations until an agreement is reached or
the list of firms is exhausted.

After the Board contracts with a firm, the firm shall bring
to the Board for approval, detailed working drawings of the
project.

The Design Criteria Professional shall evaluate the
compliance of the detailed working drawings and project
construction with the Design Criteria Package and shall
provide the Board with a report of the same.

Contracts; Public Records. In accordance with Florida law, each contract entered

into pursuant to this Rule shall include provisions required by law that require the
contractor to comply with public records laws.

Emergency Purchase, The Board may, in case of public emergency, declare an

emergency and immediately proceed with negotiations with the best qualified

50




Design-Build Firm available at the time. The fact that an Emergency Purchase
has occurred shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board meeting.

(5)  Exceptions. This Rule is inapplicable when:

(a)  The project is undertaken as repair or maintenance of an existing public =
facility;
(b) The funding source of the project will be diminished or lost because the
time required to competitively award the project after the funds become
available exceeds the time within which the funding source must be spent;

() The District has competitively awarded a project and the contractor has
abandoned the project or the District has terminated the contractor; or

(d)  The District, after public notice, conducts a public meeting under Section
286.011 of the Florida Statutes, and finds by a majority vote of the Board
that it is in the public’s best interest to perform the project using its own
services, employees, and equipment.

Specific Anthority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fia. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 119.0701, 189.053, 196.033, 255.0518, 255.0525, 255.20, 287.035, Fla. Stat.

51



Rule 3.7

(1)

2)

)

Payment and Performance Bonds.

Scope. This Rule shall apply to contracts for the construction of a public
building, for the prosecution and completion of a public work, or for repairs upon
a public building or public work and shall be construed in addition to terms
prescribed by any other Rule that may also apply to such contracts.

Required Bond. Upon entering into a contract for any of the services described in
section (1) of this Rule in excess of $200,000, the Board should require that the
contractor, before commencing the work, execute and record a payment and
performance bond in an amount equal to the contract price. Notwithstanding the
terms of the contract or any other law, the District may not make payment to the
contractor until the contractor has provided to the District a certified copy of the
recorded bond.

Discretionary Bond. At the discretion of the Board, upon entering into a contract
for any of the services described in section (1) of this Rule for an amount not
exceeding $200,000, the contractor may be exempted from executing a payment
and performance bond.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(13), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: § 255.05, Fla. Stat.

52



Rule 3.8

(D

2)

Goods, Supplies, and Materials.

Purpose and Scope. All purchases of goods, supplies, or materials exceeding the
amount provided in Section 287.017 of the Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY
FOUR, shall be purchased under the terms of this Rule. Contracts for purchases
of “goods, supplies, and materials™ do not include printing, insurance, advertising,
or legal notices. A contract involving goods, supplies, or materials plus
maintenance services may, in the discretion of the Board, be treated as a contract
for maintenance services. However, a purchase shall not be divided solely in
order to avoid the threshold bidding requirements.

Procedure. When a purchase of goods, supplies, or materials is within the scope
of this Rule, the following procedures shall apply:

(a) The Board shall cause to be prepared an Invitation to Bid, Request for
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation.

(b)  Notice of the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to
Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation shall be advertised at least once in a
newspaper of general circulation within the District and within the county
in which the District is located. The notice shall also include the amount
of the bid bond, if one is required. The notice shall allow at least seven (7)
days for submittal of bids, proposals, replies, or responses.

(c) The District may maintain lists of persons inferested in receiving notices
of Invitations to Bid, Requests for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, or
Competitive Solicitations. The District shall make a good faith effort to
provide written notice, by electronic mail, United States Mail, hand
delivery, or facsimile, to persons who provide their name and address to
the District Manager for inclusion on the list. However, failure of a
person to receive the notice shall not invalidate any contract awarded in
accordance with this Rule and shall not be a basis for a protest of any
contract award.

(d)  If the District has pre-qualified suppliers of goods, supplies, and materials,
then, at the option of the District, only those persons who have been pre-
qualified will be eligible to submit bids, proposals, replies, or responses.

(e) In order to be eligible to submit a bid, proposal, reply, or response, a firm
or individual must, at the time of receipt of the bids, proposals, replies, or

ICsSponses:

(i) Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good
standing;

(ii) Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if any;

53




®

(g)

(iii) Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be authorized
to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with Chapter 607
of the Florida Statutes, if the vendor is a corporation; and

(iv) Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set forth in the
Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or
Competitive Solicitation.

Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be submitted with the bid,
proposal, reply or response if required by the District. Failure to submit
evidence of compliance when required may be grounds for rejection of the
bid, proposal, reply, or response.

Any firm or individual whose principal place of business is outside the
State of Florida must also submit a written opinion of an attorney at law
licensed to practice law in that foreign state, as to the preferences, if any or
none, granted by the law of that foreign state to business entities whose
principal places of business are in that foreign state, in the letting of any or
all public contracts. Failure to submit such a written opinion or
submission of a false or misleading written opinion may be grounds for
rejection of the bid, proposal, reply, or response.

Bids, proposals, replies, and responses shall be publicly opened at the time
and place noted on the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation
to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation. Bids, proposals, replies, and
responses shall be evaluated in accordance with the respective Invitation
to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive
Solicitation, and this Rule. Minor variations in the bids, proposals, replies,
or responses may be waived by the Board. A variation is minor if waiver
of the variation does not create a competitive advantage or disadvantage of
a material nature. Mistakes in arithmetic extension of pricing may be
corrected by the Board. Bids and proposals may not be modified or
supplemented after opening; provided however, additional information
may be requested and/or provided to evidence compliance, make non-
material modifications, clarifications, or supplementations, and as
otherwise permitted by Florida law.

The lowest Responsive Bid, after taking into account the preferences
provided for in this subsection, submitted by a Responsive and
Responsible Bidder in response to an Invitation to Bid, Request for
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation shall be
accepted. If the lowest Responsive Bid is submitted by a Responsive and
Responsible Bidder whose principal place of business is located in a
foreign state which does not grant a preference in competitive purchase to
businesses whose principal place of business are in that foreign state, the

54




(b

©

@

(k)

lowest Responsible and Responsive Bidder whose principal place of
business is in the State of Florida shall be awarded a preference of five (5)
percent. If the lowest Responsive Bid is submitted by a Responsive and
Responsible Bidder whose principal place of business is located in a
foreign state which grants a preference in competitive purchase to
businesses whose principal place of business are in that foreign state, the
lowest Responsible and Responsive Bidder whose principal place of
business is in the State of Florida shall be awarded a preference equal to
the preference granted by such foreign state.

To assure full understanding of the responsiveness to the solicitation
requirements contained in an Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals,
Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation, discussions may be
conducted with qualified vendors. Vendors shall be accorded fair
treatment prior to the submittal date with respect to any opportunity for
discussion, preparation, and revision of bids, proposals, replies, and
Tesponses.

The Board shall have the right to reject all bids, proposals, replies, or
responses because they exceed the amount of funds budgeted for the
purchase, if there are not enough to be competitive, or if rejection is
determined to be in the best interest of the District. No vendor shall be
entitied to recover any costs of bid, proposal, reply, or response
preparation or submittal from the District.

The Board may require bidders and proposers to furnish bid bonds,
performance bonds, and/or other bonds with a responsible surety to be
approved by the Board.

Notice of intent to award, including rejection of some or all bids,
proposals, replies, or responses shall be provided in writing to all vendors
by United States Mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight delivery
service. The notice shall include the following statement: "Failure to file
a protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of the
District shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under those Rules," or
wording to that effect. Protests of the District’s purchase of goods,
supplies, and materials under this Rule shall be in accordance with the
procedures set forth in Rule 3.11.

If less than three (3) Responsive Bids, Proposals, Replies, or Responses
are received, the District may purchase goods, supplies, or materials, or
may reject the bids, proposals, replies, or responses for a lack of
competitiveness. If no Responsive Bid, Proposal, Reply, or Response is
received, the District may proceed with the procurement of goods,
supplies, and materials, in the manner the Board determines is in the best
interests of the District, which may include but is not limited to a direct

55



purchase of the goods, supplies, and materials without further competitive
selection processes.

(3) Goods, Supplies, and Materials included in a Construction Contract Awarded
Pursuant to Rule 3.5 or 3.6. There may be occasions where the District has
undergone the competitive purchase of construction services which contract may
include the provision of goods, supplies, or materials. In that instance, the
District may approve a change order to the contract and directly purchase the
goods, supplies, and materials. Such purchase of goods, supplies, and materials
deducted from a competitively purchased construction contract shall be exempt
from this Rule.

(4) Exemption. Goods, supplies, and materials that are only available from a single
source are exempt from this Rule. Goods, supplies, and materials provided by
governmental agencies are exempt from this Rule. A contract for goods, supplies,
or materials is exempt from this Rule if state or federal law prescribes with whom
the District must contract or if the rate of payment is established during the
appropriation process. This Rule shall not apply to the purchase of goods,
supplies or materials that are purchased under a federal, state, or local government
contract that has been competitively procured by such federal, state, or local

government in a manner consistent with the material procurement requirements of
these Rules.

(5) Renewal. Contracts for the purchase of goods, supplies, and/or materials subject
to this Rule may be renewed for a maximum period of five (5) years.

(6) Emergency Purchases. The District may make an Emergency Purchase without
complying with these rules. The fact that an Emergency Purchase has occurred or
is necessary shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board meeting.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011{15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 189.053, 190.033, 287.017, 287.084, Fla. Stat.

56



Rule 3.9

(1)

()

Maintenance Services.

Scope. All contracts for maintenance of any District facility or project shall be set
under the terms of this Rule if the cost exceeds the amount provided in Section
287.017 of the Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY FOUR. A contract involving
goods, supplies, and materials plus maintenance services may, in the discretion of
the Board, be treated as a contract for maintenance services. However, a purchase
shall not be divided solely in order to avoid the threshold bidding requirements.

Procedure, When a purchase of maintenance services is within the scope of this
Rule, the following procedures shall apply:

(2)

(b)

(©)

G

(e)

The Board shall cause to be prepared an Invitation to Bid, Request for
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation.

Notice of the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation fo
Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation shall be advertised at least once in a
newspaper of general circulation within the District and within the county
in which the District is located. The notice shall also include the amount
of the bid bond, if one is required. The notice shall allow at least seven (7)
days for submittal of bids, proposals, replies, or responses.

The District may maintain lists of persons interested in receiving notices
of Invitations to Bid, Requests for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, and
Competitive Solicitations. The District shall make a good faith effort to
provide written notice, by electronic mail, United States Mail, hand
delivery, or facsimile, to persons who provide their name and address to
the District Manager for inclusion on the list. However, failure of a
person to receive the notice shall not invalidate any contract awarded in
accordance with this Rule and shall not be a basis for a protest of any
contract award.

If the District has pre-qualified suppliers of maintenance services, then, at
the option of the District, only those persons who have been pre-qualified
will be eligible to submit bids, proposals, replies, and responses.

In order to be eligible to submit a bid, proposal, reply, or response, a firm
or individual must, at the time of receipt of the bids, proposals, replies, or

TCSpPONSses.

(i) Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good
standing;

(ii) Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if any;

57




€3]

(g

(b)

(iii) Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be anthorized
to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with Chapter 607
of the Florida Statutes, if the vendor is a corporation; and

(iv) Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set forth in the
Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or
Competitive Solicitation.

Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be submitted with the bid,
proposal, reply, or response if required by the District. Failure to submit
evidence of compliance when required may be grounds for rejection of the
bid, proposal, reply, or response.

Bids, proposals, replies, and responses shall be publicly opened at the time
and place noted on the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation
to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation. Bids, proposals, replies, and
responses shall be evaluated in accordance with the respective Invitation
to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive
Solicitation, and these Rules. Minor variations in the bids, proposals,
replies, and responses may be waived by the Board. A variation is minor
if waiver of the variation does not create a competitive advantage or
disadvantage of a material nature. Mistakes in arithmetic extension of
pricing may be corrected by the Board. Bids and proposals may not be
modified or supplemented after opening; provided however, additional
information may be requested and/or provided to evidence compliance,
make non-material modifications, clarifications, or supplementations, and
as otherwise permitted by Florida law.

The lowest Responsive Bid submitted in response to an Invitation to Bid
by a Responsive and Responsible Bidder shall be accepted. In relation to
a Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate or Competitive
Solicitation the Board shall select the Responsive Proposal, Reply, or
Response submitted by a Responsive and Responsible Vendor which is
most advantageous to the District. To assure full understanding of the
responsiveness to the solicitation requirements contained in a Request for
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation, discussions
may be conducted with qualified vendors. Vendors shall be accorded fair
treatment prior to the submittal date with respect to any opportunity for
discussion, preparation, and revision of bids, proposals, replies, or
responses.

The Board shall have the right to reject all bids, proposals, replies, or
responses because they exceed the amount of funds budgeted for the
purchase, if there are not enough to be competitive, or if rejection is
determined to be in the best interest of the District. No Vendor shall be

58




entitled to recover any costs of bid, proposal, reply, or response
preparation or submittal from the District.

(i) The Board may require bidders and proposers to furnish bid bonds,
performance bonds, and/or other bonds with a responsible surety to be _
approved by the Board.

® Notice of intent to award, including rejection of some or all bids,
proposals, replies, or responses shall be provided in writing to all vendors
by United States Mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight delivery
service. The notice shall include the following statement: "Failure to file a
protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of the District
shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under those Rules," or wording to
that effect. Protests of the District’s procurement of maintenance services

under this Rule shall be in accordance with the procedures set forth in
Rule 3.11.

(k) If less than three (3) Responsive Bids, Proposals, Replies, or Responses
are received, the District may purchase the maintenance services or may
reject the bids, proposals, replies, or responses for a lack of
competitiveness. If no Responsive Bid, Proposal, Reply, or Response is
received, the District may proceed with the procurement of maintenance
services, in the manner the Board determines is in the best interests of the
District, which may include but is not limited to a direct purchase of the
maintenance services without further competitive selection processes.

(3)  Exemptions. Maintenance services that are only available from a single source
are exempt from this Rule. Maintenance services provided by governmental
agencies are exempt from this Rule. A contract for maintenance services is
exempt from this Rule if state or federal law prescribes with whom the District

must contract or if the rate of payment is established during the appropriation
process.

(4)  Renewal. Contracts for the purchase of maintenance services subject to this Rule
may be renewed for a maximum period of five (5) years.

(5) Contracts; Public Records. In accordance with Florida law, each contract entered
into pursuant to this Rule shall include provisions required by law that require the
contractor to comply with public records laws.

(6) Emergency Purchases. The District may make an Emergency Purchase without
complying with these rules. The fact that an Emergency Purchase has occurred or
is necessary shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board meeting,.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), 190.033, ¥Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 119.0701, 190.033, 287.017, Fla. Stat.

59



Rule 3.10

(1

2

Contractual Services.

Exemption from Competitive Purchase. Pursuant to Section 190.033(3) of the
Florida Statutes, Contractual Services shall not be subject to competitive
purchasing requirements. If an agreement is predominantly for Contractual
Services, but also includes maintenance services or the purchase of goods and
services, the contract shall not be subject to competitive purchasing requirements.
Regardless of whether an advertisement or solicitation for Contractual Services is
identified as an Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate,
or Competitive Solicitation, no rights or remedies under these Rules, including
but not limited to protest rights, are conferred on persons, firms, or vendors
proposing to provide Contractual Services to the District.

Contracts; Public Records. In accordance with Florida law, each contract for
Contractual Services shall include provisions required by law that require the
contractor to comply with public records laws.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 119.0701, 196.011(3}, 190.033, Fla. Stat.

60



Rule 3.11

Protests with Respect to Proceedings under Rules 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5, 3.6,
3.8, and 3.9.

The resolution of any protests with respect to proceedings under Rules 3.1, 3.2, 3.3,3.4,3.5, 3.6,
3.8, and 3.9 shall be in accordance with this Rule.

M

Filing,

(a)

(b)

(©)

With respect to a protest regarding qualifications, specifications,
documentation, or other requirements contained in a Request for
Qualifications, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Bid, or Competitive
Solicitation issued by the District, the notice of protest shall be filed in
writing within seventy-two (72) calendar hours (excluding Saturdays,
Sundays, and state holidays) after the first advertisement of the Request
for Qualifications, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Bid, or Competitive
Solicitation. A formal protest setting forth with particularity the facts and
law upon which the protest is based shall be filed within seven (7)
calendar days (including Saturdays, Sundays, and state holidays) after the
initial notice of protest was filed. For purposes of this Rule, wherever
applicable, filing will be perfected and deemed to have occurred upon
receipt by the District. Failure to file a notice of protest shall constitute a
waiver of all rights to protest the District’s intended decision. Failure to
file a formal written protest shall constitute an abandonment of the protest
proceedings and shall automatically terminate the protest proceedings.

Except for those situations covered by subsection (1)(a) of this Rule, any
firm or person who is affected adversely by a District’s ranking or
intended award under Rules 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5, 3.6, 3.8, or 3.9 and
desires to contest the District’s ranking or intended award, shall file with
the District a written notice of protest within seventy-two (72) calendar
hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and state holidays) after receipt of
the notice of the District’s ranking or intended award. A formal protest
setting forth with particularity the facts and law upon which the protest is
based shall be filed within seven (7) calendar days (including Saturdays,
Sundays, and state holidays) after the initial notice of protest was filed.
For purposes of this Rule, wherever applicable, filing will be perfected
and deemed to have occurred upon receipt by the District. Failure to file a
notice of protest shall constitute a waiver of all rights to protest the
District’s ranking or intended award. Failure to file a formal written
protest shall constitute an abandonment of the protest proceedings and
shall automatically terminate the protest proceedings.

If the requirement for the posting of a protest bond and the amount of the
protest bond, which may be expressed by a percentage of the contract to
be awarded or a set amount, is disclosed in the District’s competitive
solicitation documents for a particular purchase under Rules 3.1, 3.2, 3.3,

61




@

3)

(4)

3.4, 3.5, 3.6, 3.8, or 3.9, any person who files a notice of protest must post
the protest bond. The amount of the protest bond shall be determined by
District staff after consultation with the Board and within the limits, if any,
imposed by Florida law. In the event the protest is successful, the protest
bond shall be refunded to the protestor. In the event the protest is
unsuccessful, the protest bond shall be applied towards the District’s costs,
expenses, and attorney’s fees associated with hearing and defending the
protest. In the event the protest is settled by mutual agreement of the
parties, the protest bond shall be distributed as agreed to by the District
and protestor.

(d)  The District does not accept documents filed by electronic mail or
facsimile transmission. Filings are only accepted during normal business
hours.

Contract Execution. Upon receipt of a notice of protest which has been timely
filed, the District shall not execute the contract under protest until the subject of
the protest is resolved. However, if the District sets forth in writing particular
facts and circumstances showing that delay incident to protest proceedings will
jeopardize the funding for the project, will materially increase the cost of the
project, or will create an immediate and serious danger to the public health,
safety, or welfare, the contract may be executed.

Informal Proceeding. If the Board determines a protest does not involve a
disputed issue of material fact, the Board may, but is not obligated to, schedule an
informal proceeding to consider the protest. Such informal proceeding shall be at
a time and place determined by the Board. Notice of such proceeding shall be
sent via facsimile, United States Mail, or hand delivery to the protestor and any
substantially affected persons or parties not less than three (3) calendar days prior
to such informal proceeding. Within thirty (30) calendar days following the
informal proceeding, the Board shall issue a written decision setting forth the
factual, legal, and policy grounds for its decision.

Formal Proceeding. If the Board determines a protest involves disputed issues of
material fact or if the Board elects not to use the informal proceeding process
provided for in section (3) of this Rule, the District shall schedule a formal
hearing to resolve the protest. The Chairperson shall designate any member of the
Board (including the Chairperson), District Manager, District Counsel, or other
person as a hearing officer to conduct the hearing. The hearing officer may:

(a) Administer oaths and affirmations;
(b) Rule upon offers of proof and receive relevant evidence;

(c) Regulate the course of the hearing, including any pre-hearing matters;

62



(d)  Enter orders; and
(e)  Make or receive offers of settlement, stipulation, and adjustment.

The hearing officer shall, within thirty (30) days after the hearing or receipt of the

hearing transcript, whichever is later, file a recommended order which shall B
include a caption, time and place of hearing, appearances entered at the hearing, :
statement of the issues, findings of fact and conclusions of law, separately stated,

and a recommendation for final District action. The District shall allow each

party fifteen (15) days in which to submit written exceptions to the recommended

order. The District shall issue a final order within sixty (60) days after the filing

of the recommended order.

(5 Intervenors. Other substantially affected persons may join the proceedings as
intervenors on appropriate terms which shall not unduly delay the proceedings.

(6)  Rejection of all Qualifications, Bids, Proposals, Replies and Responses after
Receipt of Notice of Protest. If the Board determines there was a violation of law,
defect, or an irregularity in the competitive solicitation process, the Bids,
Proposals, Replies, and Responses are too high, or if the Board determines it is
otherwise in the District’s best interest, the Board may reject all gualifications,
bids, proposals, replies, and responses and start the competitive solicitation
process anew. If the Board decides to reject all qualifications, bids, proposals,
replies, and responses and start the competitive solicitation process anew, any
pending protests shall automatically terminate.

(7) Settlement. Nothing herein shall preclude the settlement of any protest under this
Rule at any time.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 199.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: § 190.033, Fia. Stat.

63



Rule 4.0 Effective Pate.

These Rules shall be effective , 20, except that no election of officers
required by these Rules shall be required until after the next regular election for the Board.

Specific Antherity: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 190.011¢5), 190.011(15), Fia. Stat.

64



EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS



5971 Powers Avenue, Suite 108
Jacksonville, FL 32217

i |
lI e ) [. FH‘ | (888) 767-0050
) | l F0T Fax: (888) 767-4018
S E R V I C E S www.lifesafeservices.com
Company: BBX
Name: Daniel Simpson
Date: 10/16/2019
Automated External Defibrillators & Zoll Medical AED Defibtech Philips Onsite Cardiac Science G5
Supplies: Plus
Purchase l $1,495 | $1,515 | $1,160 | $1675
Discounted purchase price if selecting ervice plan listed below
urchase price with Service ** $1,395 $1,415 | $1,060 $1,575
Case and AED Prep Kit ** included
Wall Cabinet Pricing ** upon request

** Plus shipping & tax (if applicable)

|Service Programs: |
Standard Service Agreement (per unit) | $200/year |

Standard Service: Includes semi-annual inspection and service of your aed unit, electrodes, battery, connectors and casing.
Notation of unit upgrades or recalls. All documentation of AED inspections are consistently maintained and securely stored
electronically and backed up with a hard copy. Documentation notes battery and electrode expiration dates and upgrades.
Replacement parts and upgrades receive a discount off standard pricing.

Gina Campbell Save a Lﬂfe, learn epr!

Regional Manager
888.767.0050 ext.29

gina@lifesafeservices.com
www.LifeSafeServices.com LSS-017 / R0O5-08







The First and Only
Full-Rescue AED

ZOLL

Advancing Resuscitation. Today.™

/-E_\\\._



What Good is an AED
that Only Works Half the Time?

When a cardiac arrest occurs, the fact is that only half
of the victims will need a shock. The other half require
high-quality cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR).

You deserve an automated external defibrillator (AED)
that helps you all the time, one that can actually see

when you are doing CPR and provide help. You need
more than just commands without assistance. That's not smart, and it's certainly not help.

Only ZOLL®'s AED Plus® features Real CPR Help)" a tool that is able to actually see what you
are doing and provide feedback to help you do it well. Audio and visual prompts help you
rescue with confidence and clarity unmatched by any other AED.

Not pushing hard enough? It will tell you to push harder.
Pushing hard enough? It will say, “Good compressions.”
Not pushing fast enough? A metronome will lead you to the right rate.

It will even show you the depth of each compression.

In real time.
Not yet started? The AED Plus will tell you again to get started.
Compressions stopped? It will tell you to continue.

ZOllL believes an AED should not just deliver a shock. It should also help the rescuer
provide high-quality CPR. That's why you need ZOLl's AED Plus with Real CPR Help.




More than a Defibrillator
A Full-Rescue AED

The Chain of Survival

The best way to increase the chance of saving sudden
cardiac arrest (SCA) victims is to remember and follow
every link in the Chain: Early Access, Early CPR, Early
Defibrillation, and Early Advanced Care. Every slep helps
save lives. Any break in the Chain compromises survival.

Ordinary AEDs only defibrillate. Rapid defibrillation is a

critical infervention to improve survival, but it is not enough.

While roughly half of unresponsive collapsed victims need
defibrillation, every one of them needs CPR.

Earl | -Ean'y
Defibrillation Advanced Care

Following the Chain of Survival requires more than just
attaching electrodes and delivering a shock. From checking
responsiveness, summoning help, and doing an "ABC" assess:
ment (Airway, Breathing, Circulation) to CPR and defibrillation,
the ZOLL AED Plus with Real CPR Help helps guide the
rescuer through the entire effort to rescue SCA victims.

The AED Plus Fully Supports the Rescuer

By focusing on the full Chain of Survival and providing Real
CPR Help, the AED Plus is the first and only FullRescue AED.

“AEDs are easy to use, while CPR and the ABCs remain difficult to perform. Based on
adherence to the Chain of Survival guidelines, however, those who used the ZOLL device

performed significantly better than those who used the other devices.

"3




Real CPR Help for Infrequent Rescuers When They Need it Most

A Complete Road Map for Resuscitation

A piclure is worth a thousand words. The AED Plus’ unique graphical inferface — pictures combined with

text displays and voice prompts — helps rescuers every step of the way. Lights on the pictures draw the rescuer’s
altention o actions in the proper sequence. Text and voice prompis correspond fo the pictures and help the
rescuer perform every imporfant life-saving action. These piciures and prompis assure that everything is done in
order, and that shocks, if required, are delivered rapidly.

One Electrode is Easier than Two

Ordinary AEDs require that the rescuer use two confusing electrodes. ZOLL's FullRescue AED features
CPR-D-+padz]’ a one-piece, pre-connected pair of electrodes with Real CPR Help. By using CPR hand
placement as the landmark, it is easy fo place the CPR=Depadz,on the victim quickly. The CPR=Depadsz,
also last five years — the longest shelf life of any electrodes sold today.

Intelligent Pediatric Capability

The ZOLL AED Plus can defibrillate children up to
eight years of age, using the pediepadz® Il electrodes.
When the pedispadz Il are connected, the AED Plus
recognizes that a pediatric rescue is in progress. With ECG
analysis developed specifically for a pediatric heart rate,
coupled with appropriate defibrillation energy levels, the AED Plus
can handle both adult and pediatric rescues.



Only One AED Provides Real CPR Help

Interactive Feedback for Rate and Depth

Inadequate compression rate and depth are common during CPR.“*¢ Adult victims need
compressions at a rate of 100 per minute and at a depth of 1% to 2 inches.
Compressions must be done well to effectively move blood and oxygen.

ZOll's Real CPR Help converts compression data insfantaneously from the CPR-Depadz,
and provides an adaptive metronome to help the rescuer with the proper rate and depth,
saying "Push harder” or “Good compressions,” as needed. It also shows CPR compression
depth on the display. ZOLL's AED Plus is the only AED that can see your chest
compressions and guide you to the correct rate and depth during CPR. No other AED
provides Real CPR Help.

SHOCKS: G0 DRSS a
S s00D " realGPR help
COMPRESSIONS -

Consumer Batteries for Convenience and Savings
The AED Plus is the only AED to use inexpensive, consumer lithium
batteries that are easy to replace and last five years in stand-by mode.
ZOLL's Rectilinear Biphasic Waveform

The ZOLL Rectilinear Biphasic™ waveform (RBW) is the only biphasic waveform
cleared by the FDA” fo be labeled as clinically superior to monophasic waveforms
for the conversion of ventricular fibrillation in highimpedance patients.® It allows
the AED Plus to deliver more current than any other AED when it matters most.

The ZOLL AED Plus Supports the Full Chain of Survival Best.’

| |
AED | ‘ il
[ i The ZOLL AED Plus Improves CPR Performance the Most."
AED 2
i |
| | 3
AED 3 | | 48% AED 1 17%
I
| |
z0LL :
AED Plus ‘ ! i % AED 2 A
% 20% 40% 0% 80%
3
Chain of Survival Percentage Performed AED3 4 Tﬁ
z0LL
AED Plus i ‘ ; 277%
0% s0% 150% 250% 350%

Percentage Increase in Depth of Compressions



® N O AW

ZOLL Medical Corporation
Worldwide Headquarters

269 Mill Road
Chelmsford, MA 01824
Q78-421-9655
8003489011
www.zoll.com

ZOLL Direct Sales

Subsidiaries

Australia, +61 2 8424 8700
www.zoll.com.au

Austria, +43 650 413 6222
www.zollmedical.at

Canada, 905-629-5005
www.zoll.com

France, +33 (1) 3005 14 98
www.zoll.fr

Germany, +49 2236 87 87 0
www.zollmedical.de

The Netherlands, +31 (0) 488 41 11 83

www.zoll.nl

United Kingdom, +44 (0] 1928 595 160

www.zoll.com

AED Pro® (above right] provides advanced
capabilities for BLS and ALS users, including
EKG monitoring and manual defibrillation.

References

. Hallsirom AP et al. The New England Joumal of Medicine. 2004; 351:644.

. 2005 American Heart Association Guidelines for Cardiopulmonary Resuscilation and Emergency
Cardiovoscular Core, Part 4: Adult Basic Life Support. Circulation. 2005:112 (suppl V):IV-19.

. Miller SG et ol. Prehospital Emergency Care. 2004; 8:91{abstracl).

. Moser DK et ol. Americon Journal of Emergency Medicine. 1990; 489-503.
. Kern KB el ol. Resuscilalion. 1998; 39:179-188,

. Handley Al, Hondley JA. Resuscilotion. 1995; 30:237-241,

. FDA 510k Clearance K990762.

. M Series Operator's Guide, Rectilinear Biphasic Waveform Defibrillator Option Inser, 9650:0209-01:4-5.
Fer defibrillation of V. *.... dala olso must demonstrate the superior efficacy of low energy rectilinear
biphasic shocks in patients with high hansthoracic impedance of 90%* confidence level.” *Kerber R, el al.
AHA Scientific Statement, Circulotion. 1997; 95:1677-1682. For cardioversion of AF: *... dalo
demonstrale the superior efficacy of low energy rectilineor biphasic shocks compared 1o high energy

monophosic shocks for transtheracic cardioversion of atrial fibrillation.”

ce

Printed in U.S.A. 0207100
96560156

. Miller SG et al. Prehospilal Emergency Core. 2004; B:91(abstracl).
. Ibid.

For subsidiary addresses and
fax numbers, as well as other
global locations, please go to
www.zoll.com/conlacls.

With more than 25 years of experience in
defibrillation, ZOLL is a pioneer in resuscitation
solutions. ZOLL develops technologies to help
advance the practice of resuscitation. With
producls for pacing, defibrillation, circulation,
venfilation, data management, and fluid
resuscitation, ZOLL provides a comprehensive
set of technologies that can help clinicians, EMS
professionals, and infrequent rescuers resuscitate
sudden cardiac arrest and frauma victims.

ZOLL

Advancing Resuscitation. Today.”

©2007 ZOLL Medical Corporation, All righls reserved.

“Advoncing Resuscitation. Today.] CPR-Dspadz, Real CPR Help, and Reclilinear
Biphasic are trademarks of ZOLL Medical Corporalion. ZOLL, AED Plus, AED Pro,
ond pedi-podz ore registered trademarks of ZOUL Medical Corporation.

All rademarks are the property of their respective owners.






LIFE/LINE

Life-Saving Technology Within Reach

LIFELINE AED Semi-automatic Defibrillator

Defibtech has designed a revolutionary
new semi-automatic external defibrillator,
from the ground up.

Technologically advanced enough to
include all mission critical features nec-
essary to provide the most advanced
treatment for Sudden Cardiac Arrest.
Yet so simple and unintimidating to use
that even non-medical personnel can
effectively save lives.

The Lifeline AED was developed by
experienced multidisciplinary engineering
teams and incorporates state-of-the-art
digital signal processing techniques and
advanced ECG analysis algorithms.

defibtec

This enables the device to exceed the
American Heart Association perfor-
mance recommendations, giving the
user confidence the correct therapy is
being delivered.

The Lifeline AED defibrillator uses
advanced biphasic technology —
including the most studied biphasic
shock waveform — and automatically
adjusts the shock delivery to the
person's individual needs.

For first response professionals like
police, fire and EMS, the Lifeline AED
is standard equipment. For schoals,
offices, stores, malls, factories, and
public places, it's becoming as vital as
the fire extinguisher.

Defibtech, LLC = Guilford, CT 06437 1-203-453-4507
1-866-DEFIB-4-U (1-866-333-4248) = www.defibtech.com



LIFELINE AED Semi-automatic Defibrillator

Technical Specifications*

Defibrillator

TYPE
Semi-automatic external
defibrillator

MODELS
DDU-100A, DDU-100E

WAVEFORM
Biphasic Truncated Exponential
(Impedance compensated)

ENERGY
150-Joules (nominal into
50 ohm load)

CHARGE TIME (mew, at 25°C)
Less than 6 seconds
(DBP-2800 battery pack)

Less than 9 seconds
(DBP-1400 battery pack)

Patient Analysis System

PATIENT ANALYSIS
Automatically evaluates patient
impedance for proper pad con-
tact. Monitors signal quality and
analyzes patient ECG for shock-
able/non-shockable rhythms

Battery Pack
MODEL DBP-2800

POWER
15V, 2800 mAh

CAPACITY (new, at 25° C)
— 300 shocks or 16 hours
continuous operation

STANDBY-LIFE (typical)
— 7 years

TYPE

— Lithium/Manganese Dioxide

— Disposable, recyclable, non
rechargeable

Self Tests

AUTOMATIC
Automatic daily, weekly and
monthly circuitry tests

BATTERY INSERTION
System integrity test on battery
insertion

PAD PRESENCE
Pads preconnected tested daily

VOICE PROMPTS
Extensive voice prompts
guide user through operation
of the unit

CONTROLS
— Lighted On/Off button
- Lighted Shock button

INDICATORS

— "check pads”

— "do not touch patient”
— "analyzing”

— AED status LED

SENSITIVITY/SPECIFICITY
Meets AAMI-DF-39
specifications and AHA
recornmendations

MODEL DBP-1400

POWER
15V, 1400 mAh

CAPACITY (new, at 25° C)
— 125 shocks or 8 hours
continuous operation

STANDBY-LIFE (typical
-5 years

LOW BATTERY
INDICATORS

- Visible

— Audible

USER-INITIATED

Unit and battery pack system
test may also be initiated by the
user

STATUS INDICATION
Visual and audible indication of
unit status

*Specifications subject to change without notice

Defibtech, LLC = Guilford, CT 06437 1-203-453-4507

1-866-DEFIB-4-U (1-866-333-4248) = www.defibtech.com

Defibrillation/Monitoring Pads

MODEL
Adult — DDP-100
Child/Infant — DDP-200P

TYPE

Pre-connected, single-use,
non-polarized, disposable,
self-adhesive electrodes with
cable and connector

Event Documentation

INTERNAL EVENT
RECORD

Critical ECG segments and res-
cue event parameters are
recorded and can be down-
loaded to a removable data card

PC-BASED EVENT REVIEW
ECG with event tag display, and
audio playback when available

TEMPERATURE
Operating:
0 to 50°C (32 to 122°F)
Standby (with battery installed):
0 to 50°C (32 to 122°F)

RELATIVE HUMIDITY
Operating / Standby: 5% — 95%
(non-condensing)

ALTITUDE

-500 to 15,000 ft (-150 to

4500 m) per MIL-STD-810F 500.4
Procedure |l

VIBRATION
Ground (MIL-STD-810F 514.5
Category 20)

Helicopter (RTCA/DO-160D,
Section 8.8.2, Cat R, Zone 2,
Curve G)

Jet Aircraft (RTCA/DO-160D,
Section 8, Cat H, Zone 2,
Curves B & R)

Physical

SIZE
8.5 x 11.8 x 2.7 inches
(22 x30 x 7 cm)

SURFACE AREA
103 cm? (nominal, each pad)
50 c¢m? (nominal, each pad)

PAD PLACEMENT
Adult — Anterior/Anterior
Child/Infant — Anterior/Posterior

CABLE LENGTH (typical
48 in (122 cm)

REMOVABLE STORAGE
(optional) Up to 12 hours of
ECG and event data storage (no
audio option) or up to 1:40 of
audio, ECG and event storage
(audio option) on a removable
data card. Actual length of
storage is dependent on card
capacity

SHOCK / DROP

ABUSE TOLERANCE
MIL-STD-810F 516.5 Procedure
[V (1 meter, any edge, corner, or
surface, in standby mode)

SEALING / WATER
RESISTANCE

IEC60529 class IP54; Splash
Proof, Dust Protected (Battery
Pack installed)

ESD

EN61000-4-2: 1998,

(open air up to 8kV or direct
contact up to 6kV)

EMC (Emission)
ENB0601-1-2 limits (1993),
method EN55011: 1998 Group 1
Level B

EMC (Immunity)
ENB0601-1-2 limits (1993),
method EN61000-4-3: 1998
Level 3 (10V/m)

WEIGHT (Approximate)
With DBP-1400: 4.2 Ibs (1.9 kg)
With DBP-2800: 4.4 Ibs (2.0 kg)

DAC-700 Rev. C






-or the ordinary person In
the extraordinary moment

Philips HeartStart OnSite Defibrillator
Product information

Updated for Guidelines 2005 p H I LI ps



Sudden cardiac
anyone, anytime,

N =l

Ll g

4

*The current U.S. survival rate for SCA is less than 5%.
*The likelihood of successful resuscitation decreases by
about 10% with every minute that passes.

*An additional 40,000 lives could be saved each year in

the US. alone with widespread access to defibrillators.

Philips HeartStart OnSite Defibrillator



arres
anywhere.

- can hap

ben to

Power to save a life

Each year sudden cardiac arrest (SCA)
strikes approximately 340,000 people in the
U.S. alone, and hundreds of thousands more
worldwide. The majority of these people
have no warning, since they show no prior
symptoms. And sadly, fewer than 5% survive,
often because emergency medical services
cannot reach them in time.

SCA most often occurs when the electrical
system of the heart becomes chaotic,
causing it to stop beating effectively. Lacking
proper blood flow, the person becomes
unresponsive, stops breathing, and will die
unless promptly treated. CPR is important,
but it alone cannot restore a normal heart
rhythm. A “shock” from a defibrillator is the

most effective way to restore the heart’s
normal pumping rhythm. The victim's best
chance of survival is to receive that shock
within 5 minutes of collapse. Just as seat belts
or airbags do not save every life in a traffic
accident, a defibrillator will not save every
person who suffers a sudden cardiac arrest.
Yet many lives could be saved if more people
could be reached more quickly.

Philips HeartStart Defibrillators enable
virtually anyone to treat the most common
cause of SCA by delivering a shock quickly
and effectively, wherever it happens — at
work, at play, in the air — providing the power
to save a life.

Philips HeartStart OnSite Defibrillator



The Philips HeartStart

OnSite Defibrillator

Philips, the leader in portable defibrillation technology,
designed the HeartStart OnSite Defibrillator for the

ordinary person in the extraordinary moment. The first
commercial defibrillator available without a prescription,
the OnSite is designed to be the easiest to use and

most reliable defibrillator available.'? Our innovative
technology, based on extensive research and user
feedback, has produced a defibrillator so easy to use that
you can potentially save the life of a coworker, friend, or
anyone else stricken with sudden cardiac arrest.

Philips HeartStart OnSite Defibrillator

Weighing just 3.3 Ibs., this small and lightweight
defibrillator can be easily carried to the victim's side.
Using clear, calm voice instructions, the OnSite
Defibrillator guides you through each step of
defibrillation, including CPR Coaching. Integrated
SMART Pads placed on the victim's bare skin transmit
information to the defibrillator, which senses and
adapts to your actions every step of the way.

HeartStart OnSite includes proven Philips technologies
for heart rhythm assessment (SMART Analysis) and
defibrillation energy delivery (SMART Biphasic). And
like all HeartStart Defibrillators, it can be used to treat
infants and children as well as adults.?



Ready when needed

The OnSite has a long-life battery:

+ 5-year shelf life plus 4-year installed life.

« The same battery technology used with confidence in millions
of cameras.

Automatic self-tests help ensure continued readiness:

+ Daily self-tests check electrical components, subsystems and
battery.

« A self-test also verifies that the pads cartridge is installed and
in working order.

« A blinking green “Ready” light means the OnSite has passed its
last self-test, so you can be confident the defibrillator is ready

for use.

Easy to use

Using the HeartStart OnSite Defibrillator is simple. Pulling the
green handle activates the defibrillator and voice instructions.
These instructions are paced to your actions, to help guide you
through the entire process — from placing each pad on the
patient to delivering a defibrillation shock.

HeartStart OnSite determines if a heart rhythm

is shockable.

* If a shock is indicated, the defibrillator directs you to
press the flashing orange Shock button. Then HeartStart
OnSite delivers a dose of low-energy biphasic therapy, a
highly-effective defibrillation waveform that is also
gentle to the heart.

« If a shock is not indicated, the OnSite Defibrillator
instructs you to perform CPR.While performing CPR,

the defibrillator’s voice instructions can be activated to
coach you on the frequency and depth of compressions
as well as breaths. HeartStart OnSite also reminds you
to call emergency medical services (EMS). And should
EMS need a summary of care, it can be retrieved from
the defibrillator’s internal memory. An EMS provider
simply presses the i-button and HeartStart OnSite

verbally recounts events from its last clinical use.

Philips HeartStart OnSite Defibrillator



6

Replaceable SMART Pads Cartridges

The cartridge contains two adhesive pads that are placed
on the patient’s bare skin as indicated by the pictures on
the pads.The pads are “smart” because they sense when
they have been removed from the cartridge and when
each has been applied to the patient, adjusting the voice
instructions to your actions.

The HeartStart OnSite can be used on patients of any
age, including infants and children. OnSite senses when

the special infant/child SMART Pads Cartridge is installed.

It automatically adjusts to use a lower energy level more
appropriate for infants and children, and also provides
coaching for performing infant/child CPR.

To practice your skills, a special training pads cartridge
(adult or infant/child) can be installed in the defibrillator.
It suspends the defibrillator’s ability to shock, while
walking you through patient care scenarios.

Philips HeartStart OnSite Defibrillator

Lightweight
Just 3.3 pounds fully equipped.

Intuitive

Clean design and clear voice instructions, including CPR
Coaching, instill the confidence that's needed when
treating a person in cardiac arrest.

Effective

Patented SMART Analysis heart rhythm assessment
and SMART Biphasic defibrillation therapy, clinically
proven in nearly 10 years of use, No other external
defibrillation therapy has been supported by more
published clinical data.’

And with patented Quick Shock, the OnSite is fastest in
class at delivering a shock after CPR. Studies show that
minimizing time to shock after CPR may improve
suryival.**¢7® As American Heart Association Guidelines
2005 notes, “Reduction in the interval from compression
to shocl delivery by even a few seconds can increase the
probability of shock success®




Philips HeartStart OnSite Defibrillator

Product specifications

Defibrillator
Defibrillator Model
Defibrillator Family
How Supplied

Waveform

Energy

Shock-to-Shock
CycleTime
Quick Shock
Voice Instructions
CPR Coaching
Shock Delivery

Controls

Indicators

Physical Specifications

Size
Weight

HeartStart M5066A
HSI

Defibrillator, Owner’s Manual, battery, | adult
SMART Pads cartridge, Quick Reference Guide and
Quick Start poster

Truncated Exponential Biphasic.Waveform parameters
adjusted as a function of each patient’s impedance.

Single energy output. Adult:nominal 150 Joules into a
50 ohm load. Infant/Child: nominal 50 Joules into a 50
ohm load. Automatically set based on type of SMART
Pads cartridge installed.

Typically less than 20 seconds between shocks in a series.

Able to deliver a shoclk after the end of a CPR interval,
typically in eight seconds.

Detailed voice messages guide responder through use
of the defibrillator.

Instructions for adult and infant/child CPR available at
user's option.

Via adhesive pads placed on patient’s bare skin as
illustrated on pads.

Green SMART Pads cartridge handle,green On/Off
button, blue i-button, orange Shock button

Ready light; blue i-button; caution light

28x74x83inches(7x19x 2] cm) Hx D xW

With battery and pads case:3.3 Ibs. (1.5 kg)
Without battery or pads case: 2.4 |bs. (| kg)

Environmental/Physical Requirements

Sealing

Temperature

Humidity

Altitude

Shock/Drop Abuse
Vibration

EMI (Radiated/Immunity)

Patient Analysis System

Patient Analysis

Sensitivity/Specificity

Artifact Detection

Solid objects per EN60529 class IP2X
Drip-proof per EN60529 class IPXI|
Operating: 32° - 122° F (0°- 50° C)
Standby:50° - 109° F (10°- 43° C)
Operating: 0% to 95% relative, non-condensing
Standby: 0% to 75% relative, non-condensing

Operating: 0 to 15,000 feet
Standby: 0 to 8,500 feet > 48 hours and 8,500 to
15,000 feet < 48 hours

Withstands | meter drop to any edge, corner or surface.

Meets EN | 789 random and swept sine, road ambulance
specification in operating and standby states.

Meets EN5501 | Group | Level B Class B and
EN61000-4-3.

Evaluates patient ECG to determine if a rhythm is
shockable. Rhythms considered shockable are
ventricular fibrillation (VF) and certain ventricular
tachycardias (VT) associated with lack of circulation.
For safety reasons, some VT rhythms associated with
circulation will not be interpreted as shockable,and
some very low-amplitude or low-frequency rhythms
will not be interpreted as shockable VF

Meets AAMI DF80 guidelines and AHA
recommendations for adult defibrillation (Circulation
1997,95:1677-1682).

The effects of pacemaker artifact and electrical noise
are minimized with artifact detection.

Battery (M5070A)

Type
Capacity
Install-by Date

Standby Life

SMART Pads

Adult SMART
Pads Cartridge

Infant/Child SMART
Pads Cartridge

Energy Delivered

How Supplied

Active Surface Area
Cable Length

Use-by Date

Training Pads

AdultTraining Pads
Cartridge

Infant/Child Training
Pads Cartridge

Function

9 Volt DC, 4.2 Ah, composed of disposable long-life
lithium manganese dioxide primary cells.

Minimum 200 shocks or 4 hours of operating time
(EN 60601-2-4:2003)

Battery is labeled with an install-by date of at least five
years from date of manufacture.

Four years typical when battery is installed by the
install-by date. (Will power the AED in standby state
within the specified standby temperature range,
assuming one battery insertion test and no
defibrillation uses.)

M507 | A defibrillation pads for patients 8 years of age
and older or 55 Ibs. (25 kg) and over.

M5072A defibrillation pads for patients under 8 years
of age or 55 Ibs. (25 kg). Rx only.

Adult:nominal |50 Joules into a 50 ohm load
Infant/Child: nominal 50 Joules into a 50 ohm load
Disposable cartridge, containing adhesive
defibrillation pads, clicks into defibrillator for an
integrated pads solution.

13.2in* (85 cm?) each

Adulc pads:54in (137.1 cm)
Infant/Child pads: 40 in (101.6 cm)

Cartridge is labeled with a use-by date of at least two
years from date of manufacture.

M5073A
M5074A

Special pads put HeartStart OnSite into training mode
and disable its energy delivery capability. Training pads
feature 8 real-world training scripts. Used with training
mat (included) or with adapters on manikins.

Automated and User-activated Self-tests

Daily Automatic Self-tests ~ Tests internal circuitry, waveform delivery system, pads

Pads Integrity Test
Battery Insertion Test

Status Indicator

cartridge and battery capacity.

Specifically tests readiness-for-use of pads

(gel moisture).

Upon battery insertion, extensive automatic self-tests
and user-interactive test check device readiness.

Blinking green “Ready" light indicates ready for use.
Audible ““chirp” indicates need for maintenance.

Data Recording and Transmission

Infrared

Data Stored

Wireless transmission of event data to a PC or Palm®
PDA, using the IrDA protocol.

First |15 minutes of ECG and the entire incident’s events

and analysis decisions.

* Refer to the HeartStart OnSite Defibrillator Owner’s Manual for detailed product instructions.
All specifications based on 25° C unless otherwise noted. The defibrillacor and its accessories are made

of latex-free materials.

Philips HeartStart OnSite Defibrillator

7



Philips Medical Systems is part of
Royal Philips Electronics

Interested?

Would you like to know more about our innovative
products? Please do not hesitate to contact us.

VWWe would be glad to hear from you.

On the web
www.philips.com/heartstart

Via email
medical@philips.com

By fax
+31 40 27 64 887

By postal service

Philips Medical Systems
3000 Minuteman Road
Andover, MA 01810-1085

By phone
Asia
Tel: +852 2821 5888

Europe, Middle East, Africa
Tel: +49 7031 4632121

Latin America
Tel: +55 11 2125 0764

North America
Tel: +1 800 453 6860

© 2007 Koninklijke Philips Electronics N.V.

PHILIPS

All rights are reserved.

Philips—The trusted choice

* A Fortune Global 500 company, Philips is one of the world’s largest medical
products companies with annual revenue of over $7 billion.

* With over 350,000 automated external defibrillators installed, Philips is the
leader in public access defibrillation.!!

« Over 7 billion HeartStart Defibrillator service hours have been logged,
with an additional 7 million added every day.

* Over 17% of Fortune 1000 companies, 8 out of 10 major airlines, and
43 professional sports teams rely on Philips HeartStart Defibrillators.

The HeartStart OnSite Defibrillator is the first defibrillator available for
commercial and institutional users without a prescription. As the leader in
innovative defibrillation technology, Philips is committed to making defibrillators
more widely available so that more lives can be saved. Now with over-the-
counter status, Philips is making it easier for companies and organizations to
institute early defibrillation programs.

Defibrillators are one part of a well-planned resuscitation program, which also
should include responder training in CPR and AED use. Philips recommends
medical oversight of your early defibrillation program by a physician or other
authorized medical practitioner. Consult your state and local requirements
regarding owning and operating defibrillators, and medical oversight.

HeartStart user considerations
* You cannot use the HeartStart OnSite to treat yourself.
» Responding to cardiac arrest may require you to kneel.

To learn more about the HeartStart OnSite Defibrillator and Philips Medical
Systems, visit www.philips.com/heartstart or call 1-800-453-6860.

References

! Andre, et al. Automated External Defibrillator Use by Untrained Bystanders: Can the Public-use Model Work? Prehospital Emergency Care
2004;8:284-291.

Snyder, Time to Shock vs Voice Prompt Duration: Optimization of Defibrillators for Public Access and Home Deployment. 6th Scientific
Congress of the European Resuscitation Council, Oct 2002.

-

The Infant/Child pads cartridge is sold separately,and available only under the order of a physician.

Yu et al. Adverse Qutcomes of Interrupted Precordial Compression During Automated Defibrillation. Circulation 2002; 106:368-372.
Eftesol T, Sunde K, Steen PA. Effects of Interrupting Precordial Compressions in the Calculated Probability of Defibrillation Success During
Out-of-Hospital Cardiac Arrest. Circulation 2002; 105:2270-2273.

Snyder et al. Biphasic Defibrillation Waveform Combined with AED-Imposed “Hands-Off" Intervals Significantly Affect Outcome Following
Prolonged Cardiac Arrest. Abstract from 7th Scientific Congress of the European Council, 2004.

-

Snyder & Morgan. CPR Interruption Interval Varies Widely Among Commercially Available AEDs. Abstract from 7th Scientific Congress of

the European Council, 2004.

Snyder, D.E. and Morgan, C.Wide Variations in Cardiopulonary Resuscitation Intervals Ameng Commercially Available Automated External

Defibrillators May Affect Survival Despite High Defibrillation Efficacy. Critical Care Medicine. 2004;32(9) Supplement:5421-5424.

? Philips Medical Systems. SMART Biphasic Studies, listed alphabetically by study auther.

10 American Heart Association. 2005 American Heart Association Guidelines for Cardiopul
Cardiovascular Care. Circulation. 2005, | 1 2:IV-36.

1 Frost & Sullivan, 2005.

y Resuscitation and Emergency

Philips Medical Systems Nederland B.V. reserves the right to make changes in specifications andfor to discontinue any product at any time without notice
or obligation and will not be liable for any consequences resulting from the use of this publication.

Printed in the Netherlands
4522 962 16731/861 * JAN 2007






._4

7\ CARDIAC

“11\ ) sclence

Power to Believe. Power to Act.

www.cardiacscience.com/powerheartg5




The Powerheart” G5

Empowering Rescuers
at Every Level
to Save Lives

Whether you are an experienced rescuer or a first-time responder, the Powerheart G5 automated
external defibrillator (AED) provides a powerful combination of features that help rescuers provide
sudden cardiac arrest (SCA) victims with swift, effective, and life-saving therapy. The Powerheart G5
is the first FDA-cleared AED to combine fully automatic shock delivery, dual-language functionality,
variable escalating energy, and fast shock times to help save an SCA victim's life.

Easy without compromise

Perform each step of the rescue with user-paced
instruction from RescueCoach™ voice and text prompts.
Pads can be placed on either side of a victim’s chest,

and the Powerheart G5 only provides an automatic shock
when it is required. After the rescue, extract event data
immediately from a USB port.

Reliable and rugged

Know your Powerheart G5 will be ready when called upon thanks to the highly
visible Rescue Ready® indicator that communicates rescue status and confirms
that the internal circuitry, medical-grade battery, and rescue pads have passed
daily, weekly, and monthly self-tests. In fact, a collective 4,100 hours of Rescue
Ready self-tests around the world are performed each day. The durable G5 has
been tested to military standards and features an IP55 rating for protection
against dust and water.

T TR T



Effective CPR made easy

Optional Intellisense™ CPR Feedback monitors the
quality of both chest compression depth and rate.

If either compression rate or depth is outside of
the 2015 American Heart Association acceptable
parameters, the rescuer will receive a short
corrective prompt to ensure effectiveness. Simple
place-and-press design ensures effective CPR.

Peace of mind

Rest easy as the Powerheart G5 is built to last with
an 8-year warranty, a strong indemnification policy,
and a 4-year full operational performance guarantee
on Intellisense® medical grade non-rechargeable
batteries. Feel confident knowing your AED provider
has pioneered AED technology for over 20 years and
helped deployed a half-million Powerheart AEDs
around the world.

Incredibly smart

Feel confident when performing the rescue as the G5
customizes the shock to deliver the appropriate energy
needed for each patient. Defibrillation energy automatically
escalates if additional shocks are needed with a fast shock
time of 10 seconds or less. If more than one shock is required,
the AED does not repeat the same effort. Rather, it increases
the energy input to an appropriate higher level.

Fluent in two languages

Touch a button to change the voice prompts to
one of the chosen languages without restarting
or delaying the rescue.



Powerheart” G5 AED

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

DEFIBRILLATOR

Operations Fully automatic and semi-automatic versions

Waveform STAR® biphasic truncated exponential

Therapy range (J) 95J to 354J (adult)

Fast shock feature Able to deliver a shock after the end of a CPR cycle in 10 seconds or less

Voice prompts

RescueCoach™ prompts provide user-paced instruction.
Optional Intellisense™ CPR Feedback provides corrective voice prompts for both rate and depth.

Text screen

Displays rescue prompts and critical rescue information.
Optional Intellisense CPR Feedback provides corrective text prompts for both rate and depth.

Audible alerts

Voice prompt, system alert

Synchronized shock

Built-in automatic synchronization feature

Pacemaker pulse detection

Yes

Pediatric capability

Therapy range (VE) 22J to 82J, pediatric prompts

Dual language

Latin American Spanish or French Canadian (optional)*

Customizable

Voice prompt, CPR protocol, optional CPR Feedback device settings, and shock protocols via AED Manager

CPR Metronome for CPR compression rate

Visible indicators Rescue Ready® indicator, battery, service, and pad status
Warranty 8 years

PHYSICAL / ENVIRONMENTAL

Dimensions (H x W x D) 34inx90inx11.8in(9cm x 23 cm % 30 cm)

Weight 5.7 Ibs (2.6 kg), including battery and pads

Dust/water resistance

IP55 (IEC 60529)

Operating temperature

32°Fto+122°F (0 °Cto 50 °C)

Altitude ~1,253 ft (-382 m) to 15,073 ft (4,594 m)
Drop MIL-STD-810G, 516.6 (Procedure V) for 1.22 m drop
Shocks MIL-STD-810G, 516.6 (Procedure 1)

Vibration (sine and random)

MIL-STD-810G, 514.6 (Procedure 1, Cat 24)

EMI (radiated/immunity)

IEC 60601-2-4

PADS
Intellisense CPR Feedback

Intellisense™ Defibrillation Pads
Disposable, non-polarized pads with CPR feedback sensor

Standard Defibrillation Pads

Disposable, non-polarized (pads can be placed in either position)

Internal memory

Shelf life 2 years

BATTERY Intellisense® Lithium Battery

Guarantee 4-year, full operational replacement

Capacity 420 shocks (typical) at 300VE

AUTOMATIC SELF-TESTS

Daily, weekly, and monthly Electrical circuitry, AED software, medical grade battery, and defibrillation pads (presence and function)
Weekly Includes partial energy charge

Monthly Includes full energy charge cycle

EVENT DOCUMENTATION

90 minutes of rescue data, multiple rescue functionality

ECG, CPR compression and rescue review

Viewable via AED Manager reporting and configuration software

Communications

USB cable or USB memory stick

*Check for availability in your area.

At the Heart of Saving Lives’

Cardiac Science Corporation * N7 W22025 Johnson Drive, Suite 100, Waukesha, W1 53186 USA
+1.262.953.3500 + US toll-free +1.800.426.0337 * Fax: +1.262.953.3499
Orders and Customer Care * +1.262.953.3500 * US toll-free +1.800.426.0337  Fax: +1.262.798.8292 * care@cardiacscience.com
Technical Support * (US) Fax: +1.262.798.5236 * technicalsupport@cardiacscience.com * (International) internationalservice@cardiacscience.com

( © 2016 Cardiac Science Corporation. All rights reserved. Cardiac Science, “At the Heart of Saving Lives,” the shielded heart logo,
Intellisense, Powerheart, Rescue Ready, RescueCoach, and STAR are trademarks of Cardiac Science Corporarion.

0086 MKT-04786-01rD

CARDIAC
/ sclence




NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS



7 VWINDOW WASHING Estimate# 9639

" PRESSURE WASHING 10-21-2019
Estimate Guaranteed for 90 days.

11246 Distribution Ave E. #18
Jacksonville, Florida 32256
www.ReflectionsJax.com
904-322-8900
3228900@gmail.com

Riverside Management "Services Bannon Lakes.
' 435 Bannon Lakes Blvd

us o
904-627-9271 ¢ : Saint Augustine, FL. 32095

: Description
%Soft wash club house and fitness center buildings removing dirt, surface mold
nd otganic material

ash outside of accessible windows using water fed pole system. Doas not

‘Qly Name
1} Soft Washing
[

1 EWindow

i Washing: clude hard water, paint or construction debris removal.

[Outside : : .
-1 ESoﬁ Washing §Spot treat cement as discussed removing dirt, surface mold and erganic $95.00§. $95.00§ Nong
B - material

Subtotal $975.00
Tax : $0.00
Total $975.00

Paymenl due after service has been completed. Due on raceip

Date

Signature

Mot every line item must be chosen but we require a minimum of $195. Customer will need to be home during cleaning if the
screens are only removable from the inside, or customer may choose fo remove screens themselves. We racommend watering
all plants around house 2-3 days before and after cleaning. Soft washing invaives risk to vegelation as we use a chlarine based







(STLIVER N,

PO Box 51289
Jacksonviile Beach FL. 32240
{904} 220-3337,
Info@krystatklean.com

Riverside Management Services
Brian Stevens
9655 Florida Mining Boulevard West Ste 305
Jacksonville, FL, 32257
{904} 627-9271
bstephens@riversidemgtsve.com

Estimate

26072072

Riverside Management Services

435 Bannon Lakes Boulevard A- B
St. Augustine, FL, 32095
{904) 6279271
bstephens@riversidemgtsve.com

10N .

‘DESCRIPT

Pressure wash both buildings

Commarclal Pressure Washing

435 A: Pressure wash fitness center bullding and clean
windows free of cleaning soluticns {hardwater/ mineral
deposit removal not included) bring plastic for card swipe
devices.

-Pressure wash surfaces with moderate heat, regulated
pressure, and a balanced anti-microblal solution to remove
organic build-up. Some stains may not be fully removable
fram surfaces being cleaned.

-Please review any specific concerns with your Krystal
Klean estimator so we arrive prepared to meet your needs,
-Technicians work safely to protect customer property and
the surrounding environment.

-Technicians will inspect surfaces to identify potential
water intrusion points and give recommendations for
waterproofing, palnting, or sealing. Cleaning methods may
be adjusted depending on surface conditions.

1.00

$380.00 $380.00

Commercial Pressure Washing

435 B: Pressure wash exterior of large community buitding,
use lift to get as much of the high areas as possible
cleaned. BRING PLASTIC FOR OUTDOOR TELEVISION AND
CARD SWIPE ENTRANCE DEVICES Clean windows free of
dirt and cleaning solutions, hardwater mineral deposit
removal not included

-Pressure wash surfaces with moderate heat, reguilated
pressure, and & balanced anti-microbial solution to remove
arganic bulld-up. Some stains may not be fully removable
from surfaces being cleaned,

-Please review any specific concerns with your Krystal
Klean estimator so we arrive prepared to meet your needs,

1.00

$1,490.00 $1,490.00

SN



-Technicians work safely to protect customer property and
the surrounding environment.

-Technicians will inspect surfaces to identify potential
water intrusion points and give recommendations for
waterproofing, painting, or sealing. Cleaning methods may
be adjusted depending on surface conditions.

26' Scissor Lift ELEC 1.00 $170,00 $170.00
JLG 2632ES - 26’ Narrow Electric Scissor Lift

Day: $170, Week: $395, Month; $645

Weight: 4635 [bs

Width: 2° 8" Wide

Assetd# 1186 Serial# 0200001445

Equipment Transportation up to 8,000 lhs 2.00 $95.00 $190.00

Transportation of lifts up to 8,000 Ibs to or from job

St Johns 6.50% $0.00
Estimate Total: $2,230.00

Thank you for the opportunity to serve you!

Krystal Klean upholds the highest industry standards for glass cleaning tools and methods but must inform and educate its
customers about the inherent risk of scratches when cleaning glass. Given the facts below, Krystal Klean cannot be held fiable for
glass scratches. Minuscule glass particles {or “glass fines") may exist on the pane surface. This flaw is common for tempered or
turricane-proof glass often installed in Florida. During a normal cleaning process, these glass fines can break off and cause hairline
scratches. Removal of paint, adhesives, calcium deposits, or construction debris may require the use of scrubbing pads or
scrapers, which increases the risk of scratched glass, and is a separate service from standard window cleaning. When cleaning
glass to remove calctum depesits, some brands of tinted or soft glass may be micro-scratched with vinyl buffing pads. Preexisting
scratches may be visible or apparent after the glass is cleaned.

Terms of payment: The total amount stated is due upon completion. Where applicable, credit cards will be charged for the total
amount upon completion based on the credit card information provided in advance. All late payments (over 30 days) may bear
interest at the hlghest rate permissible under Florida law calculated daily and compounded monthly. Customer shall also he
responsible for paying all reasonable costs incurred in collecting any late payments, including, without limitation, atterneys’ fees.

T

ST S







0] 73"

Landcare Group

Irrigation - Landscape « Matntenance
35 Enterprise Dr,
Bunnell, FL 32110
{(3886) 586-3321

Bannon Lakes CDD

Proposal

475 W. Town Place, Suite 114
St. Augusfine, FL 32092

Project Name
Bannon Lakes Amenity Center

Proposal # Project # Rep. Attention Terms Dale
01081 M101 AK Brian Stephens Net 30 7M7/2019
Unit:Price == Total mmen
1,380.00 1,380.00
765.00 765.00
*Prices are good for 30 days. Total:

Approved by:
Print Namae:

Date:

B ST



TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS



Email Transmittal Sheet

Date: August 13, 2019
To: Brian Stephens

Recipient's Email: bstephens@riversidemgtsve.com

From: Melissa Reed

Number of Pages to Follow: 0

Please call 904-268-0888 or fax to 904-282-3339 if you do not receive all
pages or if any of this transmittal is illegible.

RE: Bannon Lakes Teon-Air Windscreen

We can provide 383’ of & in height Green Tenn-Air windscreen with heat cut
vents for a total price of $1834.00.

Signature:
Date:

Court Suifaces of Florida, LLC - 1528 Virgils Way #8, Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 1
http:/fwww.courisurfacesfla.com/




Email Transmittal Sheet

Dé:te: August 13, 2019
To: Brian Stephens

Recipient's Email: bstephens@riversidemgtsve.coin

From: Melissa Reed

Number of Pages to Follow: 0

Please call 904-268-0888 or fax to 904-282-3339 if you do not receive all
pages or if any of this transmittal is illegible.

RE: Bannon Lakes Tenn-Air Pro Windscreen

We can provide 383 of 6 in height Green Tenn-Air Pro windscreen with heat cut
vents for a total price of $1873.00.

Signature:
Date:

Court Surfaces of Florida, 1LLC - 1528 Virgils Way #6, Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 1
http:fiwww.courtsurfacesfla.com/

mr



Email Transmittal Sheet

‘Date: August 13, 2019
To: Brian Stephens

Recipient's Email: bstephens@riversidemgtsve.com

From: Melissa Reed

Number of Pages to Follow: 0

Please call 904-268-0888 or fax to 904-282-3339 if you do not receive all
pages or if any of this transmittal is illegible.

RE: Bannon Lakes Dura-Air Windscreen

We can provide 383’ of 6’ in height Green Dura-Air windscreen with heat cut
vents for a total price of $2107.00.

Signature;
Date:

Couri Suriaces of Florida, |LLC - 1528 Virgils Way #6, Green Cove Springs, IFL 32043
hitp://www.courtsurfacesfla.com/




ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS



Date 17-OCT-2019 Expires 15-JAN-2020

Ship To

BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
435 BANNON LAKES BLVD

SAINT AUGUSTINE, ST JOHNS

FL 32092

United States

Contact :
0:

M:

F:

Email:

Bill To

BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
435 BANNON LAKES BLVD

SAINT AUGUSTINE,ST JOHNS

FL 32092

us

Contact :

uote# 336621 6-1R

Sales Representative
COREY HEFLIN

0: 407-902-4446
M: 407-902-4446
F: 317-536-3574
Email: Corey.Heflin@Lifefitness.com

Life Fitness

Phone: Main (847) 288-3300
Toll Free (800) 735-3867

Life Fitness

9525 Bryn Mawr Avenue

Rosemont, IL 60018

USA

Onsite Contact and Delivery Information
Email:

Phone:

Shipment Priority:

Customer Requested Delivery Date:

Qty Unit Price Unit Unit Price

Discount Selling

Page 1/3

Total Price
Selling

1 INPMSC

LIFE FITNESS POWERMILL C CONSOLE - PowerMill Base/INTY C

LED PM WLAN//Silver Int Handlebar Kit PowerMill

1 8,999.00 -3,149.65 5,849.35

This is a draft quote and not a contract - Subject to management approval

5,849.35



Quote#

3366216 - 1R

Date 17-OCT-2019 Expires 15-JAN-2020

Lrivress WML <SCYBEX

~ 2
INDOORN CYCLING scilgew ‘ <

Page 2/3

PO Number Subtotal
Payment Type List Price 8,999.00
Payment Terms NET 30 Total Adjustment -3,148.65
Freight Terms Selling Price 5,849.35

FOB
Freight/Fuel/Installation 437.69
Tax TAXES AS APPLICABLE
Total(USD) 6,287.04
Notes:

This is a draft quote and not a contract - Subject to management approval



Quotes trass [, STYBEX

Date 17-OCT-2019 Expires 15-JAN-2020 mooorToveuna |
ADDITIONAL TERMS OF SALE:

1

13,
14,

15.

16.
17.

By accepting this Quote, Customer agrees (a) to be bound by the terms hereof and Life Fitness' standard Terms and Conditions of Sale
found at https:/lifefitness.com/terms-conditions-of-sale; and (b) as applicable, to allow the transaction to proceed without a Customer-issued
purchase order or other form of purchase agreement as a condition for payment.

Life Fitness RECOMMENDS that all strength training equipment be secured to the floor to prevent tipping, rocking or displacement which
might occur in the event of unanticipated use of the equipment. Life Fitness also REQUIRES that certain pieces of strength training
equipment be secured to the floor. Please contact our Customer Service Department or your account representative for specific details.

All shipments of Products shall be F.O.B,, Life Fitness' dock.

Life Fitness will issue an invoice corresponding to this Quote upon shipment.

Life Fitness may ship partial orders.

Any additional or different terms or conditions which appear on purchaser's document (including its Purchase Orders) that are inconsistent
with the Life Fitness Terms and Conditions of Sale shall be voided and of no effect.

. Orders canceled by Customer after shipment (or after production starts for "Built-To-Order" products) are subject to a 20% restocking fee.

. Delays in delivery at Customer's request may result in storage fees (see referenced Terms and Conditions for further details).

. Prices set forth in this Quote are good for 30 days.

. All invoices and any payments due thereon related to this Quote will be in U.S. Dollars and will reflect Exchange Rate at time of shipment.

. Payment terms and credit lines are subject to Life Fitness credit approval.

. Until all Products are paid for in full, Customer grants to, and Life Fitness shall retain, a security interest in and lien on all Products sold to

Customer and all proceeds arising from our sale of the Products by Customer and all discounts, rebates and other funds on Customer's
account payable by Life Fitness. Customer authorizes Life Fitness to, at any time and from time to time, file financing statements,
continuation statements, and amendments thereto that describe the Callateral, and which contain any other information required pursuant to
the UCC for the sufficiency of filing office acceptance of any financing statement, continuation statement, or amendment, and Customer
agrees to furnish any such information to Life Fitness promptly upon request. Any such financing statement, continuation statement, or
amendment may be signed by Life Fitness on behalf of Customer and may be filed at any time in any jurisdiction. Upon Life Fitness' request,
a Customer shall execute such documents that may be necessary or reasonable to protect Life Fitness' security interest.

When accepted, this Quote may be processed, fulfilled, and/or invoiced by Life Fitness and/or its affiliated companies, including, but not
limited to, Brunswick Billiards, Cybex, SCIFIT or Indoor Cycling Group (ICG), and Customer agrees to make any required payments to the
entity that issued the invoice.

Life Fitness reserves the right to limit the use of credit cards. A service fee for credit transactions may apply.

Subscription Services purchased pursuant to this Quote will automatically renew for a Subscription Term equivalent in length to the then
expiring Subscription Term at Life Fitness' then current Subscription Charges unless otherwise provided by Life Fitness in writing. Either Life
Fitness or Customer may elect to terminate any such Subscription Services account at the end of Customer's then current Subscription
Term by providing notice in compliance with the Subscription Agreement, on or prior to the date thirty (30) days preceding the end of such
Subscription Term.

Financing options are available through Life Fitness Leasing. For more information, please contact your local sale representative.

This Quote may be executed in two (2) or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall
constitute one and the same instrument. Counterparts may be made and/or delivered via facsimile, electronic mail (including via .pdf) or any
electronic signature complying with the United States Electronic Signatures in Global and National Commerce (ESIGN) Act of 2000
(including counterparts delivered via DocuSign), and any counterpart so delivered shall be deemed to have been delivered and be valid and
effective for all purposes. No further original counterpart is required to be delivered after an exchange of counterparts by any of the methods
described above, and all parties agree to treat such electronically delivered signatures as original signatures and to refrain from asserting the
lack of original signatures as a defense against the binding enforceability of this instrument.

This is a draft quote and not a contract - Subject to management approval

Page 3/3






TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS



AGREEMENT FOR LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION MAINTENANCE SERVICES
BETWEEN BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AND
LANDCARE GROUP, INC.

THIS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is effective as of the 15 day of August, 2019, by and
between:

Bannon Lakes Community Development District, a local unit of special-purpose
government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being situated
in St. Johns County, Florida, with an address of 475 West Town Place, Suite 114,
St. Augustine, Florida 32092 (“District”); and

Landcare Group, Inc., a Florida corporation whose address is 35 Enterprise Drive,
Bunnell, Florida 32210 (the “Contractor” and, together with the District, the
“Parties”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the District is a local unit of special-purpose government established pursuant
to the Uniform Community Development District Act of 1980, as codified in Chapter 190, Florida
Statutes (the "Act"); and

WHEREAS, the District was established for the purpose of planning, financing,
constructing, operating and/or maintaining certain infrastructure; and

WHEREAS, the District owns, operates and maintains certain landscape and irrigation
improvements (“Improvements”); and

WHEREAS, the District desires to enter into an agreement with an independent contractor
to provide landscape and irrigation maintenance services for the Improvements; and

WHEREAS, , Contractor represents that it is qualified and willing to serve as a landscape
and irrigation maintenance contractor and provide such services to the District, all as more
particularly described herein and Exhibit A (“Services”), attached hereto and incorporated herein,
within the District areas depicted in the map attached hereto as Exhibit B (“Landscape Areas”),
and incorporated herein by reference; and

WHEREAS, the District and Contractor warrant and agree that they have all right, power
and authority to enter into and be bound by this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, agreements, and mutual covenants
contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which
are hereby acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties agree as follows:

SECTION 1.  INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The recitals so stated are true and correct
and by this reference are incorporated into and form a material part of this Agreement.



SECTION 2. DESCRIPTION OF WORK AND SERVICES.

A. The District desires that the Contractor provide professional landscape and
irrigation maintenance services within presently accepted standards. Upon all Parties signing this
Agreement, the Contractor shall provide the District with the Services identified in Exhibit A. To
the extent there is any conflict between the terms of this Agreement and Exhibit A, the terms of
this Agreement shall control.

B. While providing the Services, the Contractor shall assign such staff as may
be required, and such staff shall be responsible for coordinating, expediting, and controlling all
aspects to assure completion of the Services.

C. The Contractor shall provide the Services as shown in Section 3 of this
Agreement. Contractor shall solely be responsible for the means, manner and methods by which
its duties, obligations and responsibilities are met to the satisfaction of the District.

D. This Agreement grants to Contractor the right to enter the lands that are
subject to this Agreement, for those purposes described in this Agreement, and Contractor hereby
agrees to comply with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations.

SECTION 3.  SCOPE OF LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION MAINTENANCE SERVICES. The
Contractor will provide landscape and irrigation maintenance services for the Improvements. The
duties, obligations, and responsibilities of Contractor are to provide the material, tools, skill and
labor necessary for the Services attached as Exhibit A. To the extent there is any conflict between
the terms of Exhibit A and this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall control.

SECTION4. MANNER OF CONTRACTOR’S PERFORMANCE. The Contractor agrees, as
an independent contractor, to undertake work and/or perform such services as specified in this
Agreement or any addendum executed by the Parties or in any authorized written work order by
the District issued in connection with this Agreement and accepted by the Contractor. All work
shall be performed in a neat and professional manner reasonably acceptable to the District and
shall be in accordance with industry standards. The performance of the Services by the Contractor
under this Agreement and related to this Agreement shall conform to any written instructions
issued by the District.

A. Should any work and/or services be required which are not specified in this
Agreement or any addenda, but which are nevertheless necessary for the proper provision of
services to the District, such work or services shall be fully performed by the Contractor as if
described and delineated in this Agreement. Extra work will be quoted and approved by the
District Manager before any work is started.

B. The Contractor agrees that the District shall not be liable for the payment of
any work or services not included in Section 3 unless the District, through an authorized
representative of the District, authorizes the Contractor, in writing, to perform such work.



C. The District shall designate in writing a person to act as the District’s
representative with respect to the services to be performed under this Agreement. The District’s
representative shall have complete authority to transmit instructions, receive information, interpret
and define the District’s policies and decisions with respect to materials, equipment, elements, and
systems pertinent to the Contractor’s services.

1) The District hereby designates the District Manager to act as its
representative.

2) Upon request by the District Manager, the Contractor agrees to meet
with the District’s representative to walk the property to discuss
conditions, schedules, and items of concern regarding this
Agreement.

D. Contractor shall use all due care to protect the property of the District, its
residents, and landowners from damage. Contractor agrees to repair any damage resulting from
Contractor’s activities and work within twenty-four (24) hours.

SECTIONS. COMPENSATION; TERM.

A. As compensation for the Services described in this Agreement, the District
agrees to pay the Contractor an amount of Twelve Thousand Four Hundred Eighty Seven Dollars
and Fourteen Cents ($12,487.14) per month for an annual total of One Hundred Forty Nine
Thousand Eight Hundred Forty Five Dollars and Sixty Eight Cents ($149,845.68). The term of
this Agreement shall be from August 1, 2019 through July 31, 2020, unless terminated earlier by
either party in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. The District shall have the option
of renewing this Agreement for two additional one year terms at the same price set forth herein.

B. If the District should desire additional work or services, or to add additional
areas to be maintained, the Contractor agrees to negotiate in good faith to undertake such additional
work or services. Upon successful negotiations, the Parties shall agree in writing to an addendum,
addenda, work authorization or change order to this Agreement, to which the terms of this
Agreement shall apply in full. The Contractor shall be compensated for such agreed additional
work or services based upon a payment amount acceptable to the Parties and agreed to in writing.

C. The District may require, as a condition precedent to making any payment
to the Contractor that all subcontractors, materialmen, suppliers or laborers be paid and require
evidence, in the form of Lien Releases or partial Waivers of Lien, to be submitted to the District
by those subcontractors, material men, suppliers or laborers, and further require that the Contractor
provide an Affidavit relating to the payment of said indebtedness. Further, the District shall have
the right to require, as a condition precedent to making any payment, evidence from the Contractor,
in a form satisfactory to the District, that any indebtedness of the Contractor, as to services to the
District, has been paid and that the Contractor has met all of the obligations with regard to the
withholding and payment of taxes, Social Security payments, Workmen’s Compensation,
Unemployment Compensation contributions, and similar payroll deductions from the wages of
employees.



D.

The Contractor shall maintain records conforming to usual accounting

practices. As soon as may be practicable at the beginning of each month, the Contractor shall
invoice the District for all services performed in the prior month and any other sums due to the
Contractor. The District shall pay the invoice amount within thirty (30) days after the invoice date.
The Contractor may cease performing services under this Agreement if any payment due hereunder
is not paid within thirty (30) days of the invoice date. Each monthly invoice will include such
supporting information as the District may reasonably require the Contractor to provide.

SECTION 6.

A.

INSURANCE.

The Contractor shall maintain throughout the term of this Agreement the
following insurance:

1) Worker’s Compensation Insurance in accordance with the laws of
the State of Florida.

2) Commercial General Liability Insurance covering the Contractor’s
legal liability for bodily injuries, with limits of not less than
$1,000,000 combined single limit bodily injury and property
damage liability, and covering at least the following hazards:

(@) Independent Contractors Coverage for bodily injury and
property damage in connection with any subcontractors’
operation.

A3) Employer’s Liability Coverage with limits of at least $1,000,000
(one million dollars) per accident or disease.

“) Automobile Liability Insurance for bodily injuries in limits of not
less than $1,000,000 combined single limit bodily injury and for
property damage, providing coverage for any accident arising out of
or resulting from the operation, maintenance, or use by the
Contractor of any owned, non-owned, or hired automobiles, trailers,
or other equipment required to be licensed.

The District, its staff, consultants and supervisors shall be named as
additional insured. The Contractor shall furnish the District with the
Certificate of Insurance evidencing compliance with this requirement. No
certificate shall be acceptable to the District unless it provides that any
change or termination within the policy periods of the insurance coverage,
as certified, shall not be effective within thirty (30) days of prior written
notice to the District. Insurance coverage shall be from a reputable
insurance carrier, licensed to conduct business in the State of Florida.

If the Contractor fails to have secured and maintained the required



insurance, the District has the right but not the obligation to secure such
required insurance in which event the Contractor shall pay the cost for that
required insurance and shall furnish, upon demand, all information that may
be required in connection with the District’s obtaining the required
insurance.

SECTION 7.  INDEMNIFICATION.

A. Obligations under this section shall include the payment of all settlements,
judgments, damages, liquidated damages, penalties, forfeitures, back pay
awards, court costs, arbitration and/or mediation costs, litigation expenses,
attorney fees, and paralegal fees (incurred in court, out of court, on appeal,
or in bankruptcy proceedings) as ordered.

B. Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the District and its
officers, agents and employees from any and all liability, claims, actions,
suits or demands by any person, corporation or other entity for injuries,
death, property damage or other damage of any nature, arising out of, or in
connection with, the work to be performed by Contractor. Contractor further
agrees that nothing herein shall constitute or be construed as a waiver of the
District's limitations on liability contained in section 768.28, Florida
Statutes, or any other statute. Any subcontractor retained by the Contractor
shall acknowledge in writing such subcontractor’s acceptance of the terms
of this Section 7.

SECTION 8.  LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY. Nothing in this Agreement
shall be deemed as a waiver of the District’s sovereign immunity or the District’s limits of liability
as set forth in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statute, and nothing in this Agreement
shall inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would
otherwise be barred under such limitations of liability or by operation of law.

SECTIONY9. COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION. The Contractor shall
keep, observe, and perform all requirements of applicable local, State, and Federal laws, rules,
regulations, or ordinances. If the Contractor fails to notify the District in writing within five (5)
days of the receipt of any notice, order, required to comply notice, or a report of a violation or an
alleged violation, made by any local, State, or Federal governmental body or agency or subdivision
thereof with respect to the services being rendered under this Agreement or any action of the
Contractor or any of its agents, servants, employees, or materialmen, or with respect to terms,
wages, hours, conditions of employment, safety appliances, or any other requirements applicable
to provision of services, or fails to comply with any requirement of such agency within five (5)
days after receipt of any such notice, order, request to comply notice, or report of a violation or an
alleged violation, the District may terminate this Agreement, such termination to be effective upon
the giving of notice of termination.

SECTION 10. LIENS AND CLAIMS. The Contractor shall promptly and properly pay for
all labor employed, materials purchased, and equipment hired by it to perform under this



Agreement. The Contractor shall keep the District’s property free from any materialmen’s or
mechanic’s liens and claims or notices in respect to such liens and claims, which arise by reason
of the Contractor’s performance under this Agreement, and the Contractor shall immediately
discharge any such claim or lien. In the event that the Contractor does not pay or satisfy such
claim or lien within three (3) business days after the filing of notice thereof, the District, in addition
to any and all other remedies available under this Agreement, may terminate this Agreement to be
effective immediately upon the giving of notice of termination.

SECTION 11. DEFAULT AND PROTECTION AGAINST THIRD PARTY INTERFERENCE. A
default by either party under this Agreement shall entitle the other to all remedies available at law
or in equity, which may include, but not be limited to, the right of damages, injunctive relief, and/or
specific performance. The District shall be solely responsible for enforcing its rights under this
Agreement against any interfering third party. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit or
impair the District’s right to protect its rights from interference by a third party to this Agreement.

SECTION 12. CUSTOM AND USAGE. It is hereby agreed, any law, custom, or usage to the
contrary notwithstanding, that the District shall have the right at all times to enforce the conditions
and agreements contained in this Agreement in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement,
notwithstanding any conduct or custom on the part of the District in refraining from so doing; and
further, that the failure of the District at any time or times to strictly enforce its rights under this
Agreement shall not be construed as having created a custom in any way or manner contrary to
the specific conditions and agreements of this Agreement, or as having in any way modified or
waived the same.

SECTION 13. SUCCESSORS. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding
upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Parties to this Agreement,
except as expressly limited in this Agreement.

SECTION 14. TERMINATION. The District agrees that the Contractor may terminate this
Agreement with cause by providing sixty (60) days’ written notice of termination to the District
stating a failure of the District to perform according to the terms of this Agreement; provided,
however, that the District shall be provided a reasonable opportunity to cure any failure under this
Agreement. The Contractor agrees that the District may terminate this Agreement immediately
for cause by providing written notice of termination to the Contractor. The District shall provide
thirty (30) days’ written notice of termination without cause. Upon any termination of this
Agreement, the Contractor shall be entitled to payment for all work and/or services rendered up
until the effective termination of this Agreement, subject to whatever claims or off-sets the District
may have against the Contractor.

SECTION 15. PERMITS AND LICENSES. All permits and licenses required by any
governmental agency directly for the District shall be obtained and paid for by the District. All
other permits or licenses necessary for the Contractor to perform under this Agreement shall be
obtained and paid for by the Contractor.



SECTION 16. ASSIGNMENT. Neither the District nor the Contractor may assign this
Agreement without the prior written approval of the other. Any purported assignment without
such approval shall be void.

SECTION 17. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS. In all matters relating to this
Agreement, the Contractor shall be acting as an independent contractor. Neither the Contractor
nor employees of the Contractor, if there are any, are employees of the District under the meaning
or application of any Federal or State Unemployment or Insurance Laws or Old Age Laws or
otherwise. The Contractor agrees to assume all liabilities or obligations imposed by any one or
more of such laws with respect to employees of the Contractor, if there are any, in the performance
of this Agreement. The Contractor shall not have any authority to assume or create any obligation,
express or implied, on behalf of the District and the Contractor shall have no authority to represent
the District as an agent, employee, or in any other capacity, unless otherwise set forth in this
Agreement.

SECTION 18. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY. The descriptive headings in this
Agreement are for convenience only and shall neither control nor affect the meaning or
construction of any of the provisions of this Agreement.

SECTION 19. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT. A default by either Party under this
Agreement shall entitle the other Party to all remedies available at law or in equity. In the event
that either the District or the Contractor is required to enforce this Agreement by court proceedings
or otherwise, then the prevailing Party shall be entitled to recover all fees and costs incurred,
including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate
proceedings.

SECTION 20. AGREEMENT. This instrument shall constitute the final and complete
expression of this Agreement between the Parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.

SECTION 21. AMENDMENTS. Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in
this Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both the
Parties.

SECTION 22. AUTHORIZATION. The execution of this Agreement has been duly
authorized by the appropriate body or official of the Parties, the Parties have complied with all the
requirements of law, and the Parties have full power and authority to comply with the terms and
provisions of this Agreement.

SECTION 23. NOTICES. All notices, requests, consents and other communications under
this Agreement (“Notice” or "Notices") shall be in writing and shall be hand delivered, mailed by
First Class Mail, postage prepaid, or sent by overnight delivery service, to the Parties, as follows:

A. If to District: Bannon Lakes Community Development
District
475 West Town Place, Suite 114
St. Augustine, Florida 32092



Attn: District Manager

With a copy to: Hopping Green & Sams, P.A.
119 S. Monroe Street, Suite 300
Tallahassee, Florida 32301
Attn: District Counsel

B. If to the Contractor: Landcare Group, Inc.,
35 Enterprise Drive
Bunnell, Florida 32110
Attn: David Jackson

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received only
upon actual delivery at the address set forth above. Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place
of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day. If any
time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business day,
the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day. Saturdays, Sundays, and
legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as business days.
Counsel for the District and counsel for the Contractor may deliver Notices on behalf of the District
and the Contractor. Any party or other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify
the Parties and addressees of any change in name or address to which Notices shall be sent by
providing the same on five (5) days written notice to the Parties and addressees set forth in this
Agreement.

SECTION 24. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. This Agreement is solely for the benefit of
the Parties hereto and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to or for the
benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement
expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or corporation
other than the Parties hereto any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this Agreement or
any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the provisions, representations,
covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to the sole benefit of and shall
be binding upon the Parties hereto and their respective representatives, successors, and assigns.

SECTION 25. CONTROLLING LAW AND VENUE. This Agreement and the provisions
contained in this Agreement shall be construed, interpreted, and controlled according to the laws
of the State of Florida. All actions and disputes shall be brought in the proper court and venue,
which shall be St. Johns County, Florida.

SECTION 26. COMPLIANCE WITH PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS. Contractor understands and
agrees that all documents of any kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement
may be public records, and, accordingly, Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable
provisions of Florida law in handling such records, including but not limited to Section 119.0701,
Florida Statutes. Contractor acknowledges that the designated public records custodian for the
District is its District Manager (“Public Records Custodian”). Among other requirements and to
the extent applicable by law, the Contractor shall 1) keep and maintain public records required by
the District to perform the service; 2) upon request by the Public Records Custodian, provide the



District with the requested public records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a
reasonable time period at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida
Statutes; 3) ensure that public records which are exempt or confidential, and exempt from public
records disclosure requirements, are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of
the contract term and following the contract term if the Contractor does not transfer the records to
the Public Records Custodian of the District; and 4) upon completion of the contract, transfer to
the District, at no cost, all public records in Contractor’s possession or, alternatively, keep,
maintain and meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records pursuant to Florida
laws. When such public records are transferred by the Contractor, the Contractor shall destroy any
duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure
requirements. All records stored electronically must be provided to the District in a format that is
compatible with Microsoft Word or Adobe PDF formats.

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF
CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE
PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN
OF PUBLIC RECORDS JIM OLIVER AT (904) 940-5850 OR 475 WEST TOWN PLACE,
SUITE 114, ST. AUGUSTINE, FLORIDA 32092.

SECTION 27. SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more
provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining
portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or unenforceable.

SECTION 28. ARM’S LENGTH TRANSACTION. This Agreement has been negotiated fully
between the Parties as an arm's length transaction. The Parties participated fully in the preparation
of this Agreement with the assistance of their respective counsel. In the case of a dispute
concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the Parties are each deemed to
have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and any doubtful language will not be interpreted
or construed against any party.

SECTION 29. COUNTERPARTS. This instrument may be executed in any number of
counterparts, each of which, when executed and delivered, shall constitute an original, and such
counterparts together shall constitute one and the same instrument. Signature and acknowledgment
pages, if any, may be detached from the counterparts and attached to a single copy of this document
to physically form one document.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have signed and sealed this Agreement on
the day and year first written above.

Attest: BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Secretary/Assistant Secretary By:

Board of Supervisors Its:

Board of Supervisors

Print Name:

ATTEST: LANDCARE GROUP, INC.
By:

Witness Print;
Its:

Print Name of Witness

Exhibit A: Proposal
Exhibit B: Landscape Areas Map

10



EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

11



VDl

)

Landcare Group

35 Enterprise Dr. Bunnell, Florida 32110 = Main Office: (386) 586-3321 = Fax: (386) 586-3330 » www.landcaregrp.com

Attachment ’A’

Practical Specifications for Contract Landscape Maintenance for:
Eastland Partners LLC

The work for the exterior landscape maintenance is to include the furnishing of all labor, materials, equipment, accessories
and services necessary or incidental to sustain all turf and plant materials in a healthy, vigorous growing condition, free
from weeds, diseases, insects, and nutritional deficiencies as well as a completely operational irrigation system. All
associated planted areas are to be kept in a continuous healthy, neat, clean and debris free condition for the entire life of
the contract. The contractor will be expected to provide service for the property fifty-two (52) weeks per year.

SCHEDULE “A” — GENERAL SERVICES

A. Turf Maintenance

Turf maintenance is defined as all mowing, edging, trimming and cleanup of lawn areas.

1.

Mowing of Common Area

Prior to mowing, remove and dispose of normal litter and debris from all landscape areas.

St. Augustine turf shall be mowed weekly during the growing season from March 15% through October
15" and as needed during the non-growing season from October 15" through March 15". Based on
this schedule, it is estimated that the contractor will perform a minimum of 40 and a maximum of 42
mowing cycles per 12-month period in the performance of this contract. It is understood that the
contractor may be required to periodically add or delete mowing cycles based on weather or other
factors beyond their control

Bahia turf shall be mowed weekly during the growing season from April 1st through October 1% and as
needed during the non-growing season from October 1% through April 1%, Based on this schedule, it is
estimated that the contractor will perform a minimum of 36 and a maximum of 40 mowing cycles per
12-month period in the performance of this contract. It is understood that the contractor may be
required to periodically add or delete mowing cycles based on weather or other factors beyond their
control

St. Augustine and Bahia turf shall be cut with rotary mowers to maintain a uniform height. Mowing
blades shall be kept sufficiently sharp and properly adjusted to provide a cleanly cut grass blade.
Mowing pattern shall be varied where feasible to prevent rutting and minimize compaction.

Page 3 of 21

12



e. Mowing height for St. Augustine and Bahia turf will be set at 34" to 4”.

f. Zoysia turf shall be mowed based on 40 to 42 mowing cycles per 12-month period in the performance
of this contract. It is understood that the contractor may be required to periodically add or delete
mowing cycles based on weather or other factors.

g. Zoysia turf shall be cut with a rotary mower to maintain a uniform height. Mowing blades shall be kept
sufficiently sharp and properly adjusted to provide a cleanly cut grass blade. Mowing pattern shall be
varied where feasible to prevent rutting and minimize compaction.

h. Mowing height for Zoysia turf will be setat 2” to 3”.

i. Visible clippings that may be left following mowing operations shall be removed from the site each visit.

j.  Contractor will take special care to prevent damage to plant material as a result of the mowing
operations. Any damage caused by contractor’s mowing equipment may result in the replacement of
damaged material at the contractor’s cost. Replacement material will be of similar size to the material
being replaced.

2. Edging

Sidewalks, curbs, concrete slabs and other paved surfaces will be edged in conjunction with mowing
operations. Edging is defined as removal of unwanted turf from the above mentioned borders by use
of a mechanical edger. String trimmers will not be used for this function. It is understood that edging
of beds and hard surfaces will be skipped periodically to let the turf fill in and/or thicken the vertical
edge.

3. String Trimming

a.

C.

String Trimming shall be performed around road signs, guard posts, trees, shrubs, utility poles, and other
obstacles where mowers cannot reach. Grass shall be trimmed to the same desired height as
determined by the mowing operation. Trimming shall be completed with each mowing operation.

Maintaining grass-free areas by use of chemicals may be the preferred method in certain applications.

Turf around the edge of all waterways shall be mowed or string trimmed to the natural water’s edge
during each mowing cycle. It is understood that every effort will be made to keep clippings out of water
bodies, but inevitably some clippings will get in the water with prevailing wind.

Page 4 of 21

13



4. Blowing

a. When using forced air machinery to clean curbs, sidewalks and other paved surfaces, care must be taken
to prevent blowing grass clippings into beds, onto vehicles or onto other hardscape surfaces.

b. Contractor will be expected to blow off the tennis courts, pickleball courts, pool area and all entry points
and other similar amenities.

5. Damage Prevention/Repair

Special care shall be taken to protect building foundations, light poles, sign posts and other hardscape
elements from mowing, edging or string trimming equipment damage. Contractor will agree to have
repairs made by specialized contractors or reimburse the association or homeowners within 30 days for
any damage to property caused by their crew members or equipment. Mulch beds are recommended
in areas where equipment may come in contact with the above stated items.

B. Detail

The detailing process will include trimming, pruning and shaping of all shrubbery, ornamental trees and
groundcover, removal of tree suckers, structural pruning of select varieties of plant material and ornamental
grasses as directed, as well as the defining of bed lines, tree saucers and the removal of all unwanted vegetation.

1. Pruning

a. Prune trees, shrubs and groundcovers to encourage healthy growth and create a natural appearance.
Prune to control the new plant growth, maintain the desired plant shape and remove dead, damaged,
or diseased portions of the plant. Provide remedial attention and repair to plant material as appropriate
to season or in response to incidental damage.

b. Pruning of trees up to a height of 8 feet is included in the scope of the work. If pruning is required above
the height of 8 feet contractor shall propose an extra service to management and acquire approval prior
to performing the work. The branching height of trees shall be raised only for the following reasons:

¢ Provide clearance for pedestrians, small vehicles, mowers and buildings.
o Maintain clearance from shrubs in bed areas.
o Improve visibility in parking lots and around entries.

c. Prune trees to remove weak branching patterns and provide corrective pruning for proper
development. Cut back to branch collar without leaving stubs. Provide clean and flush cut with no
tearing of the tree bark.

Page 5 of 21

14



2.

Prune all shrubbery in accordance with the architectural intent as it relates to adjacent plantings and
intended function.

Prune to contain perimeter growth within intended bed areas. Established groundcover shall be
maintained 4” to 6” away from adjacent hardscape and turf. Mature groundcover shall be maintained
at a consistent, level height to provide a smooth and even appearance and separation from adjacent
plant material.

Crape Myrtles are to be trimmed once per year in the winter months. Trimming should include removal
of old blooms, sucker growth and any cross branching. Trimming should be done in such a way that
cuts are no less than 12” away from previous year’s cuts. “Hat Racking” will not be permitted unless
directed otherwise by management.

Pruning of all palms less than 12’ CT in height will be included in the sectional rotation. Pruning consists
of removal of all dead fronds, seedpods and any loose boots.

Edging

Edging is defined as removal of unwanted vegetation along beds and tree saucers. Edges are to be
perpendicular to the ground.

b. Only mechanical edgers will be used for this function.

Care will be taken to maintain bed edges as designed in either straight or curvilinear lines.

3. Weed Control

C. General

1.

Bed areas are to be sprayed after each detail service. Pre and post-emergent chemicals are acceptable
means of control.

b. Hardscape cracks and expansion joints are to be sprayed in conjunction with the detail cycle to control

weeds.

Policing/Special Maintenance

Contractor will police the grounds on each service visit to remove trash, debris and fallen tree litter less
than 2” in diameter. Contractor is not responsible for removal of excessive storm debris which would
be performed with prior approval.

b. Contractor will dedicate personnel and specialized equipment for the removal of seasonal leaf drop

from all landscape and hardscape areas during the months of November through April.

Page 6 of 21

15



2. Communication

a. The Contractor will communicate with management for any landscape issues requiring immediate
attention.

b. Contractor agrees to take part in monthly inspections of the property to ensure their performance of
this agreement meets the standards required herein and protects the overall well-being of the
property’s landscape. Contractor also agrees to complete any work thatappears on punch lists resulting
from inspections or reviews within three weeks of receiving them. Contractor will have their Account
Manager participate on its behalf and have their Lawn and Ornamental and Irrigation Managers or
Technicians available if needed.

c. Contractor will be required to maintain an interactive web site or a customer service work order system
(software) that will allow management to make direct contact for service requests and/or extra work.
The web site also must be set up to alert property management when requests become delinquent.

d. Contractor agrees to have a qualified individual available to inspect finished homes and sections of
common area for the purpose of accepting them for maintenance services. The contractor will be asked
to communicate via memorandum on their willingness to accept completed areas or state deficiencies
that preclude acceptance.

2. Staffing

a. The Contractor shall have a well-experienced Account Manager. This person should have extensive
knowledge of horticultural practices, and be capable of properly supervising others. He/she and other
supervisors should be in a certain type uniforms that distinguishes them from the crew. The Account
Manager will communicate with the property’s staff. In order to maintain continuity, the same Account
Manager shall direct the scheduled maintenance operations throughout the year. Any anticipated
changes in supervisory personnel shall be brought to the attention of management prior to any such
change. This will assure the Consultant and Management that maintenance personnel remain familiar
with the maintenance specifications, the site and any changing conditions.

b. The crew members should be properly trained to carry out their assigned task, and should work in a
safe professional manner. Each crew member should be in full uniform at all times to include all rain,
cold weather gear and hats.

c. Contractor is expected to staff the property with trained personnel experienced in commercial
landscape maintenance. All personnel applying fertilizers, insecticides, herbicides and fungicides must
be certified by the FL Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services. These individuals should be
Best Management Practices Certified and hold a Limited Certification for Urban Landscape Commercial
Fertilizer or a Certified Pest Control Operator or an employee with an ID card working under the
supervision of a CPCO.

d. Contractor agrees to screen all crew members for criminal background, advise Management and not
employ persons for this Contract that have been convicted of or pled guilty to a felony crime. Also,
Contractor agrees to follow all INS guidelines for hiring and to maintain an -9 and other required
documents on each employee.

Page 7 of 21

16



e. Contractor is expected to staff the property with adequately trained personnel. Holidays observed that
do not require staffing include New Year’s Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day,
Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. Normal working hours are from 7:00 AM until 7:00 PM. Saturdays
will be made available for makeup work due to inclement weather from 8:00 AM until 5 PM.

SCHEDULE “B” - TURF CARE PROGRAM (ST. AUGUSTINE)

A. Application Schedule

Month Application

January: Late winter fertilization, broadleaf weed and disease control

March: Spring granular fertilization, broadleaf weed control, insect and disease control
May: Early summer liquid fertilization with Arena and weed control

July: Insect and weed control

September: Late summer fertilization, insect and disease control

November: Fall fertilization and broadleaf weed/disease control

Note: Some applications will be combined for efficiency. Applications can be added or deleted based on soil
samples, availability of products or inclement weather.

B. Application Requirements

1. Fertilization

a. Annual program will include a minimum of 5 Ibs. of N/1000 square feet with a minimum of 30% slow
release and a high Potassium blend in the fall fertilization to promote root development unless soil
samples indicate the presence of sufficient Potassium.

b. All fertilizers utilized under this program are to be custom blended with a balanced nutrient package. A
complete minor and trace element package will be included with each application to ensure that all the
requirements of grasses are met. If soil samples indicate a high pH, all fertilizers utilized will be Sulphur
coated products.

Page 8 of 21

17



c. All hardscape surfaces are to be blown off immediately following a fertilizer application to prevent
staining.

d. The irrigation system will be fully operational prior to any fertilizer application.

e. Soils shall be tested at a reliable testing facility twice per year to monitor for pH and chemical make up.
The results will be provided to management along with the contractor’s recommendation as to any
changes in the turf care program based on these results.

2. Insect/Disease Control

a. The reduction of irrigation water during the winter season will dramatically reduce the potential for
fungus/disease problems. Contractor will be responsible to manage settings of irrigation timers.

b. Supplemental insecticide applications will be provided in addition to the normal preventive program as
needed to provide control.

3. Weed Control

a. Weed control will be limited to the broadleaf variety under this program.

b. Contractor shall alert management of outbreaks of Sedge, invasive Bermuda, or Crabgrass.

4. Warranty

If the grass covered under this turf care program dies due to insect infestation, disease or improper fertilizer
application, the affected grass will be replaced at no charge. Contractor will not be held responsible for turf
loss due to conditions beyond their control. This includes nematodes, diseases such as Take-All Root Rot
and weeds such as Crabgrass which are untreatable with currently available chemicals, high traffic areas,
drainage problems, or acts of God. In the event these conditions are pre-existing, the contractor is
responsible to employ whatever cultural practices can be reasonably performed to extend the life of the
affected material.

SCHEDULE “B1” — TURF CARE PROGRAM (BAHIA)

A. Application Schedule

Month Application

Page 9 of 21

18



March:

June:

October:

Complete liquid 18-0-8 N-P-K fertilizer and broadleaf weed control to include blanket
pre-emergent herbicide application.

Chelated Iron application and Mole Cricket control.

Complete liquid 18-0-8 N-P-K fertilizer and broadleaf weed control to include blanket
pre-emergent herbicide application.

Note: Some applications will be combined for efficiency. Applications can be added or deleted
based on soil samples, availability of products or inclement weather.

Application Requirements

1. Fertilization

Annual program will include a minimum of 2 Ibs of N/1000 square feet with a minimum of 30% slow
release and a high Potassium blend in the late summer fertilization to promote root development unless
soil samples indicate the presence of sufficient potassium.

All fertilizers utilized under this program are to be custom blended with a balanced nutrient package. A
complete minor and trace element package will be included with each application to ensure that all the
requirements of grasses are met. If soil samples indicate a high pH, all fertilizers utilized will be Sulphur
coated products.

All hardscape surfaces are to be blown off immediately following a fertilizer application to prevent
staining.

The irrigation system will be fully operational prior to any fertilizer application.

Soils shall be tested at a reliable testing facility twice per year to monitor for pH and chemical make up.
The results will be provided to management along with the contractor’s recommendation as to any
changes in the turf care program based on these results.

2. Insect/Disease Control

The reduction of irrigation water during the winter season will dramatically reduce the potential for
fungus/disease problems. Contractor will be responsible to manage settings of irrigation timers.

Supplemental insecticide applications will be provided in addition to the normal preventive program as
needed to provide control.
Page 100f 21

19



3. Weed Control

a. Weed control will be limited to the broadleaf variety under this program.

b. Contractor shall alert management of outbreaks of Sedge, invasive Bermuda, or Crabgrass.

4. Warranty

a. There is no warranty for Bahia turf.

SCHEDULE “B2” — TURF CARE PROGRAM (BERMUDA)

A. Application Schedule

Month Application
January: Disease & Insect Control
February: Fertilization 18-0-8 Ammonium Sulfate

Barricade/Potash 0-0-22

March: Fertilization 13-3-13 w/ Ronstar or equivalent product.

April: Sedge & Broadleaf Weed Control/Disease & Insect Control

Core Aeration/Top Dressing w 20% Organic Peat 1/8”

May: Fertilization 14-0-14, TopChoice Application

June: Disease & Insect Control as Needed.

August: Sedge & Broadleaf Weed Control/Disease & Insect Control

October: Fertilization 18-0-8. Core Aeration & Top Dressing w 20% Organic Peat 1/8”

Page 110f21

20



November: Disease & Insect Control

December: Potash 0-0-62

Note: Some applications will be combined for efficiency. Applications can be added or deleted based on
soil samples, availability of products or inclement weather.

B. Application Requirements

1. Fertilization

a. Allfertilizers utilized under this program are to be custom blended with a balanced nutrient package. A
complete minor and trace element package will be included with each application to ensure that all the
requirements of grasses are met. If soil samples indicate a high pH, all fertilizers utilized will be Sulphur
coated products.

b. All hardscape surfaces are to be blown off immediately following a fertilizer application to prevent
staining.

c. The irrigation system will be fully operational prior to any fertilizer application.

d. Soils shall be tested at a reliable testing facility twice per year to monitor for pH and chemical make up.
The results will be provided to management along with the contractor’s recommendation as to any
changes in the turf care program based on these results.

2. Insect/Disease Control

a. The reduction of irrigation water during the winter season will dramatically reduce the potential for
fungus/disease problems. Contractor will be responsible to manage settings of irrigation timers.

b. Supplemental insecticide applications will be provided in addition to the normal preventive program as
needed to provide control.

3. Weed Control

a. Sedge control is included as a part of this program

4. Warranty

If the grass covered under this turf care program dies due to insect infestation, disease or improper fertilizer
application, the affected grass will be replaced at no charge. Contractor will not be held responsible for turf

Page 12 of 21

21



loss due to conditions beyond their control. This includes nematodes, high traffic areas, drainage problems,
or acts of God. In the event these conditions are pre-existing, the contractor is responsible to employ
whatever cultural practices can be reasonably performed to extend the life of the affected material.

SCHEDULE “B3” — TURF CARE PROGRAM (ZOYSIA)

A. Application Schedule

Month

January:

February:

March

April:

May:

June:

July

August:

September:

October:

November:

Application

IPM spot treatment for weeds as necessary and inspect/treat fungal activity.

Pre-emergent herbicide/spot treatment for weeds and fungal activity.

Fertilization (granular 20-0-10). Spot treat weeds and treat fungal and insect
activity as necessary.

Post emergent weed control, insect/disease control as necessary.

Insect/weed/disease control as necessary. TopChoice at 2.0 Ibs. per 1000 Sq. Ft.

Insect/weed/disease control as necessary.

Liquid Iron Sulphate and Techmangan. Insect/weed/disease control as
necessary.

IPM-spot treat weeds as necessary, inspect/treat fungal activity.

Fertilization with 14-0-40 or similar. Weed/insect/disease control as necessary.

Post emergent weed control, insect/disease control as necessary.

Blanket pre-emergent herbicide, w/Liquid Iron. Spot treat weeds and
inspect/treat fungal activity.

Page 13 of 21

22



December: Blanket Potash 0-0-62 application at 4 Ibs. per 1,000 Sq. Ft., IPM-spot treat weeds
as necessary, inspect/treat fungal activity.

Note: Some applications will be combined for efficiency. Applications can be added or deleted based on soil
samples, availability of products or inclement weather.

Application Requirements

1. Fertilization

a. Allfertilizers utilized under this program are to be custom blended with a balanced nutrient package. A
complete minor and trace element package will be included with each application to ensure that all the
requirements of grasses are met. If soil samples indicate a high pH, all fertilizers utilized will be Sulphur
coated products.

b. All hardscape surfaces are to be blown off immediately following a fertilizer application to prevent
staining.

c. The irrigation system will be fully operational prior to any fertilizer application.

d. Soils shall be tested at a reliable testing facility twice per year to monitor for pH and chemical make up.
The results will be provided to management along with the contractor’s recommendation as to any
changes in the turf care program based on these results.

2. Insect/Disease Control

a. The reduction of irrigation water during the winter season will dramatically reduce the potential for
fungus/disease problems. Contractor will be responsible to manage settings of irrigation timers.

b. Supplemental insecticide applications will be provided in addition to the normal preventive program as
needed to provide control.

c. TopChoice granular insecticide to be applied at 2.0 Ibs. per 1000 sq. ft. for Mole Crickets once per year.

3. Weed Control

a. Weed control will not be limited to only the broadleaf variety under this program.

b. Contractor shall alert management of outbreaks of Sedge, invasive Bermuda, or Crabgrass.

Page 140f 21

23



4,  Warranty

If the grass covered under this turf care program dies due to insect infestation, disease or improper
fertilizer application, the affected grass will be replaced at no charge. Contractor will not be held
responsible for turf loss due to conditions beyond their control.

C. Exclusions
All work restricted specifically to the described areas as listed in our scope of work.

No under brushing or any natural vegetation is included unless otherwise specified. No vines or material
will be pruned away from property lines, this is an additional service.

This does not include any brush trimming in center of canals/ponds or areas inaccessible to normal
mowing conditions. Also excludes removal of large logs or anything two men cannot physically (within
reason) pick up.

Any damage to screen enclosures not protected by landscape borders or kick plates.

Damage from dog urine, freezes, high winds, hail, hurricanes, tornado, floods, tsunami, lightning, fire,
restrictions by governmental agencies, government, city, state or local watering restrictions, regulations or
mandates, acts of God or any act of nature.

Pests, funguses, disease or anything imported to or created in the United States that has no immediate
control such as, but not limited to; Asian Cycad Scale, Bonder Nesting Whitefly, Borers, Chilli Thrips, Fig
Whitefly, Fusarium Wilt, Ganoderma Butt Rot, Pink Hibiscus Mealy Bug, Rugose Spiraling Whitefly, Sri
Lanka Weevil, Take-All Root Rot. New pests are introduced into the United States every year and this list is
subject to change without notice.

Any damages to trees, shrubs, sod or flowers due to city, government or any water restrictions.

Damage caused by faulty irrigation controllers, timers, valves, solenoids, line breaks or anything affiliated
with irrigation components restricting or stopping irrigating.

This does not include any maintenance or replacement to weathered items including sign repair, fence
posts, timber retaining ties, or any other item that has deteriorated due to normal conditions. Any
replacement done by the contractor will be done in the form of a written work order to client and signed
and dated by both parties prior to any additional work.

SCHEDULE “C” — TREE / SHRUB CARE PROGRAM (If included, see Schedule “F” Fee Summary)

A. Application Schedule

Month Application
February: Spring granular fertilization and insect/disease control as needed

Page 15 of 21

24



March/April:

May/June:

July/August:

October:

December:

Insect/disease control/fertilization as needed

Insect/disease control/fertilization as needed

Insect/disease control/fertilization as needed

Fall granular fertilization and insect/disease control as needed

Insect/disease control

Note: Some applications will be combined for efficiency. Applications can be added or deleted based on soil

samples, availability of products or inclement weather.

B. Application Requirements

1.

Fertilization

Fertilizers selected must be appropriate for the plant material to be fertilized such as an acid forming
fertilizer for Azaleas which require a lower soil pH.

Annual program will include a minimum of 30% slow release Nitrogen and a high Potassium blend in the
fall fertilization to promote root development unless soil sample results indicate the presence of
sufficient Potassium.

All fertilizers utilized under this program are to be custom blended with a balanced nutrient package. A
complete minor and trace element package will be included with each application to ensure that all the
requirements of plant material are met. If soil samples indicate a high pH, all fertilizers utilized will be
Sulphur coated products.

This program covers all fertility requirements on all existing shrubs and palms, as well as all newly
installed shrubs, trees, and palms up to 15’. All native trees or transplanted trees over 15’ in overall
height will require special consideration and are therefore excluded from this program.

Fertilizer will be distributed evenly under the drip zone of each plant. Special care will be taken not to
“clump” fertilizer neither at the base nor in the crown of plants.

The irrigation system will be fully operational prior to any fertilizer application.

Page 16 of 21

25



g. Soils shall be tested at a reliable testing facility once per year to monitor for pH, Nematodes, Take All
Root Rot and chemical make-up. The results will be provided to management along with the
contractor’s recommendation as to any changes in the Tree/Shrub care program based on these results.

2. Insect/Disease Control

a. Insect and disease control is intended to mean a thorough inspection of all plantings for the presence
of insect or disease activity and the appropriate treatment applied. All insect and disease infestations
require follow-up applications for control and are included in this program.

b. Contractor is responsible for the continuous monitoring for the presence of damaginginsects or disease.
Any problems noted between regularly scheduled visits will be treated as a service call. Service calls due
to active infestations are included in this program.

c. This program covers all disease and Insect activity on all existing shrubs and palms, as well as all newly
installed shrubs, trees, and palms up to 15’. All native trees or transplanted trees over 15’ in overall
height will require special consideration and are therefore excluded from this program.

d. Contractor will be required to apply all pesticides in accordance with labeled directions including the
use of any Personal Protective Equipment.

3. Specialty Palms

a. Considering the investment in Specialty Palms such as Phoenix varieties (i.e. Dactylifera, Sylvester,
Canary Island Date etc.), Contractor will include fertilization and root / bud drench for potential disease
and infestation two times per year.

4. Warranty

If a plant or tree dies from insect or disease damage while under this Tree/Shrub Care Program, it will be
replaced with one that is reasonably available. Exclusions to this warranty would be pre-existing conditions,
nematodes, borers, locusts, and diseases such as Verticillium and Fusarium Wilt and Ganoderma Butt Rot that
are untreatable with currently available chemicals, Texas Phoenix Palm Decline (“TPPD”), soil contamination,
drainage problems or conditions that prevent the contractor from providing proper irrigation, such as Water
Management District restrictions or unapproved irrigation repairs and Acts of God. In the event these
conditions exist, the contractor is responsible to employ whatever cultural practices can be reasonably
performed to extend the life of the affected material.

SCHEDULE “D”- SPECIAL SERVICES

A.

Bedding Plants

Page 17 of 21

26



The nature and purpose of “Flower Beds” is to draw attention to the display. The highest level of
attention should be placed on their on-going care.

1. Schedule

a. All flower beds on the property including urns and pots will be changed out four (4) times per year.

b. Contractor recognizes that flower beds are intended to highlight and beautify high profile areas and
should be selected for color, profusion and display.

2. Installation

a. Plants are to be installed utilizing a triangular spacing of 8”-10” O.C. (depending on type) between
plants.

b. Annually, prior to the Spring change out, existing soil will be removed to a depth of 6” in all annual beds
and replaced with clean growing medium composed of 60% peat and 40% fine aged Pine Bark.

c. All beds will be cleaned and hand or machine cultivated to a depth of 6” prior to the installation of new
plants.

d. Create a 2” trench where the edge of the bed is adjacent to turf or hardscape.

e. Agranular time-release fertilizer and a granular systemic fungicide will be incorporated into the bedding
soil at the time of installation.

f. Follow-up applications of fertilizer, fungicide and insecticide are provided as needed.

3. Maintenance

a. Flower beds, pots and urns will be reviewed at each service visit for the following:

e Removal of all litter and debris.
e Removal of weeds.
o Inspect for the presence of insect or disease activity and treat immediately.
b. Seed heads are to be removed from Coleus plants as soon as they appear. “Pinching” of Coleus plants
is to be a part of the on-going maintenance as well. Frequent “pinching” will result in healthier, more

compact plants.

c. Prolific bloomers such as Salvia require that 10% to 20% of healthy blooms are to be removed.

d. Pre-emergent herbicides are not to be used in annual beds.

Page 18 of 21

27



e. Contractor guarantees the survivability and performance of all annual plantings for a period of 90 days.
Any plant that fails to perform during this period will be immediately replaced at the contractor’s
expense.

4. Warranty
Any bedding plant that dies due to insect damage or disease will be replaced under warranty. Exclusions to

this warranty would be hard freeze, theft, vandalism, rabbits, deer or conditions beyond their control. Rabbit
and deer repellant are not included in this contract and will be installed at an additional charge.

Mulch
1. Schedule

a. Mulch will be replenished in all bed areas twice a year.

2. Installation
a. Prior to application, areas will be prepared by removing all foreign debris and accumulated mulch

material and establishing a defined, uniform edge to all bed and tree rings as well as a 1” to 2” deep
trench along all hardscape surfaces to include equipment pads, in order to hold the mulch in place.

b. Mulch should be installed in weed free beds that have been properly edged and prepared.

c.  Mulch should be installed to maintain a 1 1/2” thickness in all bed areas, including tree rings in lawn
areas and maintenance strips unless otherwise directed by management.

Palm Trimming

1. Specimen Date Palms such as Phoenix varieties (i.e. Dactylifera, Sylvester, Canary Island Date, etc.) in excess
of 12’ CT will be trimmed two times per year. Loose or excessive boots will be removed and/or cross cut during
this process.

2. All palms less than 12’ CT will be trimmed as needed by the detail crew during the regular detail rotation as
outlined in General Services.

3. Washingtonia palms in excess of 12’ CT will be trimmed two times per year.
4. Trim Sabal, Washington, Chinese, Fan and Ribbon Palms so that the lowest remaining fronds are left at a ten
and two o’clock profile. “Hurricane” cuts are only to be done at the direction of management.

5. When trimming, cut the frond close to the trunk without leaving “stubs”

Page 19 0of 21

28



SCHEDULE “E” - IRRIGATION MAINTENANCE

A. Frequency of Service

a. Contractor will perform the following itemized services under “Specifications” on a monthly basis.

B. Specifications

1.

Activate each zone of the system.

Visually check for any damaged heads or heads needing repair.

Clean, straighten or adjust any heads not functioning properly.

Straighten, re-attach to bracing and touch up paint on riser heads as needed.
Report any valve or valve box that may be damaged in any way.

Leave areas in which repairs or adjustments are made free of debris.

Adjust controller to the watering needs as dictated by weather conditions and seasonal requirements
including adjusting of rain sensor.

C. Qualifying Statements

Repairs

a. Repairs that become necessary and that are over and above the routine maintenance contract will be
done on a time and material basis at the rates of $35.00/hr. for a technician and $65.00/hr. for a
specialist.

b. Itisunderstood that time is of the essence for repairs so that sod, plants and trees do not die. Therefore,
a not to exceed price of $500.00 is approved without a formal proposal so that the contractor can
proceed in a timely manner.

Service Calls

a. Service Calls required between scheduled visits will be billed on a time and material basis at the rates
of $35.00/hr. for a technician and $65.00/hr. for a specialist.

b. When not an emergency, request for authorization must be submitted in written form to management
for approval when the costs will exceed $500.00. A description of the problem, its location and
estimated cost should be included.

Page 200f 21

29



Contractor will pay special attention during irrigation maintenance inspections to ensure that sprinkler heads
are positioned so that water does not spray directly onto buildings, windows or parking areas and to adjust
any heads that are found to be out of position.

Damage resulting from contractor’s crews working on the property (i.e., mower and edger cuts) will be
repaired at no charge to the owner.

Contractor shall not be held responsible for any system failure caused by lightning, construction work, pre-
existing conditions, freeze, acts of God, or conditions beyond their control.

Contractor shall not be held responsible for damage to the landscape caused by mandatory water restrictions
placed on the property by the governing water management district.

Contractor will provide a 24 hour “Emergency” number for irrigation repairs.

Page 210f21

30



EXHIBIT B

Maintenance Map

31



Hn D

siteeer-3) vrzwsva | SENSTY » INGEIUIEG « NOISA )

bt
. i E w
Iroet Fan
E Llahl)
ImanCd T 0 8441

dep 2sueuajuley

#u_ar_ou
5..5&&4 a—

SuIly |
ﬂos._.c.__ow




THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS



AGREEMENT BETWEEN BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT AND RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC. FOR AMENITY
MANAGEMENT SERVICES
[FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020]

This Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this____ day of September, 2019
by and between:

Bannon Lakes Community Development District, a local unit of special-purpose
government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being situated
in St. Johns County, Florida, and whose mailing address is 475 West Town Place,
Suite 114, World Golf Village, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 (“District™); and

Riverside Management Services, Inc., a Florida corporation, with a mailing
address of 9655 Florida Mining Boulevard, Building 300, Suite 305, Jacksonville,
Florida 32257 ("Contractor”, together with District, “Parties”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the District is a local unit of special-purpose government established pursuant
to the Uniform Community Development District Act of 1980, as cedified in Chapter 190, Florida
Statutes ("Act"), by ordinance adopted by St. Johns County, Florida; and

WHEREAS, the District was established for the purpose of planning, financing,
constructing, operating and/or maintaining certain infrastructure; and

WHEREAS, the District owns, operates and maintains a certain pool and amenity center
(“Facilities™); and

WHEREAS, the District desires to enter into an agreement with an independent contractor
to provide amenity management services for the Facilities; and

WHEREAS, Contractor submitted a proposal and represents that it is qualified to provide
amenity management services and has agreed to provide to the District those services identified in
Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein (“Services™); and

WHEREAS, the District and Contractor warrant and agree that they have all right, power
and authority to enter into and be bound by this Agreement.

Now, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, agreements, and mutual covenants
contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which
are hereby acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties agree as follows:

SECTION 1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The recitals so stated are true and correct
and by this reference are incorporated into and form a material part of this Agreement.

e )



SECTION 2. DESCRIPTION OF WORK AND SERVICES.

A. The District desires that the Contractor provide professional amenity
management services within presently accepted standards. Upon all Parties signing this
Agreement, the Contractor shall provide the District with the Services identified in Exhibit A.

B. While providing the Services, the Contractor shall assign such staff as may
be required, and such staff shall be responsible for coordinating, expediting, and controlling all
aspects to assure completion of the Services.

C. The Contractor shall provide the Services as shown in Section 3 of this
Agreement. Contractor shall solely be responsible for the means, manner and methods by which
its duties, obligations and responsibilities are met to the satisfaction of the District,

D. This Agreement grants to Contractor the right to enter the lands that are
subject to this Agreement, for those purposes described in this Agreement, and Contractor hereby
agrees to comply with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations.

SECTION3. SCOPE OF AMENITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES. The Contractor will
provide amenity management services for the Facilities. The duties, obligations, and
responsibilities of Contractor are to provide the material, tools, skill and labor necessary for the
Services attached as Exhibit A. To the extent any of the provisions of this Agreement are in
conflict with the provisions of Exhibit A, this Agreement controls.

SECTION4. MANNER OF CONTRACTOR’S PERFORMANCE. The Contractor agrees, as
an independent contractor, to undertake work and/or perform such services as specified in this
Agreement or any addendum executed by the Parties or in any authorized written work order by
the District issued in connection with this Agreement and accepted by the Contractor. All work
shall be performed in a neat and professional manner reasonably acceptable to the District and
shall be in accordance with industry standards. The performance of the Services by the Contractor
under this Agreement and related to this Agreement shall conform to any written instructions
issued by the District.

A, Should any work and/or services be required which are not specified in this
Agreement or any addenda, but which are nevertheless necessary for the proper provision of
services to the District, such work or services shall be fully performed by the Contractor as if
described and delineated in this Agreement.

B. The Contractor agrees that the District shall not be liable for the payment of
any work or services not included in Section 3 unless the District, through an authorized
representative of the District, authorizes the Contractor, in writing, to perform such work.

C. The District shall designate in writing a person to act as the District’s
representative with respect to the services to be performed under this Agreement. The District’s
representative shall have complete authority to transmit instructions, receive information, inferpret

2

|



and define the District’s policies and decisions with respect to materials, equipment, elements, and
systems pertinent to the Contractor’s services,

(1) The District hereby designates the District Manager to act as its
representative.

(2) Upon request by the District Manager, the Contractor agrees to meet
with the District’s representative to walk the property to discuss
conditions, schedules, and items of concern regarding this
Agreement.

D. Contractor shall use all due care to protect the property of the District, its
residents, and landowners from damage. Contractor agrees to repair any damage resulting from
Contractor’s activities and work within twenty-four (24) hours.

SECTIONS. COMPENSATION; TERM.

A. As compensation for the Services described in this Agreement, the District
agrees to pay the Contractor Sixty Thousand Dollars ($60,000.00) for amenity management
services. The term of this Agreement shall be from the date first written above through September
30, 2020 unless terminated earlier by either party in accordance with the provisions of this
Agreement,

B. If the District should desire additional work or services, or to add additional
areas to be maintained, the Contractor agrees to negotiate in good faith to undertake such additional
work or services. Upon successful negotiations, the Parties shall agree in writing fo an, addendum,
addenda, or change order to this Agreement. The Contractor shall be compensated for such agreed
additional work or services based upon a payment amount acceptable to the Parties and agreed to
in writing.

C. The District may require, as a condition precedent to making any payment
to the Contractor that all subcontractors, materialmen, suppliers or laborers be paid and require
evidence, in the form of Lien Releases or partial Waivers of Lien, to be submitted to the District
by those subcontractors, material men, suppliers or laborers, and further require that the Contractor
provide an Affidavit relating to the payment of said indebtedness. Further, the District shall have
the right to require, as a condition precedent to making any payment, evidence from the Contractor,
in a form satisfactory to the District, that any indebtedness of the Contractor, as to services to the
District, has been paid and that the Contractor has met all of the obligations with regard to the
withholding and payment of taxes, Social Security payments, Workmen’s Compensation,
Unemployment Compensation contributions, and similar payroll deductions from the wages of
employees.

D. The Contractor shall maintain records conforming to usual accounting
practices. As soon as may be practicable at the beginning of each month, the Contractor shall
invoice the District for all services performed in the prior month and any other sums due to the

3

T

. e



Contractor. The District shall pay the invoice amount within thirty (30) days after the invoice date.
The Contractor may cease performing services under this Agreement if any payment due hereunder
is not paid within thirty (30) days of the invoice date. Each monthly invoice will include such
supporting information as the District may reasonably require the Contractor to provide.

SECTION 4.

A.

INSURANCE.

The Contractor shall maintain throughout the term of this Agreement the
following insurance:

(1)  Worker’s Compensation Insurance in accordance with the laws of
the State of Florida.

(2)  Commercial General Liability Insurance covering the Contractor’s
legal liability for bodily injuries, with limits of not less than
$1,000,000 combined single limit bodily injury and property
damage liability, and covering at least the following hazards:

] Independent Contractors Coverage for bodily injury and
property damage in connection with any subcontractors’
operation.

(3) Employer’s Liability Coverage with limits of at least $1,000,000
(one million dollars) per accident or disease.

4) Automobile Liability Insurance for bodily injuries in limits of not
less than $1,000,000 combined single limit bodily injury and for
property damage, providing coverage for any accident arising out of
or resulting from the operation, maintenance, or usc by the
Contractor of any owned, non-owned, or hired automobiles, trailers,
or other equipment required to be licensed.

The District, its staff, consultants and supervisors shall be named as
additional insured. The Contractor shall furnish the District with the
Certificate of Insurance evidencing compliance with this requirement. No
certificate shall be acceptable to the District unless it provides that any
change or termination within the policy periods of the insurance coverage,
as certified, shall not be effective within thirty (30) days of prior written
notice to the District. Insurance coverage shall be from a reputable
insurance carrier, licensed to conduct business in the State of Florida.

If the Contractor fails to have secured and maintained the required
insurance, the District has the right but not the obligation to secure such
required insurance in which event the Contractor shall pay the cost for that
required insurance and shall furnish, upon demand, all information that may

4

-

e

—— -



be required in connection with the District’s obfaining the required
insurance.

SECTIONS. INDEMNIFICATION.

A. Obligations under this section shall include the payment of all settlements,
judgments, damages, liquidated damages, penalties, forfeitures, back pay
awards, court costs, arbitration and/or mediation costs, litigation expenses,
attorney fees, and paralegal fees (incurred in court, out of court, on appeal,
or in bankruptcy proceedings) as ordered.

B. Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the District and its
officers, agents and employees from any and all liability, claims, actions,
suits or demands by any person, corporation or other entity for injuries,
death, property damage or of any nature, arising out of, or in connection
with, the work to be performed by Contractor, including litigation or any
appellate proceedings with respect thereto. Contractor further agrees that
nothing herein shall constitute or be construed as a waiver of the District's
limitations on liability contained in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or
other statute.

C. In no event, however, shall Contractor be liable for incidental, special,
punitive or exemplary damages in connection with this Agreement, even if
notice was given of the possibility of such damages and even if such
damages were reasonably foreseeable.

SECTION9. LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY. Nothing in this Agreement
shall be deemed as a waiver of the District’s sovereign immunity or the District’s limits of liability
as set forth in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statute, and nothing in this Agreement
shall inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would
otherwise be barred under such limitations of liability or by operation of law.

SECTION6. COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION. The Contractor shall
keep, observe, and perform all requirements of applicable local, State, and Federal laws, rules,
regulations, or ordinances. If the Contractor fails to notify the District in writing within five (5)
days of the receipt of any notice, order, required to comply notice, or a report of a violation or an
alleged violation, made by any local, State, or Federal governmental body or agency or subdivision
thereof with respect to the services being rendercd under this Agreement or any action of the
Contractor or any of its agents, servants, employees, or materialmen, or with respect to terms,
wages, hours, conditions of employment, safety appliances, or any other requirements applicable
to provision of services, or fails to comply with any requirement of such agency within five (5)
days after receipt of any such notice, order, request to comply notice, or report of a violation or an
alleged violation, the District may terminate this Agreement, such termination to be effective upon
the giving of notice of termination.

T

— et e



SECTION7. LIENS AND CLAIMS. The Contractor shall promptly and properly pay for
all labor employed, materials purchased, and equipment hired by it to perform under this
Agrecment. The Contractor shall keep the District’s property free from any materialmen’s or
mechanic’s liens and claims or notices in respect to such liens and claims, which arise by reason
of the Contractor’s performance under this Agreement, and the Contractor shall immediately
discharge any such claim or lien. In the event that the Contractor does not pay or satisfy such
claim or lien within three (3) business days after the filing of notice thereof, the District, in addition
to any and all other remedies available under this Agreement, may terminate this Agreement to be
effective immediately upon the giving of notice of termination.

SECTIONS. DEFAULT AND PROTECTION AGAINST THIRD PARTY INTERFERENCE. A
default by cither party under this Agreement shall entitle the other to all remedies available at law
or in equity, which may include, but not be limited to, the right of damages, injunctive relief, and/or
specific performance. The District shall be solely responsible for enforcing its rights under this
Agreement against any interfering third party. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit or
impair the District’s right to protect its rights from interference by a third party to this Agreement.

SECTIONY. CUSTOM AND USAGE. i is hereby agreed, any law, custom, or usage to the
contrary notwithstanding, that the District shall have the right at all times to enforce the conditions
and agreements contained in this Agreement in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement,
notwithstanding any conduct or custom on the part of the District in refraining from so doing; and
further, that the failure of the District at any time or times to strictly enforce its rights under this
Agreement shall not be construed as having created a custom in any way or manner contrary to
the specific conditions and agreements of this Agreement, or as having in any way modified or
waived the same.

SECTION 10. SUCCESSORS. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding
upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Parties to this Agreement,
except as expressly limited in this Agreement.

SECTION 11. TERMINATION. The District agrees that the Contractor may terminate this
Agreement with cause by providing thirty (30) days’ written notice of termination to the District
stating a failure of the District to perform according to the terms of this Agreement; provided,
however, that the District shall be provided a reasonable opportunity to cure any failure under this
Agreement. The Contractor agrees that the District may terminate this Agreement immediately
for cause by providing written notice of termination to the Contractor. The District shall provide
thirty (30) days’ written notice of termination without cause. Upon any termination of this
Agreement, the Contractor shall be entitled to payment for all work and/or services rendered up
until the effective termination of this Agreement, subject to whatever claims or off-sets the District
may have against the Contractor.

SECTION 12. PERMITS AND LICENSES. All permits and licenses required by any
governmental agency directly for the District shall be obtained and paid for by the District. All
other permits or licenses necessary for the Contractor to perform under this Agreement shall be
obtained and paid for by the Contractor.

6

R Ty



SECTION 13. ASSIGNMENT. Neither the District nor the Contractor may assign this
Agreement without the prior written approval of the other. Any purported assignment without
such approval shall be void.

SECTION 14. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS. In all matters relating to this
Agreement, the Contractor shall be acting as an independent contractor. Neither the Contractor
nor employees of the Contractor, if there are any, are employees of the District under the meaning
or application of any Federal or State Unemployment or Insurance Laws or Old Age Laws or
otherwise. The Contractor agrees to assume all liabilities or obligations imposed by any one or
more of such laws with respect to employees of the Contractor, if there are any, in the performance
of this Agreement. The Contractor shall not have any authority to assume or create any obligation,
express or implied, on behalf of the District and the Contractor shall have no authority to represent
the District as an agent, employee, or in any other capacity, unless otherwise set forth in this
Agreement,.

SECTION 15. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY. The descriptive headings in this
Agreement are for convenience only and shall neither control nor affect the meaning or
construction of any of the provisions of this Agreement.

SECTION 16. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT. A default by either Party under this
Agreement shall entitle the other Party to all remedies available at law or in equity. In the event
that either the District or the Contractor is required to enforce this Agreement by court proceedings
or otherwise, then the prevailing Party shall be entitled to recover all fees and costs incurred,
including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate
proceedings.

SECTION 17. AGREEMENT. This instrument shall constitute the final and complete
expression of this Agreement between the Parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.

SECTION 18. AMENDMENTS. Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in
this Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both the
Parties.

SECTION 19. AUTHORIZATION. The execution of this Agreement has been duly
authorized by the appropriate body or official of the Parties, the Parties have complied with all the
requirements of law, and the Parties have full power and authority to comply with the terms and
provisions of this Agreement. '

SECTION 20, NOTICES. All notices, requests, consents and other communications under
this Agreement (“Notice™ or "Notices") shall be in writing and shall be hand delivered, mailed by
First Class Mail, postage prepaid, or sent by overnight delivery service, to the Parties, as follows:

A. If to District: Bannon Lakes Community Development
District



475 West Town Place, Suite 114
World Golf Village

St. Augustine, Florida 32092
Attn: District Manager

With a copy to: Hopping Green & Sams, P.A.
119 S. Monroe Street, Suite 300
Tallahassee, Florida 32301
Attn: District Counsel

B. If to the Contractor: Riverside Management Services, Inc.
9655 Florida Mining Boulevard
Building 300, Suite 305
Jacksonville, Florida 32257
Attn:

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received only
upon actual delivery at the address set forth above. Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place
of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day. If any
time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business day,
the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day. Saturdays, Sundays, and
legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as business days.
Counsel for the District and counsel for the Contractor may deliver Notices on behalf of the District
and the Contractor. Any party or other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify
the Parties and addressees of any change in name or address to which Notices shall be sent by
providing the same on five (5) days written notice to the Parties and addressees set forth in this
Agreement.

SECTION 21. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. This Agreement is solely for the benefit of
the Parties hereto and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to or for the
benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement
expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or corporation
other than the Parties hereto any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this Agreement or
any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the provisions, representations,
covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to the sole benefit of and shall
be binding upon the Parties hereto and their respective representatives, successors, and assigns.

SECTION 22. CONTROLLING LAW AND VENUE. This Agreement and the provisions
contained in this Agreement shall be construed, interpreted, and controlled according to the laws
of the State of Florida. All actions and disputes shall be brought in the proper court and venue,
which shall be St. Johns County, Florida.

SECTION 23. COMPLIANCE WITH PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS. Contractor understands and
agrees that all documents of any kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement
may be public records, and, accordingly, Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable

8

T

- — = £ e



provisions of Florida law in handling such records, including but not limited to Section 119.0701,
Florida Statutes. Contractor acknowledges that the designated public records custodian for the
District is Jim Oliver (“Public Records Custodian™). Among other requirements and to the extent
applicable by law, the Contractor shall 1) keep and maintain public records required by the District
to perform the service; 2) upon request by the Public Records Custodian, provide the District with
the requested public records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable
time period at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes; 3)
ensure that public records which are exempt or confidential, and exempt from public records
disclosure requirements, are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the
contract term and following the contract term if the Contractor does not transfer the records to the
Public Records Custodian of the District; and 4) upon completion of the contract, transfer to the
District, at no cost, all public records in Contractor’s possession or, alternatively, keep, maintain
and meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records pursuant to Florida laws. When
such public records are transferred by the Contractor, the Contractor shall destroy any duplicate
public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure
requirements. All records stored electronically must be provided to the District in a format that is
compatible with Microsoft Word or Adobe PDF formats.

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE
CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING
TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC
RECORDS AT (904) 940-5850, JOLIVER@GMSNF.COM, 475 WEST TOWN
PLACE, SUITE 114, ST. AUGUSTINE, FLORIDA 32092.

SECTION 24. SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more
provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining
portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or unenforceable.

SECTION 25. ARM’S LENGTH TRANSACTION. This Agreement has been negotiated fully
between the Partics as an arm's length transaction. The Parties participated fully in the preparation
of this Agreement with the assistance of their respective counsel. In the case of a dispute
concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the Parties are each deemed to
have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and any doubtful language will not be interpreted
or construed against any party.

SECTION 26. COUNTERPARTS. This instrument may be executed in any number of
counterparts, each of which, when executed and delivered, shall constitute an original, and such
counterparts together shall constitute one and the same instrument. Signature and acknowledgment
pages, if any, may be detached from the counterparts and attached to a single copy of this document
to physically form one document.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

9

Ty =Ty



IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the Parties hereto hiave signed and sealed this Agreement on
the day and year first written above.

Attest: BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
/%Z‘ ' (r"" " h Y

Secretary/Assistant Secretary By: Az7 Ladeisiin

Board of Supervisors Its: ['hbu?muf
Board of Supervisors

Print Name:
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERYICES,
INC.

/ Ll of LL)/\/t A By: WM k_)'\_JCQ

/Witness Print: Richard -1, W, tsel

Its: ?I'f_.sl dent

Tnothea A Wright
Print Name of Witness J

10




EXHIBIT A

Riverside Management Services, Inc.
9655 Florida Mining Blvd., Building 308, Snite 305, Jacksonville, F1, 32257

WORK AUTHORIZATION FOR
BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
FISCAL YEAR 2020
FULL-TIME AMENITY MANAGER

e enp

Amenity Manager:

Riverside Management Services, Ine, shall provide Full-Time Amenily Manager for the Bannon Lakes
Community Development District. These services include overseeing all amenity focilities, interacting with
residents, prospective residents and their guests, social event execution, and promoting clubs and marketing.

RMS has the ability to create n unique schedule 10 accommaodate the needs of each communily, which will
include the following:

¢ The Amenity Manager is the liaison For the Community Development Disivict Board of Supervisors and will
attend all District Meetings,

o Will prepare a monthly Manager's Report detaiting all activily such as all social events, clubs, upcoming
events, residents’ concerns, information regarding conmpleled and planned maintenance projects, ete.

& Primary srea of responsibilities will be management of District owned amenities and recreationnl facilities, 10
inelude the planning and execution of social evenls, programming of resident services, camps, and facility
rentals

»  Respend to all resident questions and coneerns regarding the Districr in w (imely and professional manner.

»  Maintain a professional 1elationship with all residents, welcoming and edueating new homeowners, tssuing
access cards and muinteining dafy buse, updating resident information, supervising staff inembers, monitoring
facility usage and rentals.

* Responsible for updating and maintaining Districl communications platforins, to include the community
website, marquee board, E-blasts and monthly newsletter.

e Coordinate with Operntions Manager to ensute nll Distriet contracts such as pool maintenance, landscape,
janitorial, secwity, pest control, ete. are in compliance with conract specifications

o Inspect Amenity Center and common areas for lighting, debris removal, pest conirol, signage aud fencing
necessary maintenance. Inspections include recommendations to fmprove safety aicd minimize potentin)
hazards in order to prevent accidents from oceurring

¢ Coordinate wiil maintenance staff and e Operalions Manager regarding current and upcoming projects based
upon inspection rapoits.

o Invenlory cleaning products, paper products, office and first aid supplies.

s Coordinate, organize, and promote ull social events and activities throughout the year, Administer rental
program of: District Facilities for private parties, social events and clubs,

o Educate staff mermbers, security guards, residents, prospective residents and public on District policies and
procedures.

¢ TPrepare report for recommendations regarding modificationsfupdates to the policies and proeedures as needed.

»  [uferactions regarding budgeting, maintenonce recommendations, social event recommendations, coordination
wd commumication with the Boward of Supervisors and others,

®  Process any insurance-claims and related repair work.

e Provide recommendations for annual budget, marketing social events, promoting community clubs, ete.

s Inferface with venders {or repnirs, billing, payments, and approve cettain invoices.

11



Gencrpl Provisions:

° RM§ shall provide, at no chege to lhe Dlistict, company wniforms 1o all personnel providing these
-gelvices.

¢ Rensonable feimbursement for the expanse of coples, office supplies, ete.
District to.provitle computer, printer and/or auy olher offica relnted supplies

v Addiliona) staffing, oigapizing, purchasiag, planning, set up and cleaning for special cvents and fngility
-rentals shall be invoiced at $25,00 per hour

+ Al RMS employées are subject to & baekground check, drug screening and. physical,

Bilsing:
Manthly FY2020
Amowit Amotint
Full-Time Amenity-Manager $5,000 $60,000

The pricing above Includes social securlty and medieare iaxes, federal and state unemployment
tax, worker's compensation insurance, pald vaeation, pald siclv lenve, employee presereening
{(Grug, physleal and background cheel), payroll processing, adminisirative ¢osts- and health
msurance single standard for full-time employces,

1
’ 7 - f,gﬁ' ;
%L, 7/1. &?54-4 1 _‘3;?65{51

Cheirmar, BEnnon Lakes CDD

LAIN D g /30 hm

Rivérside Mnnagement Seivices, luc. Date

12

amr

il . SR



FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS



AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE
BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
AND HEATHER SCHNELLBACHER REGARDING THE USE
OF THE DISTRICT’S RECREATION FACILITIES

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 21 day of August, 2019, by and
between:

Bannon Lakes Community Development District, a local unit of special-
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, located
in St. Johns County, Florida, and with offices at 475 West Town Place, Suite 114,
St. Augustine, Florida 32092 (the “District™), and

Heather Schnellbacher, a Yoga Instructor, with a mailing address of 173
Bluejack Lane, St. Augustine, FL 32095 (the “Contractor”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the District is a local unit of special-purpose government established pursuant
to and governed by Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and

WHEREAS, the District owns, operates, and maintains various recreation facilities, which
facilities are within the boundaries of the District (the “Amenity Facilities); and

WHEREAS, the Contractor desires to make use of the Amenity Facilities for the purposes
of providing those certain recreation services set forth in the Scope of Services which is attached
hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference (“Recreation Services”); and

WHEREAS, the District is willing to allow the Contractor to make use of the Amenity
Facilities provided that such use does not impede the District’s operation of the Amenity
Facilities as a public improvement; and

WHEREAS, the District has determined that providing the Contractor with the ability to
use the Amenity Facilities is a benefit to the District, is a proper public purpose, and makes
apptropriate use of the District’s public facilities; and

WHEREAS, the District and the Contractor warrant and agree that they have all right,
power, and authority to enter into and be bound by this agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, based upon good and valuable consideration and the mutual
covenants of the parties, the receipt of which and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged,
the District and the Contractor agree as follows:

1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The Recitals stated above are true and correct
and are incorporated herein as a material part of this Agreement.

1



2, DURATION OF AGREEMENT. This Agreement shall become effective on the date
hereof and shall continue in full force and effect for a period of one (1) year from the date first
written above (not to exceed one (1) year). The Agreement may be renewed, however, subject to
the parties’ agreement on the terms of such renewal.

3. PROVISION OF SERVICES BY CONTRACTOR. The Contractor may use the
Amenity Facilities to provide the Recreation Services set forth in Exhibit A, at times that are
acceptable to the District. The Contractor agrees that its use of the Amenity Facilities will be in
conjunction with the use of the Amenity Facilities by other members of the public, and the
Contractor’s use shall not interfere with the operation of the Amenity Facilities as a public
improvement. The Contractor further agrees that all use of the Amenity Facilities shall be
subject to the policies and regulations of the District, and the District shall have the right to take
such actions as arc necessary to preserve the health, safety, and welfare of its residents,
landowners, lands, and facilities. The Contractor understands and agrees that it will only provide
the Recreation Services to Patrons of the Amenity Facilities, as that term is defined in the
Amenity Facility Policies, unless the District’s Board of Supervisors consents to the inclusion of
non-Patrons. To the extent Exhibit A and this Agreement conflict, this Agreement shali control.

4. CARE OF PROPERTY. The Contractor agrees to use all due care to protect the
property of the District, its residents, and landowners from damage, and to require any
participants in the Recreation Services to do the same. The Contractor agrees that it shall assume
responsibility for any and all damage to the District’s Amenity Facilities or lands as a result of
the Contractor’s use under this Agreement and other damage, other than ordinary wear and tear,
which may be attributable to an act or omission by the Contractor or its agent. In the event that
any damage to the District’s Amenity Facilities or lands occurs, the District shall notify the
Contractor of such damage. The Contractor agrees that the District may make whatever
arrangements necessary, in its sole discretion, to promptly make any such repairs as are
necessary to preserve the health, safety, and welfare of the District's lands, facilities, residents
and landowners. The Contractor agrees to reimburse the District for any such repairs within
thirty (30) days of receipt of an invoice from the District reflecting the cost of the repairs made
under this Paragraph.

5. ENFORCEMENT. A default by either Party under this Agreement shall entitle the
other party to all remedies available at law or in equity, which includes, but is not limited to, the
rights of damages, injunctive relief, and specific performance.

6. INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE. The Contractor agrees to indemnify and
hold harmless the District and its officers, agents, and employees from any and all liability,
claims, actions, suits, or demands by any person, corporation, or other entity for injuries, death,
property damage of any nature, arising out of, or in connection with, the use of the District's
Amenity Facilities and lands by the Contractor, and its officers, agents, employees and guests,
including litigation or any appellate proceedings with respect thereto. The Contractor agrees that
nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as a waiver of the District's sovereign immunity or
limits of liability beyond any statutorily limited waiver of immunity or limits of lability which

2



may have been adopted by the Florida Legislature in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or some
other statute.

The Contractor shall maintain, throughout the terms of this Agreement the following
insurance:

A. Worker’s Compensation in accordance with the laws of the State of
Florida.
B. Commercial General Liability Insurance covering the Contractor’s legal

liability for bodily injuries and property damage, with limits of not less than One
Million Dollars ($1,000,000) combined single limit bodily injury and property
damage liability, including, at a minimum, Independent Contractors Coverage for
bodily injury and property damage in connection with subcontractors’ operation.

C. Employer’s Liability Coverage with limits of at least One Million Dollars
($1,000,000) per accident or discase.

The District, its officers, agents and employees, shall be named as certificate holders and
additional insured parties. The Contractor shall furnish the District with the certificate of
insurance evidencing compliance with this requirement. No certificate shall be acceptable to the
District unless it provides that any change or termination within the policy periods of the
insurance coverage, as certified, shall not be effective within thirty (30) days of prior written
notice to the District. Insurance coverage shall be from a reputable insurance carrier, licensed to
conduct business in the state of Florida, and such carrier shall have a Best’s Insurance Reports
rating of at least A-VIIL.

7. RECOVERY OF COSTS AND FEES. In the event either party to this Agreement is
required to enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, the prevailing party shall
be entitled to recover from the other party all fees and costs incurred, including reasonable
attorneys' fees and costs.

8. TERMINATION. The District shall have the right to terminate this Agreement at
any time due to the Contractor’s failure to perform in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement or for any other reason, with or without cause. The Contractor shall have the right to
terminate this Agreement upon fourteen (14) days notice to the District.

9. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This instrument shall constitute the final and complete
expression of the agreement between the parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.

10. AMENDMENT. Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in this
Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both of the
parties to the Agreement.



11.  ASSIGNMENT. Neither the District nor the Contractor may assign their rights,
duties or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written approval of the other. Any
purported assignment without said written authorization shall be void.

12.  CONTROLLING LAW AND VENUE. This Agreement and the provisions contained
in this Agreement shall be construed, interpreted, and controlled according to the laws of the
State of Florida. The parties agree that venue shall be in St. Johns County, Florida.

13.  NoTICES. All notices, requests, consents, and other communications hereunder
(“Notices™) shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by Federal Express or First Class
Mail, postage prepaid, to the parties as follows:

A. If to the District: Bannon Lakes
Community Development District
475 West Town Place, Suite 114
St. Augustine, Florida 32092
Attn: District Manager

With a copy to: Hopping, Green & Sams, P.A.
119 South Monroe Street, Suite 300
Post Office Box 6526
Tallahassee, Florida 32314
Attn: Wesley S. Haber

B. If to the Contractor: Heather Schnellbacher
173 Bluejack Ln.
St. Augustine, FL. 32095

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received only upon
actual delivery at the address set forth above. Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place of
delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day. If any
time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business
day, the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day. Saturdays,
Sundays, and legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as
business days. Counsel for the District and counsel for the Contractor may deliver Notice on
behalf of the District and the Contractor. Any party or other person to whom Notices are to be
sent or copied may notify the other parties and addressees of any change in name or address to
which Notices shall be sent by providing the same on five (5) days written notice to the parties
and addressees set forth herein.

SECTION 14. PUBLIC RECORDS. Contractor understands and agrees that all documents
of any kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement may be public records,
and, accordingly, Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable provisions of Florida law in
handling such records, including but not limited to Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes.

4



Contractor acknowledges that the designated public records custodian for the District is Jim
Oliver (“Public Records Custodian™). Among other requirements and to the extent applicable by
law, the Contractor shall 1) keep and maintain public records required by the District to perform
the service; 2) upon request by the Public Records Custodian, provide the District with the
requested public records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time
period at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes; 3) ensure
that public records which are exempt or confidential, and exempt from public records disclosure
requirements, are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term
and following the contract term if the Contractor does not transfer the records to the Public
Records Custodian of the District; and 4) upon completion of the contract, transfer to the
District, at no cost, all public records in Contractor’s possession or, alternatively, keep, maintain
and meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records pursuant to Florida laws.
When such public records are transferred by the Contractor, the Contractor shall destroy any
duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records
disclosure requirements. All records stored electronically must be provided to the District in a
format that is compatible with Microsoft Word or Adobe PDF formats.

If the Contractor has any questions regarding the application of
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, to the Contractor’s duty to provide public
records relating to this Agreement, please contact the District’s Custodian of
Public Records, Jim Oliver by phone at (904) 940-5850, by email at
joliver@gmsnf.com, or by mail at 475 West Town Place, Suite 114, World
Golf Village, St. Augustine, Florida 32092.

SECTION 15. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in any number of
counterparts, each of which when executed and delivered shall be an original; however, all such
counterparts together shall constitute, but one and the same instrument.

[Signatures on following page]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties cxecute this Agreement the day and year first written
above.

Attest: BANNON LAKES
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

stk ;ée-tgc; .)M b‘d

Witness HEATHER SCHNELLBACHER

M VN AP

oard of Supervisors

Signature = Y ‘
T Name: h \ Y\e‘(

Kob\‘n I\lf Xon Title: _

Print Name of Witness

Exhibit A:  Scope of Services

1r



Exhibit A

Fitness Instructor Scope of Services

The District will reserve the right to offer classes in increments of six week
sessions. Each session will be payable in full by the resident on the first day
of each session.

The Instructor will offer classes for $10 per class, based on a six week
session commitment. Drop-in classes will be offered at a rate of $12 per
class. All class fees are to be payable to the Instructor.

Instructor will be required to meet with the Amenities and Recreation
Manager to determine class day/times offered and room placement.
Instructor will notify the District through email for any
cancellations/changes that occur to a scheduled class. The Instructor must
give a minimum of 24 hour advanced notice of this cancellation.

Once a session is established, the Instructor is required to teach a class
regardless of the number of attendees.

The District is not responsible for outside distractions and noise level that
may occur during scheduled class times.

Instructors are responsible for all personal items.

All issues that arise in reference to fitness classes are to be relayed to the
Amenities and Recreation Manager for resolution.



i @ DATE (MM/DDITYYY
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 0A0B/2010

[FRODUCER. “THIS CERTIFICATE 1S ISSUED AS A MATTER
Insurance Plus 866-756-5636 HOLDER, THIS, CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AMEND, EXTEND OR
Willis of New York, inc., Brookfield Place ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW.
200 Liberty Street, 6th Floor :
New York, NY 10281 L . INSURERS AFFORDING COVERAGE - NAIC #
INSURED - INSURER A. Aspen Specially Insurance Company 10717

Heather Schnelibacher . Reporl all claims to Insurance Plus Program via ¢-mail at

173 bluejack lane ProfessionalLiabilityClaims@aspen-insurance.com
St. Augustine, FL 32092 Ins. # 235980 ' INSURERE:
INSURER C:
COVERAGES

THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED. NOTWITHSTAN DING
ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR
MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH
POLICIES. AGGREGATE LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

177 maRo TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER GATE (ULDITYE] DACE (MRPBrT T4 LIWITS
_ GENERAL LIABILITY [EACH OCCURRENCE $2.000,000
X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 04/08/2019 04/08/2020  PREMISES (£soctomence) S 100.000
clamsmape X OCCUR - #LRAFVTX18AOM : MED EXP {Any ane person) . § N/A
A PERSONAL 3 ADV WJURY  §2000.000
: o e GENERAL AGGREGATE  3000.000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG _ $2.000,000
X  poucy’ FRO- LoC BUS. PERS. PROP.AGG/DED  $1,000/ $250

AUTOMOBILE LIABRITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

ANY ALTO (Ea accident) ) 3
ALL OWNED AUTOS BODILY IRJURY .
SCHEDULED AUTOS {Per persan}
HIRED AUTCS BODILY INJURY s
NON-OWNED AUTOS (Per accidani)
PROPERTY DAMAGE P
{Per accident)
GARAGE LIABILITY ALTO ONLY - EAACCIDENT &
ANY AUTO OTHER THAN EAACC ' §
AUTO ONLY: AGG §
_ EXCESS{ UMBRELLA LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE ‘%
OCCUR CLAIMS MADE AGGREGATE 5
s
DEDUCTIBLE 3
RETENTION S H
WORKERS COMPENSATION WG STATU- OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN TORY LIMITS ER .
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/JEXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? X
(#andatary In NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE §
Il yes, describe under
§ggcu\L PROVISIONS below E Ll DISEASE - POLICYLIMIT S
A OTHER  piopascional Liakility FLRAFYTX18A0M 2,000,000 pes occwirence § $3,000,000 annual

04/08/2019  04/08/2020 °9vesee

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS f LOCATIONS !/ YEHICLES ¢ EXCLUSIONS ADDED BY ENDORSEMENT / SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Not Applicable

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBEC POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION
. DATE THEREQF, THE ISSUING INSURER WILL ENDEAVOR TO MAIL _10 DAYS WRITTEN
Not Applicable

NOTICE TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER NAMED TO THE LEFT, BUT FAILURE TO DO 50 SHALL
IMPDSE NO OBLIGATION CR LIABILITY OF ANY KIND UPON THE INSURER, TS AGENTS OR

REPRESENVATIVES.
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE M/@ H . !

ACORD 25 (2009/01) © 1988-2009 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
INS025 (200201) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

Ikl



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY POLICY OCCURRENCE
HEALTH, WELLNESS & BEAUTY PROVIDERS PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE POLICY

In consideration of the premium charged, it is agreed that the defined term “fusured” is hereby amended to include the followmg
person(s) and/or entity(ies):

1. Bannon Lakes Community Development District its Board of Supervisors

ALL OTHER TERMS, CONDITIONS AND EXCLUSIONS REMAIN UNCHANGED.

THIS ENDORSEMENT FORMS A PART OF POLICY NUMBER: 235980

Issued by: Aspen Specialty Insurance Company

1ssued to: Heather S5chnellbacher

Effective date:  07/10/2019

ASPMTO11 0118 2018 ®Aspen Insurance U.S. Services Inc. All rights reserved. Page 1 of 1



I FE T ENEENRNNNENENREE NN R BN BN N NN N BN B NN N

XXX EEXEEREEEEREEE R EE RN R RN N NN N R N ENNNENRNNMNENESJEJR}N/

.........................-............'.....'............'....................

ts_m_ "wo153u1a EESH_ 3
szoE 13 _>y_

ATV T

6102 T13dY 40 44Q wir L SHLNO _z,m_>_o_

§ o

A IONVITIVY VOOA
SN __,_,._m_t >m_ QIZINSODIY ATIVNOWYNIIINI SI LYHL WYHOOdd NOILY DHILEEO m:oom
o ONINVAL ¥3HOVAL S,0IANLS 13838 QLFTdWOD ATINISSTOONS SWH - |

$IHOVETNHOS ¥3HLV3H

1¥HL SJH1L3D SIHL

31040 _ m_mm<m _ VO0A




o,o_mti .ﬁazﬁ z_s.:.u_%:

_ {V\J@S@% | &é&m

YO0A ANDOAUY ONIAdIA
HLIM ONINIVYL Ava 7 ¥ d3131dW0D 5VH

11yd ANYN

[PUPS Hoal

© IVHLS3dUM30 SIHL




T R o W_m_z_,qu,qﬂ\Nszo
AT Dm>0mn_n_< o R EUSPREERR U QoEm._mmmw_ zt.&zdx

m;om 53@3( H_O ><D _.CN_ m:.; NIAID

- mm_Uamxm_ NO TIONNOD NVORIFAY JHL AB AFZINDOO3Y S IVHL _
_ _>_<N_®Ow_a ONINIVL AOLDNALSNI FRivE OIANLS 73934 3131dNOD >._._Dn_mmm003m m<I

1VHL S3141143D SIHL

310A0 | xuve | vOOA

olanis 13gaM



SIXTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS






NOTICE OF MEETINGS
BANNON LAKES
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

The Board of Supervisors of the Bannon Lakes Community Development District
will hold their regularly scheduled public meetings for Fiscal Year 2020 at the Northeast
Florida Regional Airport Conference Center, 4730 Casa Cola Way, St. Augustine, FL
32095 at 1:00 p.m. on the first Wednesday of each month listed (unless notated
otherwise*) as follows:

November 6, 2019
February 5, 2020
May 6, 2020
August 5, 2020






Bannon Lakes Community Development District
9655 Florida Mining Blvd., Bldg. 300, Suite 305, Jacksonville, Florida 32257

Memorandum
Date: November 2019
To: Bannon Lakes Board of Supervisors
Jim Oliver, Richard Whetsel
From: - Brian Stephens

Operations Manager
Re: Bannon Lakes CDD

Monthly Operations Report

The following is a summary of activities related to the field operations of the Bannon Lakes Community
Development District.

Landscape / Drripation:

1. Multiple irrigation repairs have been made.
2. New annual flowers have been installed.
3. Mulch has been installed.

Amenity / Site:
1. Cleaning of the pools is being done two (2) days per week.
The Amenity and Fitness Facilities are being cleaned weekly.
A lighting check is being done monthly for all the District Lighting.
Freedom Pest Control has started monthly pest control services for the Amenity Center.
The loose tennis wind screens have been re secured.
The filters have been replaced in all of the AC units.
A new fence with two (2) gates has been installed around the playground.
A sinkhole in the asphalt walk path around the Amenity Complex has been patched.
All of the pool and patio furniture has been pressure washed.

S I RS

10. The filter was replaced in the Fitness Center drinking fountain.
11. A new VFD was installed for the pool pump.



12. New mulch has been ordered for the playground.

13. RMS gathered three (3) proposals for Fitness Center and Clubhouse pressure washing.
14. Holiday Decorations will be installed in November and turned on November 20th.

15. Two (2) bad electrical outlets on the patio were replaced.

16. The AC's in the Clubhouse and Fitness Center have been repaired.

Ponds:
1. Lake Doctors is doing a good job maintaining the lakes.
2. Construction debris has been picked up in all of the lakes.

Other Projects:

1. None at this time.

Should you have any questions or comments regarding the above information, please feel free to
contact me at (904) 627-9271 or Rich at (904) 759-8923.

—






Amenity Manager Report

Date of report: 10/26/19 Submitted by: Robin Nixon

Club House Usage:

Reservations for the Club House have grown. It continues to be reserved every weekend for
parties and events, as well as during the week. Residents have also been utilizing the beautiful
lawn area for family get togethers and parties on the weekends, now that the weather has
cooled down. We currently have 3 different club meetings every week on Mondays &
Wednesdays for residents. 2 future clubs starting on Tuesdays and Thursdays. Residents really
enjoy using the kitchen and extra space for gatherings. We have received many compliments
over the months for the décor and the cleanliness of the clubhouse area.

Requested Upgrades for Club House Events: -Purchase 2 extra tables for Clubs, Events, and
Parties.

What has Bannon Lakes been up to?

Bannon Lakes Community Outing with The Jacksonville Jaguars:

On September 8th, All Bannon Lakes residents who purchased tickets for our Bannon Game Day
got to experience The Kansas City Chiefs Vs. The Jacksonville Jaguars game IN STYLE! Their
game day adventure to TIAA Bank Field for an afternoon included the following perks:

The Bannon Lakes Package Includes:

- Roundtrip bus transportation (Pick up/ Drop off location at the Bannon Amenity Center)

- All-inclusive food, beer, wine, water, and soft drinks for three hours prior to kickoff under a
covered pavilion inside the stadium with tables & chairs designated for Bannon Lakes residents

- A ticket to the Jaguars vs Chiefs game.




JACKSONVILLE JAGUARS SWAG BAG RAFFLE PRESENTED AUGUST 31°% 2019!

Rick & Tina Solari were our lucky winners for the “JAGS SWAG BAG” raffle! The Swag bag
included tons of Jacksonville Jaguar goodies for their game day PLUS 2 FREE TICKETS to the
JAGS VS. The ATLANTA FALCONS game!

Food Truck Thursdays (Take Out Thursdays): Residents are still enjoying the different
selections of food trucks every week. Residents really look forward to this weekly outing with
their community. Residents provide feed back on their favorite trucks and food items. The food
trucks are starting to become busier as well. Soon we hope to be able to provide a larger
selection every week as “Food Truck Thursdays” continue.

Food Labels Health Seminar September 19", 2019:

We partnered with Florida Health Care Plans to offer an informative yet fun health seminar
regarding food labels and what to look out for. Dietitian Debbie Kelleher participated as our
guest speaker for the day, explaining the good and the bad options at our local grocery store.
Many residents enjoyed seminar with their neighbors while enjoying refreshments.



Wellness Workshop
"Food Labels- Reading Between the Lines™

Bannon Lakes Clubhouse
Thursday, September 19th
10:0¢knm - 11:00am

Join Deborah Kelleher, RD with Florida Health Care
Plans as she breaks down food labels and explains
what you should look for, or even possibly aveid.

Did yon know food labels are changing?
Deborahwill also discuss all of the new changes
coming to food labels, that you may or may not have
already noticed.

RSVI"s R 1

Fiorida
‘ @ Health Care E
- % " Plans

MEDICARE 101 October 16", 2019:

This seminar was a HUGE hit! Our club house room was packed with residents excited to learn
about the different ins and outs of the many Medicare plans. Guest speaker Robby Allegra
explained many tips to watch out for to help save money in the future as well as some benefits
concerning different plans. We received many compliments from residents! We plan have Mr.
Robby back out to join us for our residents that missed it.

Wellness Workshop
"Medicare 101"

Boanon Lakes Clubhouse
Wednesdoy, October 16th
10:00am - 11:000m

It's time to get the facts about Medicare!

laln Medicare eaperts fram Fiorida Health Care
Pans as they provide information on the basics of
Mediare. Learn important defails you need to
know and have your Medizare questions
answered

RSVP's required, light refreshmenls provided,

96“TO LIVE IS TO TRAVEL” October 23, 2019:

We invited Tour Guide Mrs. Sheryl Emmett to Bannon Lakes for an opportunity to speak to our
new residents from out of state about the must see’s all over the state of Florida. During this
event residents enjoyed Trivia games, exchanged traveling stories, and viewed pictures of
upcoming tours and areas to see all over Florida.



BANNON LAKES HALLOWEEN PARTY! October 25, 2019:

The Halloween Party was a huge success! Over 100 residents showed and participated in our
many contests for the night! Contest Categories included Potluck Competition, Costume
Contest for adults, children, pets, and groups. This was a great event and residents really
enjoyed all the free activities. Old City Face craft set up for free face painting during the event.
Resident Tracy Lorenzo set up to show off her applesauce making skills with free samples. All
the kids received free gift bags and a pumpkin to go home with. We also set up a Festive Photo
op including Hay, pumpkins and our neighborhood scarecrow. Tons of families enjoyed talking
pictures using our fall scene photo op.

Photos of the Amenity Center with the updated beautiful fall décor:




Photos of our Halloween Party & Contest Winners:

Free Face Painting by Old City Facecraft:




y .

-

oo
——
@ i

Pumpkin Decorating:

POTLUCK & PRIZES:

UP COMING EVENTS:




Movie Night on the Lawn November 29, 2019 (5pm-8pm):

Join your neighbors on the Big lawn area for a family movie night! We will be playing “ Hot the
Grinch Stole Christmas”! There will be a food truck for dinner set up from 5pm-8pm. Movie
starts at 8:00pm or Dusk.

JIM CARREY

“Holiday Game Plan” November 13" at 10:00AM

Guest speaker Debbie Kelleher will talk with residents about how to prepare healthy options for
your friends and family during the holidays.

Wellness Workshop
"Healthy Holiday Game Plan”

Bannon Lakes Clubhouse
Wednesday, November 13th
10:00am - 11:000m

The halidays are quickly approaching! Endless options
of amazing food can make it easy to overindulge. Come
join Debbie and Haylie with Florida Health Care Plans
as they share simple, healthy recipe modifications as
well as tips on how to maintain and not galn this
holiday season!

7 -

9 Pk Lt e 1 i P Dt 552 Bk Brse b

Bannon Bus Tours (presented by Go VivO!):



November 9t Polynesian Dinner Show at DISNEY! & November 18t “Festival of Trees” Orlando.

SATURDAY,
NOVEMBER 9, 2017

BUS TOUR

COST: $99.00

Pick Up Location: Bannon Lakes Amenity Center
Polynesian Holiday Luau Show with Dinner
Authentic Polynesian Luau

Jain Vio as we travel to Daytona Beach, Florida
Included in this tour is :

!
e

8 g Worry-free | Fun
= Roundtrip Luyury Motercoach Transportation Affordable
= Hawaiian Dinner Buffet
= Authentic Luau Show
= A wonderful evening out where we can all watch the spectacular
show and enjoy the show fireworks!

Be sure to amrive hungry because this amazing show comes with a
buffet dinner featuring island favorites like Teriyaki Chicken, Kalua
Park, Hawaiian Pizza and more.

November 18, 2019

Tour Includes: Luxury Molor Coach Transportation, Tour Guide,

Lunch at Dubsdread Country Club, Festival of Trees Show Admission

Summary. The Festival of Trees now in ts thirty-third year, transforms
the Oando Museum ol Art into a glittering wonderland filled with
sparkling trees, vignettes and stunning décor for visitors of all ages. This
year's event will showcase designer Christmas trees of all sizes, holiday
vignettes, custom hand designed wreaths and table décor, a
gingerbread village, tabletap displays and more. Each plece Is designed

by Orlando’s linest designers and Is available for purchase

This tour will begin with a delicious plated lunch at historic Dubsdread
in the College Park neighborhood of Odando, After we enjoy the
Festival of Trees st Orlando Museum of Art. It's going to be a great day!

Cost: $99

SANTA’S VERY MERRY CHRISTMAS PARTY! December 21%, 2019 5pm- 8pm

Meet and greets with Santa and Mrs. Claus in the club house. Parents, Bring your
cameras! Tons of fun activities such as musical hayride, bounce houses, face painting,
games, present exchange games, and more!!

Hurricane Preparation completed at Amenity Center (September):




l - (ENRis

Ir““—“ llli g | ' [""”"’]W"“"ﬂ" fi
" oo & I'Hu

New fence installed around playground area:

Parents are over the moon excited about the beautiful new fence which includes 2 entry gates.




NINETEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS






Bannon Lakes
Community Development District

Unaudited Financial Statements

as of

September 30, 2019



Assets:

Cash
SBA-GF
Investments:
Reserve
Revenue
Prepayment
Due From General Fund
Due from Capital
Due from Other
Prepaid Expenses
Assessment Receivable
Utifities Deposit
Total Assets

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable

PDue to Debt

Fund Balances:

Restricted for Debt Service

Nonspendable
Unassigned

Total Liabilities & Fund Equity

Bannon Lakes

Combined Balance Sheet
September 30, 2019

Community Development District

Capital Memorandum

General Debt Service Project Only
$217,177 --- --- $217,177
$100,274 - =-- $100,274
- $385,750 - $385,750
$453,158 $453,158
$44,735 $44,735
- — $0
$1,345 $1,345
$0
$20,923 $20,923
$56,743 - -— $56,743
$50 --- --- $50
$396,511 $883,644 $0 $1,280,155
$49,649 - $49,649
$170 -- --- $170
- $883,644 --- $883,644
$50 --- --- $50
$346,642 --- --- $346,642
$396,511 $883,644 $0 $1,280,155

I ]



Bannon Lakes

Community Development District

REVENUES:

Assessment - Tax Roll
Assessmenl - Drivect
Developer Contributions
Interest

Facifity Revenue

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:

Supervisors

FICA Expense
Engineering

Attorney Fees
Dissemination

Annual Audit
Arbitrage

Assessment Rofl

Trustee Fees
Management Fees
Information Technology
Telephone

Postage

Insurance

Printing and Binding
Legal Advertising

Other Current Charges
Office Supplies

Website Services

Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions

Total Administrative

Amenity Center

Insurance
Utilfities
Phone/Internet/Cable
Efectric
Water/Frrigation
Telephone
Gas
Refuse
Security
Security Monitoring
Access Cards
Management Contracts
Facility Management

GENERAL FUND

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures
For the Period ending September 30, 2019

Adopted

Prorated
Budget Thru o9/30/19 Thru 09/30/19 Variance

Actual

$225,760 $225,760 $226,871 $1,111
$213,423 $213,423 $270,296 $56,873
$127,247 $127,247 $0  ($127,247)
$0 $0 $274 $274

$0 $0 $125 $125

| 3$se6.430 $566,430 $497 566 ($68,864)]
$4,000 $4,000 $0 54,000
$306 $306 $0 $306
$4,000 $4,000 $398 $3,603
$20,000 $20,000 $6,862 $13,138
$4,100 $4,100 $4,100 {$0)
$4,200 $4,200 $2,395 $1,805
$600 $600 £600 $0
$5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $0
$10,000 $10,000 $3,667 $6,333
$45,000 $45,000 $45,000 $0
$1,733 $1733 $1,733 {$0)
$200 $200 $41 $159
$500 $500 $396 $104
$5,500 $5,500 $5,610 {($110)
$3,000 $3,000 $1,478 $1,522
$3,000 $3,000 $1,202 $1,708
$700 $700 $250 $450
$400 $400 $737 ($337)
$0 $0 $1,750 ($1,750)
$175 $175 $175 $0
[ s112414 $112,414 $681,483 $30,931 |
$15,106 $15,106 $13,413 $1,693
$3,000 $3,000 $4,709 {$1,709)
$25,000 $25,000 $14,205 $10,795
$10,000 $10,000 $8,373 $1,627
$4,000 $4,000 $0 $4,000
$200 $200 %0 $200
$2,500 $2.500 $2,599 ($99)
$600 $600 30 $600
$500 $500 $3,650 {$3,150)
$30,900 $30,900 $13,433 $17,467

i

I : R



Bannon Lakes
Community PDevelopment District

GENERAL PUND
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures
For the Period ending September 30, 2019

Adopied Prorated Actual
Budget Thru 09/30/19 Thru 09/30/19 Variance £
f
Continued Management Contacis :
_’Fieﬁf.‘Mgmt/ Admin $22,000 $22,000 $18,833 $3,168 l
Pool Maintenance $8,800 $8,800 $9,334 {$534)
Pool Chemicals $10,000 $10,000 $3,624 $6,376
Janitorial $7,000 $7,000 $6,697 $303
Janitorial Supplies $3,450 $3,450 $0 $3,450
j-'mciﬁty Maintenance $7,500 $7.,500 $13,164 {$5,664)
Repairs & Maintenance $4,310 $4,310 $2,022 $2,288
New Capital Profects $0 $0 $5,582 ($5,582)
S_peciaffvmts $3,000 $3,000 $3,335 ($335)
Holiday Decorations $1,500 $1,500 $0 $1,500
Fitness Center Repairs/Supplies $900 $900 $0 $900
Office Supplies $250 $250 3891 ($641) i
ASCAP/BMI Licenses $500 $500 $0 $500
Amenity Center Expenditures I_ $161,016 $161,016 $123,862 $37.154 ]
Ground Maintenance Fxpenditures
Hydrology Quality/Mitigation $3,000 $3,000 $0 $3,000
Landscape Maintenance $135,000 $135,000 $138,288 ($3,288)
Landscape Contingency $20,000 $20,000 $1,560 $18,440
Lake Maintenance $7.500 $7,500 $5,748 $1,752
Ground Maintenance $8,000 $8,000 $0 $8,000
Pump Repairs $2,000 $2,000 $0 $2,000
Streetfights $0 $0 $8,670 ($8,670)
Streetlight Repairs $5,000 $5,000 $0 $5,000
TFrrigation Repairs $7,500 $7.500 $2,853 $4,648
Miscellaneous $5,000 $5,000 $0 $5,000
Reclaim Water $100,000 $100,000 $28,018 $71,984
Total Ground Maintenance Expenditures | $293,000 $293,000 $185,135  $107,865 |
TOTAL EXPENSES [ sse6.430 $566,430 $390,481  $175,949 |
EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) I $0 $107,085 |
FUND BALANCE - Beginning $0 $239,607
FUND BALANCE - Ending | $0 $346,692 |




Revenues:

Assessments - Tax Roll
Assessments - Direct
Develpper Contributions - FR
Initerest

Facility Revenue

Total Revenues

Ex Lires:
Administrative
Supervisors

FICA Expense
Engineering
Attorney Fees
Dissemination
Annual Audit
Arbitrage

Assessment Rofl
Trustee Feas
Management Fees
Computer Time
Telephone

Postage

Insurance

Printing and Binding
Legal Advertising
Otfier Current Charges
Office Supplies
“Website Services

Dues, Litenses & Subscriptions

Total Administrative
Amenity Cenfer
Insurdance
Phone/Mternet/Cable
Flectric
Water/Irrigation
Telephone
Gas
Refiise
Security Monitoring
Access Cards
Facility Management
Field Mgmt/ Admin
Pool Maintenance
Pool Chemicals
Janitorial
Facifity Maintenance

Bannon Lakes

Community Development District

General Pund
Month By Month Income Staternent
Fiscal Year 2019
October November December  January February March April May June Juby August September Total

30 $9,247  §127,927 342,309 $36,179 $5,867 $2.405 2,674 £0 $83 $0 $0 $226,6871

$88,526 54,362 §0 $5,848 $39,155 50 §8,151 §56,025 §5,848 $0 $40,698 $18,675 $270,298

$0 30 0 30 $0 $0 50 80 $0 $0 $0 $0 §0

50 $0 30 80 9 $0 $0 $0 50 $0 $84 $190 £274

50 §0 $0 $0 25 80 25 $0 $0 $0 $0 $75 $125
§88,526 $13,608 $127,927 $40,247 §75,359 $5,867 311,680 $58,699 $6,848 $83 $40,782 $18,940 $487 586 _

30 30 $0 $0 $0 30 $0 30 $0 §0 $0 sC g0

30 50 §0 $0 50 $0 %0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $C 80

§0 80 $0 $0 §0 $0 $0 $0 §398 $0 $C 50 §308

$13 $83 §183 $1,130 $147 $629 $1,634 $1,14¢ 8503 $62 $1,351 50 $6,862

3342 $342 §a42 $342 $a42 $342 $342 $342 5342 5342 3342 342 $4,100

$0 80 $0 $0 $0 80 50 §Q $2,395 $0 0 o] $2,385

50 §0 50 50 80 §0 $0 50 50 $600 30 $0 $600

$5,000 sC 50 &0 &0 $0 $0 $0 50 80 80 30 $5,000

$1,000 s0 50 $2,667 g0 &0 $0 50 $0 s 30 30 $3,667

£3,750 $3,750 $3,750 $3,750 £3,750 83,750 $3,750 $3.750 $3,750 $3,750 $3,750 §3,750 $45,000

$144 $144 §144 514 5144 §144 $144 $144 $144 §144 §144 $144 $1,733

§6 $11 50 $0 $0 50 50 0 §7 $18 $0 30 41

§3 $4 $5 $84 514 59 $§56 £43 $83 $37 §50 8 $396

§$5,610 $0 80 s S0 s$C 30 50 50 50 30 30 $5,610

$173 $a3z 333 317 208 $25 $170 $174 §196 $41 38 $310 $1,478

$323 §0 §76 376 321 581 576 §157 $94 242 0 -1 $1,292

$0 30 50 $0 g0 80 $250 $0 | 1¢] $0 &0 30 $250

$0 §0 30 $655 $15 30 §15 $15 §15 30 $0 $19 $737

$0 $0 30 50 $0 $0 $1750 50 $0 30 30 50 $1.75C

8175 0 j0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 §0 $0 0 $175
516,539 4,367 $4,513 $8.866 $4,791 $4,980 $8,188 §$5,774 $7,927 $5,237 $5,645 $4,658 §$81,483 _

513,413 $0 $0 $0 30 §0 $0 50 $0 80 50 $0 513,413

$390 $391 $391 $380 $405 $404 $404 5404 5404 5314 $405 $405 §4,709

$1,500 $995 §79¢ £1,505 $1,378 $1,032 §1,152 $1,129 $1.218 $1.210 $1,364 §923 £14,205

$820 §798 $669 5517 3649 $505 3678 3758 §562 $840 §779 $697 §B,373

30 $0 $0 50 $0 $0 $0 80 $0 %0 $0 $0 50

30 &0 $0 %0 0 50 0 filv) $0 $0 %0 30 &0

$199 $201 5201 $109 $108 $196 §197 $202 $252 252 $250 $263 $2,500

50 80 30 50 80 50 80 30 %0 $0 50 §0 $0

50 50 $2,600 $0 $0 0 $0 g0 50 50 $0 $1,050 £3,650

30 $0 50 50 50 80 $0 0 $4,800 $2,600 §$2,600 $3,433 $13,433

$1,687 $1,557 $1,597 $1,597 §1,364 §1,550 $1,550 §$1597 $1,697 $1,597 $1.897 $1,597 $18,833

911 §911 $911 $811 (3227) $683 $683 $811 £911 3911 $911 §911 $9,324

&0 35597 §0 §270 §0 $124 $630 $548 50 $698 $758 30 $3,624

£583 $E583 §583 $583 $367 $540 $540 $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $6,697

$1.037 5970 54 $207 $313 $426 $508 32,823 §1,686 §2,387 $1,699 $1,054 $13,164



T NOUPRFINN T TR -

Bannon Lakes
Community Development District
General Fund
Month By Month Income Statement
Fiscal Year 2019
October November December  January February March April May June July August September Total

Amenity Center Continued.
Repairs & Maintenance 30 $584 80 $138 §0 $0 %0 $850 $0 $0 $500 $150 82,022
MNew ﬂmﬁmnnhﬂﬁbu\mnﬂ 30 $0 $0 $0 30 $0 $0 $1,155 %0 $0 $0 54,427 §5,582
Special Tvents 80 $1,423 $0 $0 $0 $0 §1,562 30 50 $350 30 S0 $3,335
Holiday Decorations 30 &0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 30 $0 $0 30 0 $0
Fitness Center Repairs/Supples $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 80 $C %0 $0
Q.;mnm Mewu\wmnu 30 $623 $61 $14 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 8¢ $193 $891
ASCAP/BMI Licenses $0 80 $0 $0 50 $0 50 §0 $0 %0 $0 30 $0
Total Amenity Center _ $20,450 $9,872 $7,866 $6,431 54,445 §5,460 $7,804 $10,760 $12,011 $11,740 $11448 $15,677 $123,862 _
Ground Maintenance Expenditures
Hydrology Quality/Mitigation $0 $0 $0 30 80 30 50 80 $0 80 $0 §0 §0
hnﬁa&nmun Maintenance 11,321 $11.321 511,321 811,321 $11,321 §11,321 §11,727 $11,727 311,727 $11,727 $11,727 $11.727 $138,2688
Landscape Contingency $0 30 Ely $0 ¢ 50 50 $0 50 30 30 $1,560 $1,560
Lake Maintenance $465 5465 $485 $465 3465 $465 $465 $465 $4E65 $465 $623 $475 $5,748
Ground Maintenance $0 $0 50 §0 $0 $0 30 50 50 §0 §0 $0 50
Pump Repairs $0 $0 30 30 30 $0 80 $0 §o 30 $0 50 $0
hﬂwmmwmm.mﬁ, $711 $711 E711 $712 3717 $717 3738 §736 §721 736 5736 §727 £68,670
hﬂ‘@mnm_mih n&m\“&w\h $0 30 30 $0 30 80 $0 $0 30 $0 £0 50 50
Irrigation Repairs $382 221 $313 $5456 3277 $424 £378 §108 8102 $61 $40 $0 $2,853
Miscellaneous 30 50 50 50 50 30 $0 $0 $0 30 §0 50 50
Reclaim Water $3,755 $1,958 $1,504 $1173 $1,156 $1.242 51,894 $3,655 33,168 $4,650 $2,473 §1,197 528,016
Total Ground Maintenance Fxpendinf $16,634 $14,676  $14,2314 $14,216 $13,935 $14,263 $15,301 $16,602 $16,173 $17.640 $15,600 $15,686 §185,135 |

Q\Onhﬁﬁumwnﬂha - $53,623 $208,715 $28,602 $298.513 $23,172 $24,70% §31,303 $33,225 $36,111 $34,617 §$32,690 $36,020 wmmo.&m_\_
Excess Revenues ﬁk&»mﬁ&wgﬂu — $34,903 ($15,107) $101,238 $19,733 $52,187 ($18,842) (819,713) §25,474 ($29,263) ($34,534) $8,092 {$17.081) $107,085 _




Bannon Lakes

Community Development District
DEBT SERVICE FUND
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures
For the Period ending September 30, 2019

Adopted Provated Actual
Budget Thru o09/30/19 Thru 09/30/19 Variance

REVENUES:

Interest Income $50 $0 $10,329 $10,329
Special Assessments - Tax Roll $458,500 $458,500 $462,275 $3,775
Special Assessments - Direct Assessments $313,000 $313,000 $274,932 ($38,068)
Prepayments $0 - %0 $92,819 $92,919
TOTAL REVENUES | $771,550 $771,500 $840,456 $68,956 |
EXPENDITURES:

Series 2016

Interest Expense - 11/01 $292,563 $292,563 $292,563 $0
Interest Fxpense - 05/01 $292,563 $292,563 $292,563 $1
Principal Expense - 05/01 (Prepayment) $0 $0 $50,000 ($50,000)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES | $585,126 $585,126 $635,125 ($50,000)]
OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0
TOTAL OTHER SOURCES AND USES | $0 $0 $0 $0 |
EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) | $186,425 $205,331 ]
FUND BALANCE - Beginning $292,662 $678,312

FUND BALANCE - Ending $479,087 $883 644




Bannon Lakes
Community Development District
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures
For the Period ending September 30, 2019

REVENUES:

Developer Contribution
Interest Income

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer n (Out)

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES)
FXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES)
FUND BALANCE - Beginning

FUND BALANCE - Ending

Series

2016

$1,303,864
$0

$1,303,864

$1,303,864

$1,303,864
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0




Bannon Lakes
Community Development District

Long Term Debt Report

Series 2016 Special Assessment Bonds

Interest Rate: 4.5% -5.0%
Maturity Date: 11/1/48
Reserve Fund Definition: 50% of Max Annual Debt Service
Reserve Fund Requirement: $385,750.00

Reserve Balance: $385,750.00

Bonds outstanding - 1/31/2016 $11,850,000

Less: May 1, 2016 $0

Less: May 1, 2019 (Prepayment) ($50,000)

[Current Bonds Outstanding $11,800,000 |







Bannon Lakes Comununity Development District

FY1g Assessment Receipts
SERIES 2016
DEBT FY 19

SERVICE O&M TOTAL

ASSESSED TO # Units ASMNT ASMNT ASMTS
RREF 1lI-P-EP ARAGON INVESTMENTS LLC (ACRES) 65.78 - 24,731.21 24,731.21
RREF [Il-P-EP CYPRESS PARK FARMS LLC (ACRES) 68.86 - 25,089.20 25,869.20
RREF llI-P-EP BANNON LAKES JV LLC (ACRES) 24 .61 9,252.59 9,252.59
SUBTOTAL ADMIN O&M 159.25 - 59,873.00 59,873.00
LENNAR HOMES LLC 62 104,897.18  51,460.00  156,357.18
KB HOME JACKSONVILLE, LLC 90 152.270.10 74,700.00 226,970.10
PULTE HOME CORPORATION 33 55832.37 _ 27,390.00 83,222.37
SUBTOTAL SERIES 2016 LOTS 185 312,999.65 153,550.00  466,549.65
TAX ROLL ASSESSED 272 460,180.53 225,760.00  685,940.53
TOTAL ASSESSED 616 773,180.18  439,183.00 1,212 363.18

SERIES 2016
DUE / RECEIVED DEBT FY 19
BALANCE SERVICE O&M TOTAL
DUE RECEIVED | RECEIVED | RECEIVED

RREF lI-P-EP ARAGON INVESTMENTS LLC (ACRES) - - 24731.21 24,731.21
RREF Ill-P-EP CYPRESS PARK FARMS LLC (ACRES) - - 25,889.20 25,889.20
RREF 1I-P-EP BANNON LAKES JV LLC (ACRES) - 9,252 59 9,252.59
SUBTOTAL ADMIN Q&M - - 59,873.00 59,873.00
LENMAR HOMES LLC - 104.897.18 51,460.00 156,357.18
KB HOME JACKSONVILLE, LLC - 152,270.10  74,700.00  226,970.10
PULTE HOME CORPORATION {0.00) 55,832.37 27,390.00 83,222.37
SUBTOTAL SERIES 2016 LOTS {0.00} 312,999.65 153,55000  466,549.65
TAX ROLL RECEIPTS {3,375.72) 462,445.23 226,871.02  689,316.25
TOTAL RECEIPTS / DUE {3,375.72) 775,444.88  440,294.02  1,215,738.90

NQ LOTS PLATTED IN TIME TO BE PLACED ON 2018 PROPERTY TAX BILLS. ASSESSMENTS INVOICED DIRECTLY
WiITH PAYMENTS DUE IN INSTALLMENTS OF 25% DUE 10/15/18, 1/1/19, 4/1/19, T/1/19

THERE 1S AN ADDITIONAL $107,447 DUE FCR DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTION

TAX ROLL RECEIPTS

SERIES 2016
DEBT SERVICE 0&M TOTAL
DISTRIBUTION DATE RECEIVED RECEIVED  RECEIVED
1 11/07/18 222.15 104.99 331.14
2 1111918 13,546.10 6,645.58 20,191.68
3 11/2718 5,079.79 2,492.09 7.571.88
4 12/13/18 15,238.37 7.476.28 22,715.65
5 12/127H8 245562310 120,451,119 365,974,29
INTEREST a1/10M9 68.47 33.59 102.06
[ 1i28/19 86,356.40 42 365.59 128,721.99
7 212519 73,746.02 36,179.06 109,925.08
8 3H919 11,958.67 5,866.80 1782547
INTEREST 4/1119 B27.82 406.12 1,233.94
9 4724119 4,257.03 2,088,45 6,345.48
TAX CERTIFICATES 6M19/19 1,816.72 891.27 2,707.99
10 (MAY RECIPTS) 6/24/19 3,633.46 1,782.54 5,416.00
INTEREST 7/15/19 170.13 83 47 253.60
TOTAL TAX ROLL RECEIFTS 462,445.23 226,871.02 689,316.25
PERCENT COLLECTED DIRECT 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
PERCENT COLLECTED TAX ROLL 100.49% 100.49% 100.49%
PERCENT COLLECTED 100.29% 100.25% 100,28%

-






Bannon Lakes
Community Development District

Check Run Summary

8/1/19 - 9/30/19

|:Da,te Check Numbers Amount Amount
Geneval Fund

8/1/19 490-494 $  101,470.74

8/9/19 4957501 s 22,929.29

8/15/19 502-504 s 303.34
8/22/19 505-508 $ 3,614.54
8/29/19 509 s 236.17
9/13/19 510-516 $ 69,537.84
9/27/19 517-521 $ 27,675.63

Total Checks ¥ 225,767.55

8/18/19 St JoAns County ‘Utifity Dept ) 3,252.48
8/20/19 AT&ET $ 190.00
8/27/19 FPL § 2,100.00
8/27/19 AT&T § 215.31

9/6/19 St Johns County ‘Utifity Dept $ 1,894.59
9/18/19 AT&ET $ 190.00
9/23/19 FPL $ 1,649.98
a/30/19 ATET s 215.31

Total Paid Electronically £ 9,707.67
{ Total General Fund $ 235,475.22 |

* Fedex Invoices will be available upon request

T



86¥000 6B8°G6E’S
68'66E"S
165000 00°S9%
00°55%
969000 00-€0S
- 00°£08
mmwmom hh.mmmq¢- ) )
08°L
19°6¥
Lz
L9 T¥E
TR RPT
00'05L'E
v6v000 0° 69
_ 0S°L69
mmqmom L ST ST
FL'GE
265000 0S°c6€
05" L6E
Tevo00 00-0s€
L 00°0SE
om@mom mouooosomﬁu T
00°000°00T
# LROOWY
TtttCMDEHOT U LNAOWY

1 qaovd

Dl

6T/12/0T NOY

d0

SALYLS

ONIYOHEELE

"ONI

=SIAYT NONNVE- TINYE

/dnNo¥DH THYDANYL
NAWY-INIVH ZI¥OSANYT SNV
00Z9P~008ES-0EE BO6TOZ 8698 6T1/10/8

ONI ‘S¥0ID00 FAYT
FONYNIINIVH TNYI ONY
0089%-00BES-0EE B06T0Z  9TL6FF 6T/T0/8

SHYS 5 NIIHD ONIJJCH

D711 SDAYS LNIWIDWYNYW

TASNNOD TVEINED NOL
004TE-O0ETS—-0TE 906T0Z 8£680T 6Y/IE/L

TYLNANNTTIACD

SITI0

009ZF-00E1S-0TE BO6TOZ €5 6T1/10/8
IO¥IS0d

000ZFP-00ETS—0TE 8Q6T0Z €5 6T/10/8
SEITLANS IDIAI0

000TS-00ETS—0TE 8Q6T0Z £ES 61/10/8
FDTAMES NOIIUNIWESSIQ DOV

009TE£-00ETS—0TE 8Q6T0Z £9 61/10/8
ADOTONHOIL WHQANI 2N

00TSE-QQETS—QTE B80GTI0C €5 6T1/10/8
SEFI INIWHOUNYHW DNV

6T/T0/8

oocqm|DOMHm|chmomHoN

TENST00d

£S

STYOINIHD TOOd
0TZSY-00ZLS—-0ZE LOGTOZ BSSE2TET 6T1/60/L
XgqaL
JO¥LS04 XFQEL TOL
0002%-00ETS~0TE LOGTOZ B66ZTZY9 6T/EZ/L

ORI ¥ETIIK ¥ SWIHI JNVIDRI

“ONI FHOW aN¥ ‘S3IAITS

SHOTIA¥ES TYNOISSHIONd NOL
00TTE-OOETS-0TE 906T0C GG606T 6T/0T/L
ptcielialel:
HIAOW ¥00dLNo
Q0V6F-002LG—0ZE LO6TOZ 6TOZEOLO 6T/€0/L

quvod TIVIS O/D 4dd SEAVI NORRVY

THEN HJOdNIA

DO¥ NAJO MEN d04 LIS040d
0000T-00TST-00E LO6TOZ 6T02%ZLO 6T/%Z/L
SSYIDENS dRS #IOOV 14d OMEX dOI0ANT AR (0]
*°t0L QEASKEJYE' " " CCCCEDIOANIC "t

TYEIANAD-SINYT NONNYE ¥ MNVd

annd TYHENED -
MILSIODTY XOTHD YIATNAWOD/AIVAEHd IFTIYAVd SINNQOOY HIVWA-O0L-dVIL

SEXYT NONNVE #xx 6T0Z/0E/60 = 6T0Z/10/80

€T000 61/60/8

LT000 61/60/8

50000 61/60/8

£0000 6T1/60/8
6TQ0C0 6T/T10/8

Y0000 6T/T0/8B

L0000 6T/TO/8

PP000 61/10/8

£¥000 6T/T0/8
aLvd
#ANEA  MOHHD

SZLYd ADIHD #as
HB00€dY



B0G000 FO'LBE'Z
¥0°LOE'Z
Loso00 os-tzL
05" LTL
s05000 00-05T
) G0°0ST
soso0o 00-0s¢
00" 08¢
vmmmom wmumwmu I
_peTEve
mmmmom mmuﬁm T
o 05°12
z0s000 05766
_og'se
Hmmmom meommumu T
00° 0092
05°965°T
05°016
€€ €8S
ooso00 s0-0sz
_ §0°0SZ
mmwmom mmqﬂmm‘m- ST
GZ TEE’9
# INNOKHY
+e e eNDEHEDCC U INNOWY
zZ I 61/T2/0T

ONI¥DEYIdE —SHMVT NONNVE- "INVd

ONI ‘SHOIAYES INIWOUYNYR HAISYEAIY
FONYNEINIVH ALITIOVS 100

* 001TS¥-002L5-02E LO6TOZ 09 6T/61/8 PI000 61/22/8
TANSTOOd
STYIIWARD T00d
¥ 0T126%-00ZL5-0ZE BOSTOTZ BSSGZTET 6T/¥1/8B 61000 61/2¢/8
TOYINOD ISHd HOOHEWd

TOILNCD LSHd ON¥
¥ 00009-00ZL6-0ZE BO6T0Z 9909101 6T/9T/8 0E000 61/22/8

TTOMINOD 1SHd WOQHEMI
MENTY THLD ILIWMEL TYONNY
* 00009-00ZLS-0ZE BO6TOZ SLTPTOT 61/80/8 0£000 6T/22/8

QHOOEY HENILSADAVY L8 HHL
61/12/9 ONILEHW 40 HJ3ILON

¥ 0008%-00ETS-0TE LOBTOZ 6TLE6TEQI 6T/EC/L 0000 6T/ST/B
"ONI ‘3no¥o TINYDOaNYI
SYIY¥dEY NQILVOIWMI TAL
* 00¥97-00BES-0EE LOGTOT ¥GL8 6T/TE/L £T000 6T1/G1/8

*ONI ‘4n0od¥s THYOANYT
SYIYdad NOILWSHIMMI TIAr
* DO0F9P-00BES—-0EE LOGTOT €648 6T/TE/L €T000 61/ST/8

ONI ‘SHOIANMES INIWOVNYW HJISIEATH
TOIAYES WONW ALITIOVL S0O¥

¥ 000FE-002L58-02€ BO6TOZ 65 61/10/8
HOIAMES WONKH ¥3Id0 D0¥
* T009%-00ZL5-0Z€ BO6TOZ 65 6T7/10/8
IDNYNEINIVH I00d oN¥
* 00ZSF-00ZL5-0Z¢ BO6TOC 65 61/10/8
FOIAYES TYINOLINYL S0V
* 00€£GF—002.5-0Ct 806T10C 65 6T1/10/8 pPI000 61/60/8

L89# SEDIAYES DITdNdEY
ISNITY DAY

* 0085%-002L5—0CE 806TO0T LZH6-LBY

6T/91/L BT000 61/60/8

‘dnods TMYIANY'T
SEVYT-INI¥W FIVDSANYT DOY
* 00Z9P-008ES—0EE BO0ETOZ 6698 6T/10/8

SSYIDENS dNS #LOOVY Ldd OWdA HOTOANI HLYd
TrrOL QESNIENE" 0 Tt "HIIOANI®t

*ONI
ET000 6T/60/8

qLY¥Ad
HWNYN dOONZEA #ANEA  MDHHD
TVUANIO-SEXYT NONNYE ¥ ANV
aNNd TYIENED - SEAY'T NONNYE
YALSIOTE MOFHD d¥HLNAWOD/AIVdENd TAVAYd SINN02DV¥ ALVJI-OL-HYHA

SNLYLS

xxx GT0Z/0E/60 =~ 6T0Z/TO/B0 SAIWA MOEHD www

NO¥E H00E4¥



LTS000 00 06S76T
00" 0FB ET
oo.omm~m
sTs000 S8°282
S8"ZST _
mmmmDm meHmmnml T
GZ TEE’9
wmmmom mmwmmmnmn T
_ 68"56¢'S
mmmmom mo.val S
oo.mhw
z1s000 00°25
ool 00T
ﬁmmmOo ﬁmwmmmuwl ) )
GL'BOE
08" L
£6°81
L9 TPE
v hEl
00"QSL'E
ommmom Mmumm¢q~m T
L EeE
mmmmom Mﬁwmmml S
LT 9€T
# LNOOWY
Tet o MDEHDT T INNOWY
£  dovd 6T/12/0T

[

NNY

SNLYLS

ONIYOTIEdE —-SIMVYT NONNYE—- TNVE

DT1 SHOSIAQY FONWHASNI SIDH
AONVENSNI ATMIJOEd 0ZAI
0000T-00SST-00E 606T0Z L956 6T/21/6
TONTINSKI NIWAY 0ZXd
0000T=00GST-00E 606TOT L956 GT/Z1/6

L89# SHOIAMES DI'TANETY
asnigy dEs
008BS¥~00ZLS-0ZE 606TOC BV666LBY 61/91/8

*ONI ‘4no¥o TUYOQNYI
. SHNYI-INIVH AIYOSANYT dHS
00Z9%-008ES—0EE 606TOC ZLee 61/T0/6

“ORI ‘dN0¥d HIV¥DANYT
INEWY-INIVW ZJYOSANYI ddS
00Z9¥%-00BES-0EE 606TOZ 1488 6T/T0/6

*ONI ‘S¥0ID0T TAVI
TONENILNIVH 3¥YT dIS
0089%-00BES-0EE 606TOT 06L95% 6T/20/6

SHYS 2 NEIHHO DNIJSCH
ONILIEW ATHINCW TNLC
00STE-00ETIS-0TE LO6TOZ 6LG60T 6T/0E/8

OTT SDANMS INIWADUYNYH TYINIHNEIACDS
00GZ7-D0EIS—0TE 606T0T
JO¥LS0d

000Z%—-00ETS-0TE 606T0C ¥s 61/10/6
STLTddNs FITIIO0
000TS-00E1S-0TE 606T0Z ¥S 61/10/6
TOIAMES NOIIUYNIWASSIQ 43¢
009T€=00£1S-0T€ 606702 ¥S 61/70/6
HOAI NOILVIHOJINI dd8
QOTSE-00ETS~0TE 606102 ¥S 61/10/6
SHE LNHRWEDYNYH dd8
Q00FE-00ETS~0TE 60610¢ ¥S 61/10/6

SATL0D
¥S 6T/T0/6

MIN J0 MNY¥d 0/D Q4D SEMVI NONNYH
INIWNSSHESSY SHHOH WYNNIT
00Z0T-00L0Z-00¢ 606T0Z 6T0C6060 61/60/6

ONI ¥ITIIH 3 SWIHLI QN¥TIDNA
SHIIAYMHES ‘TYNOISSHICUd N
00TOT-00TET-00E £06TOCT T9006T 6T/60/F

gN05 #LOOY Idd OWHA IOI0ANI aL¥d
0L QASNELXIC ' "t TEDIOANICT U

S8YI0dENns
IWYN d0dNda

TYIANED-SEAYT NONNYE ¥ MNVE

gNNL TYHENED - SHAVT NONNYE ++x2 6TOT/0E/60 — 6T0Z/10/80

HALSIOEY MOEHD HIINdWOD/QIVIEYd ITHYAYd SINNOOOY HIVA-OL-d¥Vdi

90000 6T/LZ/6

8I000 6T/ET/6

ET000 61/ET/6

£T000 6T/ET/6

LT000 B6T/ET/6

§0000 6T/ET/6

E0000 BT/ET/6

LEDDD B6T/ET/6

L0000 6T/62/8
arvd
#ANZA  MDUEHD

SHLVA MOUEHD *xx
qy0ede



66 L9L" ST
GG L9L'STT

Hmmmom mouomoqﬁl ST
oo.omm~ﬂ

ommmom Mququm- ST
0070092
05796S°T
05°016

_ _EE€8s

615000 0°LET o
05" LET

81s000 08-L0z’T
08-°L02'T

# LROOWY
S MDEHDT T INNOWY
¥ dovd 6T/TZ/0T NnA

ONIMDIAYEAE -SHMVT NONNYHE- INVY

YILSIDEY ¥0d TYELOL
¥ MMNVYE ¥0d TWIOL

ONIYTINTIONE ALIMADAS

ONI ‘SEDIANES INIWOUNVW FAISHIATY

SHYS ¥ NEZYO DNI4dOH

SHYS % NITYD ONIdJOH

SNLYLS ZWYN dOaNdIA

0S0%
DTT9P—-00ZL

D0QPE-00ZLS—0ZE 606102
T009%7-00CL5-02E 606T0Z
00Z2S%=00CLS—0CE 6O6TI0Z
ommm@mommmmlomm

GO0QT-00TET

0000T-0QTET-QCE 0TIBTOZ
S6¥12dNs 490§ #LOOV 1dd OWHX

THIENIO-SEMVT NONNYE ¥ XNYY

aNQd TYEENED =

SHAYT NONNYY

pET SUOYVD S5dIOY
£ 606T0% 1920

Z-
[

s
0z

FIONYNIINIVH ALITIOVI 438
62t 6T/10/6
SHOTAYAS WONW HIJ0 43S
6CE 6T/10/6
IONVNALNIYH 1004 43S
62E 61/10/6
SHOTAMES TYIGQOLINYL ddS

606T0C 6Z¢ 6T1/T0/6

NOIIDNULSNOD I3dL0Ud
-00t 0T18IQZ

NOILONMISNOD IDdL0Hd
85T06 9T/0E/6

HZOI0OANI H1¥d

QL QESHAAAF " 77t THOIOANICC U

€61 61/0T/6 02000 6T/LEZ/6

BT000 6T/LT/6

1Z8%6 LT/0E/9 S0000 6T/LZ/6

S0000 6T/LZ/6

ean - ful
#ANIA  MDEHD

xxy G6TQT/0E/60 - 6T0Z/T0/80 SHLVA MOHHD xxx

MIISIONY M0HHD MELAdROD/AI¥dI¥d ITIVAVd SINNOIDY ILVA-OI-WYIA

Hooedy



=

E fﬂ?@ﬂ"f]El
{ ULﬂézﬂISI_ﬂ/

Bannon Lakes
IMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

_[\E_, General Fund
By
Check Request
Date Amount Authorized By
July 24, 2019 $100,000.00 Bemadette Peregrino
Payable to:
Bannon Lakes CDD ¢/o State Board Administration #43
Date Check Needed: Budget Catepory:
ASAP 1-300-15100-10000

Intended Use of Funds Requested:

Deposit for new open account

{Attach supporting documentation for request.)

et PR e 8

T =



[

-

¢t 2
ﬁﬁf\ﬁ
ﬂ
L-|

f{\f .
[0
-]
"

b

1915 Bluebonnet Way
Fleming Isiand, FL

Bouncers, Skides, and More Inc.

Invoice

Date: 03, July 2019

nvoice No.: 07032019.01

Attn: Robin Nixon

Bannon Lakes

435 Bannon Lakes Blvd.

St Augustine, FL 32092

BannonManager@RMSNF.c

.. B 32003
MO <K
Name [ Address Additional Details:

Description

Quantity}| Rate

Discount

Subtotal Extended

Outdoor Movie

1 5450.00

20%

$350.00 5350.00

O~ W N =

Comments:

Subtotal

$350.00

Sales Tax {0.0%)

N/A

Total

$350.00

Vi (:)

00/, 329. 572. 494

NEBEDUE]
d JUL 242019 @1

ey

|
i

e Ry



Bannon Lakes, CDD July 10, 2018
cfo Governmental Management Services Project No;
475 West Town Place Invoice No:
Suite 114

St. Augustine, FL 32092

Project 13061.12000 Bannon Lakes CDD
Professional Services rendered through June 30, 2019
Professional Personnel

Hours Rate Amount
Senior Engineer 2.00 180,00 360.00
Administrative Support .50 75.00 37.50
Totals 2.50 397.50

Total Labor
Current Priov To-Date
Expenses 0.00 1,198.97 1,198.97
Contract Limit 2,500.00
Remaining 1,301.03

Invoice Total this Period

TR

/-7 AECEIVER

[ 20,575 3/ % UL 7% 2018

HY:

Py

=]

T s

Englond-Thimy & Miller, Inc,
ENGINEERS » PLARNERS + SURIVEVORS + GIS « LANGSTAPE ARCHITECTS
TS O 51 Avpacins fned » ackaama, Fasckda 2760 « Lol 004 642 B0 » b S-S R-0HIS
CAIZS LC-O00NG

13081.12000
0190955

397.50

$397.50

[T P ST



Iz Invoice Date 719/2019
524! Tvoice # 131295587070
1707 Townhurst Dr ~Terms | Nat 20

Houston TX 77043 Dua DateA 712012010

ar@poolsure.com

800-858-POOL (7665)

www.poolsure.com

Dellvery Ticket B

Salas Order #1327093

““Delivery Date | netzo1e

AlliTo

Deli\.reryl' cat]on' Bahnon Lakes Paol

Riverside Management Senvices 13BANG2S

Bannon Lakes CDD

9655 Flarida Minning Bivd West TR COD

gldg‘j‘SUO %{J"lgl?ggZST <= | 435 Bannon Lakes Blvd
acksonvite ~ ShlpTo| 51, Augusline Fi 32095

monlh late charge and attorney fees.

LATE FEE. This constitules notice under the Iruth in landing act that any accounts remakning unpald afler \he due dale are subject to 1 1/2% per

% 7-R21T

Jool [fannon

OOl 320§ 72001 4510

li Juezsaom

L34

ﬂE@EﬂWEW

By

{tem 1D ' ltern | Guantity Units | Rate Amount °
116-300 Bleach Minibulk Delivered 400 | gal 1.50 600.00
160-050 Pool Acid bulk by Gallon 30 gal 3.00 90.00
116-300 Bleach Minlbulk Dellvered 5| gat 1,50 7.50

[/// g @

Remiltance Slip

Gustomer
13BANO2S

Involce #
131295567070

UHIAALAL A

131295587070

Total 697.50
AmountDue  $697.50

Amount Due $897.50
Amount Paid

Make Chacks Payable To

Poolsure
PO Box 5837
Houslon, TX 77255-5372

PO

L Igdinb b ek

1y

e



Governmental Management Services, LG
1001 Bradfard Way
Kingston, TN 37783

Invoice

Invoice #: 53
Invoice Date: 8/1/1%

NEERELIVE m Due Date: 8/1/19
Bill To: lL L - 1“% . C:'sef
Bannon Lakes GDD Il AUG 8 5 2019 \4 P.0. Number:
475 West Town Place lgi_u _
Suite 114 ! !
St. Augustine, FL 1By
R Description Houre/Qty Rate Amount
Managernent Fees - August2019 /. .5/7, 573 3 7o 3,750.00 3,750.00
Information Technology - August 2019 —f— 3 57’ 144.42 144 .42
Dissemination Agent Services - August 2018 _,. K7 341.67 341.67
Offica Supplies  —— S70 0.27 0.27
Postage 4170 49.61 49,61
Coples 'ye 7.80 7.80
2X |
Total $4,283.77
Payments/Credits $0.00

Balance Due

$4,293.77

T



Hopping Green & Sams

Attomeys and Counselors

Tallahasses, FL 32314

B50.222.7500 / 370, 573, 3/3

m—mmmooo—oosmmss=o====cc==========  STATEMENT =Ss=ssssrsssssssszsmmmamocoomsssss==S

Bannon Lakes Cornmunity Development District

¢/o GMS, L1.C - —

475 West Town Place, Suite 114 ] EBENTW EI—\
ﬂ

St. Augustine, FL 32092
AUG 07 2019

i
{

By

et

21 e
BLCDD 00001 WSH

F PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED
D8/05/19 KSB Prepare for and attend board meeting; perform meeting follow up. 0.80 hrs

KF] Correspond with district manager; prepare budget hearing documents; confer 0.30 hrs
with Buchanan.

KSB Review meeting minutes. 0.30 hrs
KSB Review annual audit. 0.80 hrs
Total fees for this matter $503.00
MATTER SUMMARY
Jusevitch, Karen F.- Paralegal 0.30 hrs 125 /hr $37.50
Buchanan, Katie 5. 1.90 hrs 245 fhr $465.50
TOTAL FEES $503.00
TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS MATTER _"_;_.'.';;;,—(;E
BILLING SUMMARY
Jusevitch, Karen F.- Paralegal 0.30 hrs 125 /fhr $37.50
Buchanan, Katie S. 1.90 hrs 245 Jhr $465.50
TOTAL FEES $503.00

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS BILL

Please include the biil number on vour check.

~

o w0



INVOICE

The Lake Doctors, Inc

Aquaue Mana ement Serv 723475

@-""oﬁ

3543 State Road 419, Winter Springs, FL 312708 :
PH: 800-666-5253 Due Date 8/11/2019

Blll To Rep MAS
BANNON LAKES CDD )
GMS MANAGEMENT Invoice Questions:
gJSI'IWEEFIE TOWN PLACE Lakes@lakedoctors.com H
LST AUGUSTINE, FLORTDA 32092 p ay;:ﬂﬁg]t ag:;::g: com
u Purchase Order Number Terms Invoice Date Reflects Month of
, - o NET 10 DAYS Service Provided
ltem Description Amount
Monthly Water Management Service (R} 463.00

’l” AUG 07 2019 |1 ,
- - /, 330, 5 B8 ¥5€

Customer Total Balance $465.00

Please confirt your bank bill payer amount matches yonr invoice amount if you use a banl bill
payer service, Thank you!

To help ensure prompt and accurate eredit to yoor account, please include your account number and invoice number on your check and always
include your remittance stub with your payment.

Please visit www.lakedoctors.com for your local office contact information.

PLEASE DETACH & RETURN THIS PORTION WITH PAYMENT

Bill To Amount Enclosed Invoice # 449716
BANNON LAKES CDD Account # 723475
GMS MANAGEMENT L—.

475 WEST TOWN PLACE Date 8/1/2019

SUITE 114

ST AUGUSTINE, FLORIDA 32092 Go Green] Contact us at Payments@lakedoctors.com to
have your invoices emailed.

For address and contact updates, please email us at IF PAYING BY CREDIT CARD, FILL OUT BELOW

Mastercard Vis American E;
Frontdesk@lakedoctors.com. Card # reard - Visa o Americal BXpross
Card Verification #
The Lake Doctors, Inc. Exp. Date #
3543 State Road 419 Print Name
Winter Sprlngs, FL 32708 Billing Address: Check box if same as above

Signature

|

e



Invoice

Lan dcare Grou Terms Date Invoice #
p Net 30 &/1/2019 8698
Irrigatlgg E La{ndsc_apeD- Maintenance
nferprise Drive (e
Bunnell, FL 32110 i EBETY quﬂ
(386) 586-3321 UL 31 ll i
s s ag U
Bannon Lakes CDD g
475 W. Town Place, Suite 114 Y
St. Augustine, FL 32092
Project Project #
Bannon Lakes Amenity Center M101
Description Quantity Rate Amount
Monthly maintenance for the month of August 1 5,395.89 5,395.89
390, 536, 74
A o
o1 B
Total $5,395.89
Thank you for your business! Payments/Credits $0.00

Balance Due

$5,395.8%

i el T



Landcare Group

Irrigation - Landscape « Maintenance

35 Enterprise Drive
Bunnell, FL 32110
{386) 586-3321

Bannon Lakes CDD
475 W. Town Place, Suite 114

Invoice

Terms

Date Invoice #

Net 30

8/1/2019 8699

NEGE

JUL 31 2018 |

St. Augustine, FL 32092
L/
By
Project Project #
Common Areas & Lakes M102
Description Quantity Rate Amount
Monthly mainfenance for the month of August 1 6,331.25 6,331.25
P
[ %%0, 5%
> @
Total $6331.25
Thank you for your business! Payments/Credits $0.00
Balance Due se¢331.25




%kw REPUBLIC £619 Westem Way Account Number 3-0687-0010861

ﬁ SERVICES Jacksonvilie FL 32256-036060 Invoice Number 0687-000992731
Cusfomer Service  (904) 731-2456 Invoice Date July 16, 2019
RepublicServices.com/Support Past Due on 07116M9 $251.50

) Payments/Adjustments $0.00
Important Information Current Invoice Charges $250.05

We are currently reviewing our bulk iterm pickup service
fess on all accounts. Your next invoice may reflect a fee
rate adjustment, if you have any questions, please ¢

Total Amount Dug| Payment Due Date ]

ontad us. $501.55 Past Due
GURRENT INVOICE CHARGES
Descripiion Reference Quantity Unit Price Amount
Bannon Lakes Cdd 435 Bannon Lakes Dr CSA A172389154 i
St. Augustine, FL Contract: 9687022 (C51)
4 Waste Container 6 Cu Yd, 1 Lift Per Week
Pickup Service 08/01-08/31 $175.80 $175.80
Administrative Fee $5.95
Total Fuel/Environmenial Recovery Fee $56.76
Total Franchise - Local $11.54
CURRENT INVOICE CHARGES, Due by August 05, 2019 $260.06 o
g
S
[k e ~ = :
B ETY
t//‘ / tg ﬂ/ % v A A
. % L 2y A 3 |
/s 820, 579, 454 il
E"F‘,, e . %
A b z
e
4
=
%
=
z
. . . ™ g
Electronics Recycling with BlueGuard =

Convenienl recycling solutions that are safe for your business and good

- ) . . 3

for our planet. To leam more, visit RepubiicServices.com/Electronics o

na

30 Days 80 Days 30+ Days a

Past Due %251 50 wm $0.00 F
§ % REPUBLIC Total Amount Due $501.55
d’ﬁ sehvie ) Payment Due Date Past Due

Please Return This -

8619 Weslern Way Portion With Payment Account Number 3-0687-0010861
Jacksonville FL 32256-036060 Invoice Number 0687-000992731

Total Enclosed i
Return Service Requested l l '

LZRCACDTYR 015273

Make Checks Payable To:
|l|||||||lt“|u||||"||l|||||lnllll|"u|l||||||||‘||||l|mlll
aves  BANNON LAKES CDD
@ LOUIS COWLING L (U TR LB RV R FU BT U R | SR T T
475 W TOWN PL REPUBLIC SERVICES #687
STE 114 PO BOX 9001089
ST AUGUSTINE FL 32092-3648 LOUISVILLE KY 40280-1099

30L5700108LX000000ASS2733000025005000050L552



Riverside Management Services, Inc

Suite 305
Tacksonville, FL. 32257

Bill Te

Bannon Lakes CDI?

9455 Florlda Mining Blvd W
Suite 305

Jacksonvilie, FL 32357

Invoice
Dale Invoice #
$13/2019 59

AUG € 2 2019

|

LB
P.O. No, Terms Project
Quantlity Description Rale Amounl
TJonilorinl Services - August 2019 329, 512, 4% 30 58333 583.33
Pool Maintenanco Services - Augast 2019 326, T2, HT 20 910.50 910.50
Operntions Management Services - Augist 2019 3 5 60, $ 910, 4 Loo| 1,596.50 1,596.50
Facility Management Services - August 2019 340, 542, 3400 2,600.00 2,600.00
VALIN?),
Total $5,690.33
R v

B,1,14

IR IR

[l

e e



& ]
N2 Invoice
T Dat Invoice #
Landcare Group L e | lwolce#
. . Net 30 e w—?*’*"r
Irrigation - Landscape - Maintenance —
35 Enterprise Drive
Bunnell, FL 32110
(386) 586-3321
e
Bannon Lakes CDD B) =
475 W. Town Place, Suite 114 ) .
St. Augustine, FL 32092 Ehl AU
51
|By .
Project Project #
Bannon Lakes Amenity Center Mi01
Description Quantity Rate Amount
Irigation Maintenance forJuly ’
Hrigation Parts; Nozzle, (2) MPR nozzles 1 22.00 22.00
Irrigation Labor: 7/11 at Amenity Center 05 35.00 17.50
118
{
Total $39.50
Thank you for your business! Payments/Credits $0.00

Balance Due &susms

e DSR2 1

Bl

— -



Landcare Group

frrigation - Landscape - Maintenance

Invoice

Invoice #

35 Enterprise Drive
Bunnell, FL. 32110
{386) 586-3321
Bannon Lakes CDD
475 W. Town Place, Suite 114
St Augustine, FL 32092
Project Project #
Bannon Lakes CDD M102
Description Quartity Rale Amount
Trrigation Maintenance for9ay .
Trrigation Parts: Nozzle, (2) poly couplings 1 4,00 4.00
Irrigation Labor: 7/22 at CommonArea 0.5 35.00 17.50
L [’)“’[
2}, M
{ 5507
Total $21.50
Thank you for your business! Payments/Credits $0.00

Balance Due

o L



TUEST. ALGUSTIRE

R1)

Questions on this invoice call:

(866) 470-7133 Option 2
Sk com b
o I vewspapen L & = Bl en W es 1 ]
START STOP REFERENGE DESCRIPTION PRODUCT SAU 3ZE UNITS RUN RATE AMOUNT
0630 Balance Forward $251.31
07/01 PO0758 Payment - Lockbox 471 $-157.07
07125 Paymanl - Lockbox 486 $-94 24
UTiZ3 07130 J * ADT FY 2018-2020 BUDGET SA St Augustine Record 1,00 x 6.7500 .75 2 $8.98 $121.24
07/23 07/30  103197195-07232019 ADT FY 2019-2020 BUDGET SA Si Aug Record Online 1.00 x 6,7600 B8.75 2 807 $121.10
PREVIOUS AMOUNT OWED: $251.31
NEW CHARGES THIS PERICD: $242.34
CASH THIS PERIOD: ($251.31)
DEBIT ADJUSTMENTS THIS PERIOD: $0.00
CREDIT ADJUSTMENTS THIS PERIOD: $0.00
We appreclate your business.
V-2
/ ;
1. 5/0, 573, Y&
2L FICEE
(- | %
n s %
132 |
fatis DR —
INVOICE AND STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT AGING OF PAST DUE ACCOUNTS "+ UNAPPFLIED AMOUNTS ARE INCLUDED IN TOTAL AMOUNT DUE Elm
2] GURRENT NET AMOUNT 2| 30 DAYS 80 DAYS GVER 80 DAYS * UNAPFLIED AMOUNT x|  TOTAL AMOUNT DUE
$242 34 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
BALEE REPAPHONE # 25| ADVERTISER IRFORMATION
Mellssa Rhinehart 1] BILLING PERIOD 6]  BILLED ACCOUNT NUMBER 7] ADVERTISERICLIENT NUMBER__ [z | ACVERTISER/ICLIENT NAME
904-819-3423 07/01/2019 - 08/04/2019 16652 15652

BANNON LAKES CDD - GMS

MAKE CHECKS PAYABLE TO

PQ Bax 121261

The St. Augustine Record Dallas, TX 75312-1261

The St. Augusilne Record Dept 1261

Payment is due upon receipt.

PLEASE DETACH AND RETURN LOWER PORTION WITH YOUR REMITTANCE

T — 1] PBILLING PERIOD 1 ] ADVERTISERICLIENT HAME
: RE C ORD 07/01/2018 - 08/04/2019 BANNON LAKES CDD - GMS
W LUAVALE ¥4 company || TOTAL AMOUNT DUE * UNAPPLIED AMOUNT s TERMS OF PAYMENT
SAT $242.34 $0.00 NET 15 DAYS
The St. Augustine Record Dept 1261 B]  CURRENT NET AVGUNT =] 30 DAYS 5 DAYS GVER B0 DAYS
PO Box 121261
Dallas, TX 763121261 $242.34 $0.00 $0.60 $0.00
<] PacER  [s] BULNGDATE 5] PILLEDAGCOUNT HUMBER [ 7] ADVERTISERICLIENT NUMBER 24 STATEMENT NUMBER
ADVERTISING INVOICE and STATEMENT 08/04/2019 15652 15652 0000050242
[T BILLING ACCOUNT NAME AND ADDREES | I REMITTANCE ADDRESS |
5 The St. Augustine Record
L) : Dept 1261
PO Box 121261
T BANNON LAKES CDD - GMS Dallas, TX 75312-1261
J 475 WTOWN PL STE 114

SAINT AUGUSTINE FL 32092-3649
Iy A o L e g e

-

[N —

=T



Tue, Jul 30, 2019

Legal Ad Invoice

The St. Augustine Record

8:00:40AM
Acct: 156562
Phone: 9049405850
E-Mail:

Client: BANNON LAKES CDD - GMS

Ad Number: 0003197195-01
Start: 07/23/2019
Platement: SA Legals

Send Payments to:

The St, Augusting Record Dept 1261

PO Box 121261
Dallas, TX 76312-1261

Name: BANNON LAKES CDD - GMS
Address: 475 W TOWN PLACE, STE 114

City: SAINT AUGUSTINE State: FL Zip: 32092
Caller: SHELBY STEPHENS Paytype: BILL
lsgues: 2 Stop: 07/30/2019

Rep: WMelissa Rhinehart

Copy Line: BANNON LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE ADOFPT

Lines a1
Depth 6.75
Colurnns 1
Price $242.34

BANNON LAXES COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
NOTICE UF PUBLIC HEARING TO

CONSIDER THE ADOFTION OF

THE FISCAL YEAR 2019/2020
BUDGETS; AND NOTICE OF

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING.

The Boanl of Su ("Bn-xtl") of
the Hannon Devel-
opmenl Dlsl.ﬁcl. ("Dlltrlcl") 1 bold &

8D 3nA010 ks,
mo m_ at the offices of Governmen-
muagemuent Serviees, LLC, 475
We.si Town Flace, Suile 114, 5t Augus—
tine, Florlda 32092, for the porpose of
hearing rommeniz and objections on
lhc loption of the Erncpo!cd badgets
pma BME: Y of the Dlsln:'l.
gnnmg Oxctober 1,
19 nnd ber J0, 2020
("Fistal Year :HJL'I 2020”), A
hmml meeting of the Distrlct
held a1 thet time where the
may conslder any other buslnes: that
y properly come before it. There will
be &n Audit Committer mesling pt 1:00
rn at the above-referenced location
nﬂul:]y prigr to the oneet of the
Su[mrvims' meeting). The
Commuﬂu will review, discoss
end rnk the proposals reeeived o per-
form Lhe andit for the fiscal yuren
Sepu:mbcr 30. 200, a5 :E
vertized in accordance wil Hnndl Inw.
A copy of the agenda and Propased
Budg“mny heobi.'llned ol the offices of
trick Manager, 475 West Town
Pleee, Sulte 114, SL Angustlne, Flarida
32092 (“District Manager's Office™),
during normal business heurs.

The public heuring and mnc'dng aro open
lnth!pubhnmdwﬂlbumnm: in
with the p af Flod-
da law, The Ilcheadng and meelis
may h:enn ned 1o a date, time,
place 1a be gpeeified on (he record ot e
moeﬂng.ﬂ There may be occasions when
rervisors or District Siafl may
purﬂdpatc by speaker telcphone,

Any person régul BLeaminG-
dan“:ms at this mrelﬁng because of a dis-
ability or phlumnl imprirment showld
canlyct the District Manager's Office at
least forty-clgbt (42) hours pdor 10 the
meeting,  If you are hearng or 5
impalred, please eontact the a Re-
lay Servlee by dialing 711, or 1-80D-
F} [ 1-A00-955-B770
[Volee), for aid in contacting the Dis-
Lrict Menager's Office.

I decldes to appeal an
d:clupll?:omadt by the dppwuh y
speck to matter considered at lln:
E:nhlm hearing or meeting ks ndvised
L person will need o mecord of pro-
ceedings and thet accordingly, the per-
son iy need ta ensure lhnt a verbatim
record of the ings Is made, in-
chuding the testimany and cvidence
upen which such pppeal is to be based,

Jim Olivey
Distriel Manuger
000algri9s July 23, 30, 2019

s U e b R

Rl



THE ST. AUGUSTINE RECORD :
Affidavit of Publication © " SEVEL GPMENT DISTRICT

BANNON LAKES CDD - GMS . mubGETS ANDNOTICEOY
475 W TOWN PLACE, STE 114 : SUPERVISONS® MEETING ANIM

SAINT AUGUSTINE, FL 32092 LT B o e Comuvaniny Deyal
«  opment District (“Disvrict™) will hold a
I pullie }.mﬂmiI on_August 21, 2019 at

noulg;:: at the offices, of Governmen-
sgement Services, LIC, 475

ACCT. 15652 ? West Town Plare, Suite 114, S1. Augus-
AD# 0003197195-01 L e ammens. ana ohjienions. o -

| B T b
PO# . . Ee:mn':nl Colobe: 1,

' 2019 !.nd mcﬁ-“ September 30, 2020

. [“Fiscal Year 201920207 ). A
PUBLISHED EVERY MORNING SUNDAY THROUGH SATURDAY . wﬂrmﬂfh: ﬂﬂﬂgﬂm‘:’ i sl
ST. AUGUSTINE AND ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA sy corsider any other business that
: y properly come belore it There wilt
I:: an Andit Committzs yueeting at 3:00
o st the above-referenced loction

immediaiely prior 1o the onsel nf the
mecting).

Board of :
' Auﬂ:t Com will review, dLsn:uss :
STATE OF FLORIDA e ol ndig
COUNTY OF ST. JOHNS e axordanes it Thid I ?
. A copy of the agendn and Prg ed
Before the undersigned authority personally appeared JULLA ©  eketmarbe oblained af the offies of
KERTI who on oath says he/she is an Employee of the St. & hoes; pasiit MA.,,:’.,‘;::'-: Ny
Augustine Record, a daily newspaper published at St. Augustine in = 9ing=onal bushaesshour.
St, Johns County, Florida; that the attached copy of advertisement - i “The public ““""5,“'"1 meeting are open
being a NOTICE OF HEARING in the matter of ADT FY serdinee provisions of Fled-

dnlnw mﬁlhheaﬂng and meeting
2019-2028 BUDGET was published in said newspaper on | it bawmcined on the wioand 2t ihe

07/23/2019, 07/30/2019. é mgmgﬁhgmmﬁwﬁﬂ

Aghpmn ring special accommo-

R B . ons at this meetmg ‘because of a dis-
Affiant further says that the St. Augustine Record is a newspaper e T Ymongmsa Ofhon a1
published at St. Augustine, in St. Johns County, Florida, and that I fortyght (48) hours peor to the

N N . . mesting. lfynnm m.nnﬁ?l
the said newspaper heretofore has been continuously published in ! ;;';Pﬂ“'d- " ooniact {he Horide e

said St. Johns Cqunty, Florida each day and h_as _been t.antcred as . WMWTJ‘}'ifm L méﬁ.‘.’fﬂ.‘;“;’i.".
second class mail matter at the post office in ‘the City of St, | trictMmagers Offics.
L - . : o -
Aungustine, in said St. Johns C?unt-y, Florida for a period of one . Rach person vl hyﬁdﬂme 4 %o appead any
year preceding the first publication of the attached copy of : =eet o ey mufler contidered al the :
. . N . publie hcun wﬂllm‘ menting L advised :
advertisement; and affiant further says the he/she has neither paid mmy on wil need .. Eﬁ:f;-d o o
nor promised any person, firm or corporation any discount, rebate, $0 may necd mm -;‘vfsbnnm
. . . . e.
commission, or refund for the purpose of securing this E:g!nnz et ond eilde
» - . - - . whdl,ll l‘ {i !]Hml
advertisement for publication in said newspaper. C S OR )
. Hul hver
! District Maneger
. 0003107195 July 23, 30 1019

Sworn to and subscribed before me this_ day oj { ” 3 f ng

by W MXD who is personally known to me !

or whéyas produced as identification

/é”?)/_[)fi[u )// 2y

(SlgnaiGJe of Notary\fubhc

Notary Publlic State of Florida

B2 " Kimberly M Reese

By ~ Iy Commission GG 312200
Expires 031772023

i

-1

-



FREEDOM f‘@";“\

PEST COMNT HGL

004-272-BUGS [2847) -) \
3600 Pearia ed, Suite 103

Orange Park, FL 32065
Wl
Bill 1w 106270 Lacitium:
Bannon Lakes COD

Bannon Lakes Resident's Club
435 B Bannon Lakes Blvd
1. Augusline, FL 32092

TNVOICE: 1014175
DATE: 8812019
ORDER: 1014175
[108210)
Bannon |.akes COD
Bannon Lakea Residenl's Club
415 B Bannon Lakes Bivd

8t Augusline, FL 32082,

Marcus Lopez

I YRR

PRSI N

TC-5RP Annual Termite Conlrel Reneywsl

78 7%3é §19-09

Comris v Mawr,
001, 320.5 70, 60000

o (@)

3000
SUBTOTAL 536000
TAX $0.00
AMT. PAID $0.00
TOTAL $350.00
AMOUNT DUE $350.00

@EW

[[f AUG 2 0 2010 1%‘[
i
LN St i

_,_L__“______q___-—,

i

Dhalanices b anding weer M day 5 (o ihe date of scrvice myy ke subjeel weoalate tee |t
ot Besser o€ 134 por atonth (1873 per yeany or e o alliw r_d by faw, sl
Cualumer ugrees L pay aconied eapenses i e tven of cellction.

L el s ol Bty coniplet sorsioes betulenal

Sy i ensd ol weniees m s paciiied alees

PLEASE PAY FROM THIS INVOIUL

e e Hoeas st it e

1Ll

L

e



/( INVDICE: 1016056
Eéz E 5 OA% t DATE: BM6/2019
ORDER: 1016068
904-272-BUGS [2847] —) \
3600 Peorla Rd, Sulte 103
Orange Park, FL 32065
\\‘nrl-
il 1. [106210) Lowation:  [106210)
Bannen Lakes COD Bannon Lakes CDD
Sannon Lakes Residen('s Club Bannon Lakes Resident's Club
435 B Bannon Lakes Blvd 435 B Bannon Lakes Bivd
S1, Augustine, FL 32092 SL Augusline, FL 32092

T2MARCUS

" an6r2018

"~ Marcus Lopez

1= MONTHLY Inilial Monltbly Pest Contvol

7%%5 &1t7

Peoniics » Masarv,
0f, 320, S 2 00: fooco

/50 @)

160,00
SUBTOTAL §150.00
TAX $0.00
AIAT. PAID $0.00
TOTAL 13000
AMOUNT DUE $160.00

X
==
[y
fop)
oo
=
[ d
o]
o

Boktees iilatanling, wer 3 day o from the dats of servlie may be subjecl ma lae bee iy el

ol the zser b L34 per nuonth (1R py yeary or the maximun allowwd by faw wl e
Custonset ugreds o pay seemed espenses indie event of collaction.

PLEASE PAY FROM TEHS INVOICE

o Ioskoe e s otinln Bens s emtplefion ol senhoes witbers el
baeed ol Lt e s il b

e

JR——



poclsure

1707 Townhurst Dr
Houston TX 77043
ar@pooclsure.com
800-858-POOL (7665)
www.poolsure.com

€

Invoice Dale 8/14/2019
Invoice # 131295588161

i

Terms | Net20

Due Date | 83/2019

PO #

Dellvery Ticket # | Sales Order #1327742

Delivery Date | 61312019

BiliTo

Delivery Location | Bannon Lakes Pool

Bannon Lakes CDD

bldg 300 suite 3056
Jacksonville FL 32257

Riverside Management Services

9655 Florida Minning Blvd West

Customer # ] 138AN02E

Bannon Lakes CDD
Shi 435 Bannon Lakes Blvd
hipTo | g Augustine FL 32096

LATE FEE: This conslilttes notice under the truth In lending act that any accounls remaining unpaid after lhe due date are sublect to 1 1/2% per
month lete charge and allorney fees.

ltem 1D Item Quantity Units Rafe Amount
115-300 Bleach Mintbulk Delivered 4751 gal 1.50 712,50
115-300 Bleach Minlbulk Dellvered 10| gal 1.50 15.00
}67%% &-19-9
[ 5

POG’ cAEmrc‘aAA

—
=
Rt
&8
LaT|
| iy |
Ty
= |

- -~ = | I
U} J]EG(UIQ !yg
A |
) A i
Total 727.50
Amount Due  §727.50
v G
Remittance Slip
Customer Amount Due $727.50
13BAN025 Amount Pald
involce # N
g%;;sam 51 Make Checks Payable To
Poolsure
PO Box B5372

U 1R

131295588151

Houslon, TX 771265-5372




Riverside Management Services, Inc Invoice
Suite 305
) ; ‘ Dale Involce #
Jacksonville, FL 32257
8/19/201% (1]
Biil To
Bannon Lakes CDD i n WSl
9655 Florids Mining Blvd W Dl E @ E gy £
Suite 305 . 1
Incksonville, FL 32257 L ,{,\UE 2 1 2018 I;
By
P.O. No. Terms Project
Quanlity Descriplior Rale Amount
[Focility Mointenance July 1 - July 31, 2019 1,951.56 1.951.56
Malntenance Supplies 435,48 43748
TR vl
EUJ . "q:q tl. 't‘r ‘/ltu-\'i"
3o, ST MO
Total $2,387.04
EX N
A, vorig




RiS

BANHON LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRIGT
MAINTEHANCE BILLABLE HOURS
FOR THE MOMYH OF JULY 2018

Dala
FI3H0
ANe
b

1M1

ien9
THEM9
TTHe
Mons

7123119
Trsne
1126H8
7125119
Tae
TOTAL

FAILES

HO]II’E
a KH,
1 K.B.
3 K.B.
a6 K.B.
58 K.H.
5.5 RM.
4 B
4 K.a.
7 K.H.
7 RM,
4 K.B.
B KH.
1 K8,
§4.6
e
99
[———— ]
BANNON LAKES

Employae Doscrlplion

Cul down dead ree nexl (o sldevialk by bushalball cours

Check and changed all irash leceplacles, renoved debis around amenly cenler

Emergency Pool Gall Out - hed o shul dowa poel lo clean feces oulof poot

Chacked and chenged trash ieceptacles, blav debris off lennis courls and basketball courls,
emplied dop perk lrash rocoplacles, duslad ior splder webs and angs, ixed ennis coust
windecregn

Cut dowm 2 dead liges and removed dabils al amenlly cenler

Cut dovin 2 dead oak trees and disposad of

Cleanad elllakes of debils

Dusled for spiderwebs and aggs, cheched and changed all {rash racaplades and dog pot

Dblew ofl debds and lasves olf side walky, baskelball and lennls couits, siralgblenad paviion
Tumilure, fixed windsereen on lennls courl

inslall 8 bunches In dog park, socuse with congreta, plcked up suppkes

install 3 benches n dop park, secure vith concrele, picked up supplles

Ducled loreplderwebs and vggs, blew debris and leavas olf lannla couils, sidewalks, batkatball
couns, chacked and changed lrash receplacles al dog park, fixed wind thal ives L
Pieked up supples, re-pourad cament around foolinge of benches al dog park and levelsd
Blaach washed dog park fence

Prassure vashed bird feces off baskelball courls and lennks couils

*Mieage I relmbursabls perseclion 112,061 Flodda Slehules Mizage Rate 2009-0.445

L

n

-



NTENA BILLABLE PURGHASES

Period Ending 0B/05H8

BISTRICT DATE

aL

BANNON LANES
7618
71619
7619
Here
v
7i23lg
7r23H8
Ti23He
7124119
7i24119
7i24M9
7R24M9
72419
Ti2ae
7i2ah9
7i24M19
112508
713019
7130H8
713019
81HM19
#ha
L]

SUPPLIES

Doorslop 2 pk

Switfers Mop Pads

13 gallon Trash Baps
Bucket

Anime! Trapping

38" Washers

Bleach 1 Gakon

80 {b Concrete (3)

HDX Peper Towels 12 rolls
Switfer Wet Jot Relil 24 pk
Swiller Dusler Relil 12 ¢l
Lalex Gloves 6O ot
Swiilar Wet Jst Liquid Refl
Sprayvray Glass Cleanar
Febreeza Alr Haavy Duly
409 Mulitpurpose Cleaner
80 b Conerele (2)

801 Goncrele (6)

318" Ball {6)

A8 ML (2)

Bird Decoy

Bird Decoy

Bird Repsl Sphes

TOTAL

PRICE

447
1032
16.07

697

195,00

138

4.06
16.87
18.37
1482
11.47

572
10,89

3.30

4,567

342
11.26
30,74

9.92

271
1283
12.93
24.87

$435.48

EMPLOYEE

8.
B.L.
L
BL
BS,
ICH.
KH.
KH.
8.8,
B8,
B.S,
B.S.
B.S.
B.S.

"y

o -



Bannon Lakes

Community Development District Construction Funding Reqoast #20 .
June 4, 2019

PAYEE

Redq,

143  England Thims & Miller
Professional Services through March 31, 2019 Inv #190062 4/9/19 $ 236.17

7 | 3o0 |3l o |
= orr 576 REG A3

Please make check payablato:  Bannon Lakes CDD
cfoGMSUC
475 West Town Place
Sujte 114
St Augustine F. 32002

Slgnature:

/Vice Chalrman

Signahlre: l/\)
SecrEﬂwAsstjﬁﬁFehry

R T

1™

T



Bannon Lakes
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

== ]
=

=
L]

7

i

==

- 3 . H
General Fund Lﬁ SEP 09 2018 I,l
BY
Check Request
Date Amount Authorized By
September 9, 2019 $52,448.58 Sheryl Fulks
Payable to:
Bannon Lakes CDD ¢/o BNY Mellon #37
Date Check Necded; Budget Catepory:
ASAP 1-300-20700-10200
Intended Use of Funds Requested:
Lennar Homes Asmnt 52,448.58
52,448.58
(Attach supporting documentation for request.)




Governmental Management Services, LLC
1001 Bradford Way
l(inrvu:i‘nn TN 177A1

Invoice

Invoice #: 54
Invoice Date: 8/1/19

e T
SEEELY ER Due Date: 9/1/19
Bill To: I e 1! Case:
) He - 1 .
Bannon Lakes CDD ﬁm SI:P 09 2{119 :Ef'i P.O. Number:
475 West Town Place HLES i
Suite 114 ! i
St. Augustine, FL % BY o
Description HoursiOty Rate Amount
Management Fees - September 2019 « 1-31-515 34 3,750.00 3,750,00
]
Information Technology - September 2018 )51513-35) 144.42 144.42
Dissemination Agent Services - September 20192 1.3)-513 * 3t 341,67 341.67 -
Office Supplies I-3)-513- 51 18.93 18.93
Postage !-31-513- 42 3 7.50 7.50
Coples | 31-51 3425 300.75 309.75
Total $4,572.27
Payments/Credits $0.00

Balance Due $4,672.27

BRE N

[




Hopping Green & Sams

Attomeys and Counselors

119 8. Monroe Sireel, Ste. 300
P.0. Box 6526
Tallahasses, FL 32314
850,222 7500

EEEE R - ] STATEMENT SR T - e e S e

August 30, 2019
Bannon Lakes Community Development District Bill Number 109579
cfo GMS, LLC Billed through 07/31/2019
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 %
St. Augustine, FL 32092

}.3;-513 315
General Counsel 5
BLCDD 00001 WSH
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED
07/16{19 KFJ Correspond with McKee and district manager; amend budget hearing notice. 0.30 hrs
07/31/19 MG Research new law regarding new definition of "home address" and property 0.10 hrs

appraiser objections to confidential information in assessment rolls; prepare
memorandum to district manager regarding same.

Total fees for this matter $62.00
MATTER SUMMARY
Jusevitch, Karen F.- Paralegal 0.30 hrs 125 /hr $37.50
Gentry, Lauren M. 0.10 hrs 245 /hr $24.50
TOTAL FEES $62.00
TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS MATTER —__—_;;;;;

BILLING SUMMARY

Jusevitch, Karen F.- Paralegal 0.30 hrs 125 /hr $37.50
Gentry, Lauren M. 0.10 hrs 245 fhr $24.50
TOTAL FEES $62.00

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS BILL $62.00

Please include the bill numher on vour check.

B T e TP I LR PR

ERETEE . I



Aquatic Management Services

. The Lake Doctors, Inc.,

1543 State Road 419, Winter Springs, FL 32708
PH: 800-666-5253

Bill To

BANNON LAKES CDD

GMS MANAGEMENT

475 WEST TOWN PLACE

SUITE 114

ST AUGUSTINE, FLORIDA 32092

INVOICE

Invoice # 456790
Account# 723475
Invoice Daie 9/2/2019
DueDate | 9122019
Rep MAS

Invoice Questions:
Lakes@lakedoctors.com
Payment Questions:
Payments@lakedoctors.com

Purchase Crder Number Terms | Invoice Date Reflects Month of
NET 10 DAYS Service Provided
liem Description Amount
Monthly Water Management Service (R} 475,00
17
Customer Total Balance $475.00
Please confirm your bank bill payer amount matches your invoice amount if you use a bank bitl
payer service. Thank you!

To help ensure prompt and accurate credit to your account, please include your account number and inveice number on your check and always

include your remittance stub with your payment.

Please visit www.lakedoctors.com for your lacal office contact informatien.

PLEASE DETACH & RETURN THIS PORTION WITH PAYMENT

Bill To

BANNON LAKES CDD

GMS MANAGEMENT

475 WEST TOWN PLACE

SUITE 114

ST AUGUSTINE, FLORIDA 32092

For address and contact updates, please email us at
Frontdesk@lakedoctors.com.

The Lake Doctors, Inc.
3543 State Road 419
Winter Springs, FL 32708

Amount Enclosed Invoice # 456790
Account # 723475
Date 92/2019

Go Green! Contact us at Payments@lakedoctors.com to
lhave your invoices emailed.

IF PAYING BY CREDIT CARD, FILL OUT BELOW

_ Mastercard ___ Visa __ American Express
Card #
Card Verification #
Exp. Date #
Print Name
Billing Address: __ Check box if same as above

Signature




Invoice

Terms Date Invoice #
Landcare Group
L i Net 30 9/1/2019 8871
Irrigation - Landscape « Maintenance
35 Enterprise Drive
Bunnell, FL 32410
(386) 586-3321
Bannon Lakes CDD
475 W. Town Place, Suite 114
St Aupustine, FL 32092
Project Project #
Bannon Lakes Amcnity Center M101
Description Quantity Rate Amount
Monthly maintenance for the month of September L 5,395.89 5,395.39
Vo 1%
$a,8, 462
/, 3505
Total $5,395.89

Thank you for your business!

Payments/Credits $0.00

Balance Due 3539539

ey



4
Sz (’f =
i Invoice
T Dat Invoice #
Landcare Group = = o
. Net 30 9/1/2019 8872
Irrigation - Landscape - Maintenance
35 Enterprise Drive
Bunnell, FL 32110
(386) 586-3321
Y e h
Banncn Lakes CDD B E !,_E' i.! %{“ E i
475 W, Town Place, Suite 114 i lé
St. Augustine, FL 32092 lfl SEP @ 5 2019 IJ
Lt (e,
By _
Project Project #
Common Areas & Lakes MLO2
Description Quantity Rate Amount
Monthly maintenance for the month of September 1 6,331.25 6,331.25
A
\[ . \,\()(]J
PRSI VAN
S
\.
Total $6,331,25
Thank you for your business! Payments/Credits $0.00

Balance Due

$6,331.25

e RG] o e P e

i



%R{? REPUBLIC 5619 Western Way Account Number 3-0687-0010861

SERVICES Jacksonvllie FL 32256-036060 Invoice Number 0687-000999486
Customer Service {904) 731-2456 Invc)l.ce Date August 16, 2019
RepublicServices.com/Suppaort Previous Balance $501.55

Payments/Adjustments -$501.55
Current Invoice Charges $252.85

Total Amount Due| Payment Due Date
$252.85 September 05, 2019

PAYMENTS/ADJUSTMENTS

Description Reference Amount
Payment - Thank You 07/28 481 -$251.50
Payment - Thank You 08/16 500 ’ -$250.05
CURRENT INVOICE CHARGES

Description Reference Quantity Unit Price Amouni

Bannon Lakes Cdd 435 Bannon Lakes Dr CSA A172389154
St. Augustine, FL Contract: 9687022 {(C51)
1 Waste Gontainer 6 Cu Yd, 1 Lift Per Week

Pickup Service 09/01-08/30 $175.80 $175.80
Administrative Fee $6.95
Total Fuel/Environmental Recovery Fee $59.44
Total Franchise - l.ocal $11.66

CURRENT INVOICE CHARGES $252.85

y-18 B/, 320, kg7, 45E

Electronics Recycling with BlugGuard™

Convenienl recycling solulions that are sale for your business and good
for our planel. To learn more, visit RepublicServices.com/Electronics

QR‘» REPUBLIC Total Amount Due $252,85
d"a Ploase Rofum Thi Payment Due Date September 05, 2019
m 5
8619 Western Way Parlion With Payment ~ Account Number 3-0687-0010861
Jacksonville F1. 32266-036060 Invoice Number 0667-000999486
Total Enclosed [“‘]

For Billing Address Changa2s.

Return Service Requested I I
Check Box and Complete Revarse,

L2RCACDTAV 015260

Make Checks Payable To:
ULTIEUR UL I UC ORI U R
o BANNON LAKES CDD
% LOUIS COWLING R R TR RTTRIRHRID ISR U HT R
475 W TOWN PL REPUBLIC SERVICES #687
STE114 PO BOX 9001098
ST AUGUSTINE FL 32092-3648 LOUISVILLE KY 40250-1099

30L4700108L12000000099948L0000252850000252857

100 LO0 NNN NNN NNNNNNNNNL 092518 AYLADYOHE]

Leirereta  LeS080



2! Bannon Lakes Community
Development District

618
0911220119

o S Y o
o weyranes & Risk Advinos

Krislina Rudez,
1of1

T ST

Batinon Lakes Community Development District
clo Governmental Management Services

475 West Town Place, Ste 114

St. Augustine, FL 32092

R B g

}( Pie - aas D nd cEwdns o iRt

Bolicy #100179279 10/01/2019-10/01/2020

Florlda Insurance Alliance
9567 | 10/01/2019 | Renew policy Package - Renew policy 19,590.00

Due Date: 9/12/2019
-6 @
Arepard 4
epRt

131053, y5 | P20 Admia Tns Z 575‘; .
13512 us |y Propedy Jrs 113,80
ST Y [. %00, 155, fov

FOR PAYIMENTS SENT OVERNIGHT:
Egls Insurance Advisors LLG, Fifth Third Whalesale Lockbox, Lockbox #234021, 4900 W. 36th St Qaldawn, iL 60453

Remit Payment To: Egls Insurance Advisors, LLC (321)233-8938 |2 DateE
Lockbox 234021 PC Box 84021 s mE e
Chlcago, I 60689-4002 sclimer@egisadvisors.com 09/12/2019




Hopping Green & Sams

Atlomeys and Counselors

119 §. Monroe Street, Ste. 300
P.0D. Box 6526
Tallahassee, FL 32314
850.222 7500

D,

[ 309. /3], }0T

B ] S_I-A-I-EMENT o e b e ]

September 30, 2016
Bannon Lakes Community Development District
c/o GMS, LLC
475 West Town Place, Suite 114
St. Augustine, FL 32052

A
o

fpmtimny
m
o &2
fum—y mﬁ‘
-]
™~
=
(& -]

T
T

Bill Number 90158

"““""'—F—‘M_:_E Bitled through 08/31/2016

Project Construction ;
BLCDD 00103 WSH 1By
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED
08/04/16  WSH Confer with Oliver regarding status of RFP's; review same. 0.60 hrs
08/09/16  WSH Confer with Lancaster and Lavelle regarding RFP packages and procurement 0.50 his
process.
08/25/16  WSH Confer with LaValley regarding amenity RFP package. 0.50 hrs
08/26{/16 WSH Confer with Lancaster regarding RFP for amenilty center, 0.40 hrs
08/30/16 WSH Review and revise RFP package for amenity center. 0.90 hrs
08/30/16  KFJ) Confer with Haber regarding amenity RFP docurments. 0.20 hrs
08/31/16  WSH Participate in conference call regarding RFP; review and revise RFP package. 1.30 hrs
Total fees for this matter $1,180.00
MATIER SUMMARY
Jusevitch, Karen F.- Paralegal 0.20 hrs 125 fhr $25.00
Haber, Wesley S. 4.20 hrs 275 fhr $1,155.00
TOTAL FEES $1,180.00
INTEREST CHARGE ON PAST DUE BALANCE $27.80
TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS MATTER $1,207.80
BILLING SUMMARY
Jusevitch, Karen F.- Paralegal 0.20 hrs 125 /hr $25.00
Haber, Wesley 5. 4.20 hrs 275 fhr $1,155.00
TOVAL FEES $1,180.00

INTEREST CHARGE ON PAST DUE BALANCE

$27.80

—



Project Construction

Blll No. 90158

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS BILL

Please include the hill number on vour check.

$1,207.80

s e

A e



Hopping Green & Sams
Altoneys and Counselors

I
119 5. Monroe Street, Ste. 300 y-5 @

P.0. Box 6526

Tallahassee, FL 32314 /. 300, /84, 100,

B850,222.7500

e BT e e e S S srATEMENT SoEEssEsEEEET =T === ==T=E====

June 30, 2017
Bannon Lakes Community Development District Bill Number 94821

cfo GMS, LLC Billed through 05/31/2017
475 West Town Place, Suite 114

St. Augustine, FL 32002 imE G &1V ER

Project Construction El )
!
BLCDD 00103 WSH 1

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED

05/24/17 WSH Review and revise hold harmiless agreement for purchase of fitness equipment; 0.50 hrs
confer with Dodson regarding same.

Total fees for this matter

$137.50
MATTER SUMMARY
Haber, Wesley S. 0.50 hrs 275 /hr $137.50
TOTAL FEES $137.50
TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS MATTER __“;;;7“._5-;1-
BILLING SUMMARY
Haber, Wesley S. 0.50 hrs 275 /hr $137.50
TOTAL FEES $137.50
TOTALCHARGESFORTHISBIL ; —:I.;;—.::E

Please include the bill number on vour check.

i

e |




invoice

Riverside Management Services, Inc

9655 Florida Mining Blvd, W.

o

s

- . Dale Invoice #
Building 300, Suite 305
Jacksonville, FL 32257 9112019 329
Blti To 1
i m e G lnd i
Bannon Lakes CDD ﬁ“‘ L 15 E,:-—'_: E_% “_?‘ it [ﬂi\l :
9655 Florida Mining Blvd W | ‘L{ i %X -
Suite 305 i o i i
Tncksanville, B1. 32257 %_i% ﬁj SEP 112018 34 2
| 5
! i
e e e—m—
P.O. No. Terms Projest
Quanllly Desorlption Rate Amount
Taoitorial Services - Seplember 2019 322, 512, 45 30 583,33 58333 :
* Pool Muinlenance Scrvices - Scplember 2019 320, 512 . h¥ 1 910,50 910.50
Operations Managemeni Services - September 2019 3wp, 572, S 00t 1,596.50 1,596.50
Freility Management Services - September 2018 32, 5972, 34eo 2,600,00 2,600,00
p-14 B
T Total 55,690.33
LR T

9, 3,19



Invoice
Invoice Number:
19-30261
Security Engineering &nd Designs, Inc.

3139 Waller Street Invoice Date:
Jacksonville, FL 32254 9/10/19

Page:
-
Voice; 904-371-4931
Fax: 904-371-4939
Sold To: Site Address:
BANNON LAKES CCD BANNON LAKES GCD
475 WS TOWN PLACE 575 WEST TOWN PLACE
ST. AUCUSTINE, FL 32092 gFA:JgUSTlNE, oL 300
Customer 1D: BANNON LBKES CCD
Customer PO Payment Terms Sales Rep ID Due Date
Net 10 Days 9/20/19
Description Amount
SHIP (200} ACCESS CARDS 1,050.00
# 23951~ 24050 :
FAC 21
20 @) 1. 520, 539, Y/
Service Department: 371-4931
Monitoring Center: 800-318-9486
Installation: 371-4931
Subtotal 1,050.00
Please include invoice number on payment Sales Tax _
Total Invoice Amount 1,050.00
19-30261 Payment Received 0.00

TOTAL 1,050.00

e

. i



	Agenda
	III. 08-21-19 Minutes
	IV. 08-21-19 AC Minutes
	V. Audit Engagement Letter
	VI. M. Shultis Resignation
	VII. 2020-01 Set Hearing Rules of Procedure
	VIII. AED Proposals
	IX. Pressure Washing Proposals
	X. Windscreen Proposals
	XI. Stairmaster Proposal
	XII. Landcare Group Landscape Agreement
	XIII. RMS Agreement
	XIV. Heather Schnellbacher Yoga Classes Agreement
	XVI-C. FY20 Meeting Schedule
	XVI-D. Operations Report
	XVI-E. Amenity Report
	XIX-A. Financials
	XIX-B. Assessment Receipts
	XIX-C. Check Register



